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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
EEFr  FEFT  EEFT  BETFT | BEFT
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000

#i5 Results

PR A& F Profit before taxation 491,202 486,020 272,087 536,923 610,526
FriERiL H Income tax expense (18,515) (8,681) (6,475) (20,033) (32,436)
RATREREM, Profit attributable to

SR shareholders of the Company 472,687 477,339 265,612 516,890 578,090
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PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
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BT
HKS$ Thousand

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
B Ordinary business IFE# %7 Dilution in shareholding B f&{#& M Disposal &

{5 @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited




T AR S A 2
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
BEFT  EEFT  EETFr  EEFT | BEFr
HKS’000 HKS$'000 HKS’000 HKS'000 HK$’000
ME - HRNERE Property, plant and equipment 20,122 19,061 17,999 16,878 20,935
BRAE Intangible assets - - - 2,504 1,573
A Investment properties 165,762 179,215 170,536 169,818 169,632
e AT Associates 2,945,890  3,263977 4,082,002 4,842,032 | 4,988,673
BATEFARM Financial assets at fair value through
PHEEHCREE other comprehensive income - - - - 570,417
AEHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 770,129 728,713 551,158 503,514 -
AN AETEM4A R Financial assets at amortised cost
BE - - - - 3,129
EZNHBsREE Held-to-maturity financial assets - - 3,091 3,119 =
EFERNMER Loans to customers and
[§sA interest receivable - 1,519 436 39 -
BRBREE Reinsurance assets 3,402 2,479 4,420 213 1,546
BT Prepayments - 1,549 1,500 180 6
HIRRITIER Pledged bank deposit - - - - 227,800
BILEREAE Deferred income tax assets 4,281 6,746 10,767 10,150 535
TEEE Current assets 1,668,361 1,684,713 1,497,393 1,693,972 | 1,312,644
TEaE Current liabilities (686,001) (226,823) (928,549) (467,330)| (323,516)
RITER Bank borrowings - (502,116) (552,774) (198,131) |  (199,966)
Riga & Insurance contracts (27,707) (33,844) (38,268) (37,659) (17,482)
BLEEHRAE Deferred income tax liabilities (48,230) (41,960) (32,614) (28,397) (24,106)
EEFRE Net assets 4,816,009 5,083,229 4,787,097 6,510,902 6,731,820
e Share capital 891,135 891,135 891,135 1,715,377 1,715,377
HivFES Other reserves 1,716,858 1,501,099 1036270 1628236 | 1,504,672
RE T Retained profits
BRI S Proposed dividend 22,971 22,971 22,971 47,781 59,726
Eih Others 2,185,045 2,666,165 2,836,721 3,119,508 | 3,452,045
REM 2 IR TER Amount recognised in other
RMERS iR 25 R comprehensive income and
BEHENEE accumulated in equity relating
BRIMNFIB to assets held for sale - 1,859 - - -
ERRIRREGES Total equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company 4,816,009 5,083,229 4,787,097 6,510,902 | 6,731,820
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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I am delighted to report the full-year results for 2018 of the
Group. The Group recorded a stable results in 2018 which is
within our reasonable expectation.

The global economic growth was affected by the escalation
of Sino-US trade disputes and retaliatory tariffs. The
continuing concerns over international trade flows and
increased volatility in the world’s financial markets posted
significant challenges to the operating environment in
the second half of 2018. The global economy recorded a
moderate pace of expansion during 2018.

We achieved a stable results in 2018. Profit attributable to
shareholders increased by 11.8% to HK$578.09 million and
basic earnings per share increased by 0.5% to 96.79 HK cents
due to the increase in total numbers of ordinary shares
issued by way of a rights issue in 2017.

Total assets of the Group stood at HK$7.3 billion,
representing a slight increase of 0.8% as compared to
HK$7.24 billion at the end of 2017.

Total assets of our banking business accounted for 67.7%
of the Group’s total assets at the end of 2018. The net asset
value per share of the Company amounted to HK$11.27 at
the end of 2018, over 70% comes from the investment in XIB.
The results contributed by banking business represented
101.9% of the Group's profit attributable to shareholders in
2018.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

The Directors have resolved to recommend a final dividend
of 10 HK cents per share for 2018, an increase of 25% as
compared with 8 HK cents per share in 2017.

Xiamen International Bank (“XIB”) (together with its
subsidiaries, Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited (“CYB”)
and Luso International Bank (“LIB”), are collectively referred
to as “XIB Group”), the most significant investment of the
Group, has contributed about 101.9% of the results of the
Group in 2018. The Group’s share of results of XIB Group
was HK$614.07 million in 2018, an increase of 19.6% as
compared to HK$513.23 million in 2017 mainly driven by
organic growth of XIB Group.

XIB Group has achieved a satisfactory growth in its
balance sheet and the total assets grew by 13.2% to
RMB806.42 billion at the end of 2018. XIB Group invested
further in building better technological financial services
infrastructure to enhance operational systems and meet the
changing needs of customers.

XIB Group continuously expanded its branch network in
Greater China region during the year. To achieve long-term
growth strategy through its extensive network in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Macau, XIB Group invested in
technology, staff engagement and operational infrastructure
in order to deliver its commitment to providing better
service experience. The market penetration and status as
a preferred city commercial bank were reinforced. XIB was
ranked 165th in total assets and 204th in Tier-one Capital in
the 2018 Top 1000 World Banks announced by The Banker in
July 2018 and was ranked 9th in comprehensive strengths
in the 2018 Top 100 China City Commercial Banks. XIB will
continue to leverage its competitive strengths and sustain
good business momentum to deliver a good income and
profit growth for its shareholders.

We have recovered the non-performing loans of micro credit
business in Mainland China of RMB8.58 million in 2018.
The allowances to total loans to customers and interest
receivable ratio was 92.1% at 31 December 2018, an increase
of 0.3 percentage points as compared to 91.8% at the end of
2017.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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The premiums growth momentum shows sign of a
turnaround in our insurance business. Gross insurance
premium increased by 8.9% to HK$60.57 million in 2018.
We have achieved an underwriting profit after charging
management expenses for underwriting business of HK$4.98
million in 2018, which was mainly due to the significant
increase in underwriting profit resulted from the decrease in
and write back of claims reserve.

To support the long-term development of our insurance
business, we have injected additional capital of HK$60
million during the year and another HK$60 million is
expected to be injected in 2019. The management team of
our insurance business will make great efforts to gradually
achieve the approved business plan.

We have begun the process to wind down the business of
trading in motor vehicles. The Group had inventories of
26 motor vehicles at the end of 2018. We have recorded
revenue from trading in motor vehicles of RMB772.84 million
and a profit after tax of RMB4.83 million respectively in 2018.

The Company is the 2nd largest shareholder of XIB and
one of the minority shareholder controllers of CYB. We
have revisited our core values and will remain focused on
strengthening our financial services investments. We have
confidence to explore new market opportunities and expand
our investments portfolio in the long term.

Looking at the year ahead, slower economic growth is
expected due to uncertainties over external economic and
geopolitical factors. We will focus on executing strategy for
organic growth of our insurance business so as to further
improve the financial performance of the Group and take
a proactive approach to explore new financial services
investment opportunities to diversify our income sources in
the challenging market conditions. Our actions will ensure
we meet the expectations of our stakeholders over the long
term.

YAN Zheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The uncertainties of Sino-US trade disputes coupled with
volatile financial markets has plagued the global economy
in 2018 and, however, its actual impact on global economy
was still not fully revealed.

Operating Results

The Group achieved a stable results in 2018 and the profit
attributable to shareholders was HK$578.09 million,
representing an increase of HK$61.2 million or 11.8%, as
compared to HK$516.89 million in 2017. Basic earnings per
share for the year was 96.79 HK cents, an increase of 0.49 HK
cents or 0.5%, as compared to 96.3 HK cents in 2017 due to
the increase in total numbers of ordinary shares issued by
way of a rights issue in 2017.

Financial Services

The financial services business of the Group includes the
provision of micro credit business in Mainland China and
the engagement of banking business through its major
associates, XIB, CYB and LIB (collectively “XIB Group”) in
Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau respectively.

The Group’s financial services business reported a profit
after tax of HK$585 million in 2018, an increase of 20.1%
as compared to HK$486.9 million in 2017. Such increase
in results was contributed from the share of results of XIB
Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Financial Services (Continued)
Banking Business

XIB Group offers comprehensive financial services in
Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau through its
well-established branch network and technological
infrastructures.

XIB Group reported a profit after tax of RMB5.36 billion,
an increase of RMB827.1 million or 18.2%, as compared to
RMB4.54 billion in 2017. Such increase was mainly driven
by the organic growth of XIB Group achieved in 2018. Net
interest income grew by 13.5% in 2018 as compared with
2017, which was achieved by growth in loan portfolios,
however, it continued to be affected by the narrowed
interest margin. Non-interest income increased significantly
in 2018 due to the turnaround in foreign exchange income
and unrealised fair value gains of financial assets.

XIB Group achieved a record high in its total assets in 2018
of over RMB800 billion with double-digit annual growth in
both loan books and customers’ deposit. At 31 December
2018, the total assets grew by 13.2% to RMB806.42 billion
as compared to RMB712.41 billion at the end of 2017. Gross
loans to customers were RMB359.86 billion, an increase of
26.3% as compared to RMB285 billion at the end of 2017.
XIB substantially grew its loans portfolio while continuing to
uphold good asset quality with non-performing loan ratio
less than 1%. Total deposits from customers were up 14.1%
to RMB537.16 billion from RMB470.66 billion at the end of
2017.

XIB will continue to increase its investment in intelligent
branches and digitalisation of banking services to cope
with the increasingly mobile lifestyle of customers. With
the new branch network set up by CYB and LIB in the more
prosperous cities in the Greater China region, XIB Group will
broaden its cross-border banking services and improve the
customer experience through innovative initiatives and new
digital banking services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Financial Services (Continued)

Micro Credit Business

Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin Micro Credit Company
Limited (“Minxin Micro Credit”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, is engaged in the provision of micro loans
to small and medium-sized enterprises and individuals in
Sanming City, Fujian Province.

At 31 December 2018, non-performing loan balances were
RMB244.12 million (equivalent to HK$278.05 million), a
decrease of 3.4% from RMB252.82 million (equivalent to
HK$303.62 million) at the end of 2017. Minxin Micro Credit
had made impairment allowances on loans and interest
receivable totalling RMB234.35 million (equivalent to
HK$266.93 million) at 31 December 2018. The allowances
to total loans and interest receivable ratio was 92.1% at 31
December 2018, an increase of 0.3 percentage points as
compared to 91.8% at the end of 2017. Minxin Micro Credit
received RMB0.04 million (equivalent to HK$0.04 million)
interest income from customers during the year, a decrease
of 86.7% as compared to RMBO0.3 million (equivalent to
HK$0.35 million) in 2017. Minxin Micro Credit had written
back impairment allowances of RMB7.08 million (equivalent
to HK$8.68 million) in 2018, as compared to RMB8.15 million
(equivalent to HK$9.38 million) in 2017. The benefit of
impairment allowances written back during the year was
offset by the derecognition of deferred tax assets, Minxin
Micro Credit recorded a loss after tax of RMB3.27 million
(equivalent to HK$4.01 million) in 2018, as compared to a
profit after tax of RMB3.77 million (equivalent to HK$4.34
million) in 2017.

Minxin Micro Credit will continue to proactively manage and
use all measures to recover its non-performing loans.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Insurance Business

Min Xin Insurance Company Limited (“Min Xin Insurance”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, underwrites
general insurance businesses in Hong Kong and Macau.

Min Xin Insurance recorded gross insurance premium of
HK$60.57 million in 2018, increased by 8.9% as compared
to HK$55.64 million in 2017. The Macau insurance business
has again outperformed the Hong Kong insurance
business during the year. The gross insurance premium of
Macau insurance business registered a 30.2% growth to
HK$53.27 million supported by high-quality bancassurance
business; however, the gross insurance premium of Hong
Kong insurance business recorded a decline of 50.4% to
HK$7.3 million which was impacted by the optimization of
underwriting strategy.

Underwriting profit before deducting management
expenses for underwriting business increased by 329.2%
to HKS$13.39 million as compared to HK$3.12 million in
2017, mainly due to the decrease in damage claims of
motor vehicle business, the decrease in major damage
claims in Macau caused by typhoon Hato and the write
back of the expected ultimate costs of claims of employees’
compensation business made in previous years. Benefitted
from the decrease and write back of claims reserve, Min
Xin Insurance recorded an underwriting profit of HK$4.98
million in 2018, as compared to an underwriting loss of
HK$5.74 million in 2017, after charging management
expenses for underwriting business.

Min Xin Insurance recorded a profit after tax of HK$8.3
million in 2018, achieved a turnaround as compared to a
loss after tax of HK$0.06 million in 2017, mainly due to the
significant increase in underwriting profit resulted from
the decrease in major damage claims in Macau and the
write back of claims reserve, and the increase in gain on
revaluation of investment properties of HK$3.15 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Insurance Business (Continued)

Min Xin Insurance continued to develop its distribution
channels and enhance employee skills and systems to
cope with clients’ needs and market conditions. Min
Xin Insurance’s reputation for service was upheld by
management and employees’ efficiency in settling typhoon-
related claims in Macau and handling motor insurance for
using Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge.

In order to support the long-term development of Min
Xin Insurance, an additional capital of HK$60 million was
injected during the year and another HK$60 million will
be injected in 2019. The management team of Min Xin
Insurance has confidence to develop new distribution
channels and new market segments and grasp new
future opportunities in Hong Kong and regionally. The
management team of Min Xin Insurance will make great
efforts to gradually achieve the approved business plan.

Trading in Motor Vehicles

Fujian Minxin Investments Co., Ltd. (“Fujian Minxin”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, among others,
engages in the trading in motor vehicles business. We have
begun the process to wind down the business of trading in
motor vehicles.

Fujian Minxin has acquired motor vehicles from
independent third parties in the aggregate of RMB375.73
million (equivalent to HK$427.96 million) in 2018. Contract
sales for trading in motor vehicles were RMB864.44 million
(equivalent to HK$984.6 million) in 2018.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Trading in Motor Vehicles (Continued)

The revenue from the sale of motor vehicles was RMB772.84
million (equivalent to HK$930.62 million) in 2018, an
increase of 9.6% as compared to RMB705.03 million
(equivalent to HK$827.11 million) in 2017. The cost of
motor vehicles sold was RMB762.55 million (equivalent to
HK$918.22 million) in 2018, an increase of 9.3% as compared
to RMB697.97 million (equivalent to HK$818.82 million) in
2017. Gross profit amounted to RMB8.49 million (equivalent
to HK$10.23 million) in 2018, an increase of 35.2% as
compared to RMB6.28 million (equivalent to HK$7.37
million) in 2017, after taking into account write down of
inventories and direct costs attributable to trading in motor
vehicles business. The profit after tax generated from trading
in motor vehicles business was RMB4.83 million (equivalent
to HK$5.82 million) in 2018, an increase of 22% as compared
to RMB3.96 million (equivalent to HK$4.65 million) in 2017.

Property Development and Investment

The property development and investment business of
the Group mainly comprises the real estate development
business and the leasing of certain investment properties
in Mainland China. In 2018, the property development and
investment business reported a loss after tax of HK$0.11
million as compared to a profit after tax of HK$0.85 million
in 2017, mainly due to an increase in the revaluation loss of
investment properties.

The market rental of office space in Fuzhou, Fujian Province
continues to pose downside risks in 2018. Although the
occupancy rate of the commercial properties and parking
spaces in Fuzhou (the “Fuzhou Property”) of the Group
improved, the monthly rental of new lettings declined
reflecting the market conditions. The Group recorded
a rental income of RMB3.92 million in 2018, up 3.4% as
compared to RMB3.79 million in 2017. At 31 December
2018, the fair value of the Fuzhou Property was HK$64.83
million, a decrease of 11.2% as compared to the fair value of
HK$73.02 million at the end of 2017. The Group recorded a
fair value loss of HK$8.19 million and a fair value loss after
deferred tax of HK$3.07 million in 2018, increased by 45.7%
and 57.4% respectively as compared to a fair value loss of
HK$5.62 million and a fair value loss after deferred tax of
HK$1.95 million in 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Investment in Huaneng Power International, Inc.
(“Huaneng A-Shares”)

At 31 December 2018, the Shanghai Composite Index
decreased by about 24.6% as compared to that at the end of
2017. However, the closing bid price per A-Share of Huaneng
Power International, Inc. (“Huaneng”) as quoted on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange increased from RMB6.17 per share
at 31 December 2017 to RMB7.37 per share at 31 December
2018. The fair value of the Huaneng A-Shares measured with
reference to the closing bid price per A-Share of Huaneng
stood at HK$570.42 million (equivalent to RMB500.81
million). In 2018, the Group recorded a gain of HK$66.9
million (2017: loss of HK$30 million) arising from the net
movement in its fair value change in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling).

The Group aimed to hold Huaneng A-Shares in the long-
term purposes. Huaneng A-Shares continues to contribute a
satisfactory dividend yield to the Group. In 2018, Huaneng
paid a final dividend for 2017 of RMBO.1 per share. The
Group recorded dividend income totalling RMB6.8 million
(equivalent to HK$8.42 million) in 2018, a decrease of 66.5%
as compared to the final dividend for 2016 of RMB0.29 per
share totalling RMB20.29 million (equivalent to HK$23.21
million) recorded by the Group in 2017.

Huaneng has announced its 2018 annual results under
the PRC Accounting Standards. Its operating revenue
and operating expenses increased by 11% respectively
as compared to those of 2017. The fuel cost has been
controlled effectively although the market coal price
remained high throughout the year. Its profit attributable
to shareholders was RMB1.44 billion in 2018, decreased by
17.4% as compared to RMB1.74 billion in 2017. Earnings
per share was RMBO0.07 for the year, an decrease of 36.4% as
compared to RMBO0.11 per share in 2017.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Net Asset Value per Share

The Group adheres to the principle of prudent financial
management and strives to maintain a healthy financial
position. Based on 597,257,252 shares in issue at 31
December 2018 (2017: 597,257,252 shares), the net asset
value per share was HK$11.27 at 31 December 2018 (2017:
HKS$10.9).

Total Liabilities to Equity Ratio and Current Ratio

At 31 December 2018, the total liabilities of the Group were
HK$565.07 million (2017: HK$731.52 million) and the ratio
of total liabilities to total equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company was 8.4% (2017: 11.2%). At 31 December
2018, the current assets and current liabilities of the Group
were HK$1,312.64 million (2017: HK$1,693.97 million) and
HK$323.52 million (2017: HK$467.33 million) respectively
with a current ratio of 4.1 (2017: 3.6).

Borrowings and Charged Assets

The Group monitors its liquidity requirement on a short to
medium term basis and arranges refinancing of the Group's
borrowings as appropriate.

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s borrowings from local
banks totalling HK$400 million, decreased by 28.2% as
compared to HK$556.88 million at the end of 2017. Based on
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan facilities,
an outstanding amount of HK$200 million will mature and
is repayable in one year and the balance of HK$200 million
will mature and is repayable within three years. The Group
will consider to arrange refinancing of the borrowings in
due course. These bank loans are in Hong Kong dollars and
subject to floating interest rates. The effective interest rate
at 31 December 2018 ranged from 3.1% to 5.2% (2017: 4.2%
to 4.3%) per annum.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Borrowings and Charged Assets (Continued)

At 31 December 2018, the secured portion of the bank
loans was secured by a three-years bank deposit of RMB200
million (equivalent to HK$227.8 million) placed by a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company in Mainland China to
collateralise the issuance of a standby letter of credit in
favour of the lending bank. The secured portion of the bank
loans at 31 December 2017 was secured by the Group’s bank
deposits of RMB41 million (equivalent to HK$49.24 million)
placed with the lending banks and the self-use office
building with a net book value of HK$9.92 million.

Save for the above, no other assets of the Group were
pledged at 31 December 2018 and 2017 respectively.

Gearing Ratio

At 31 December 2018, the gearing ratio of the Group (total
bank borrowings divided by total net assets) was 5.9% (2017:
8.5%).

Cash Position

The Group’s bank deposits are interest bearing at prevailing
market rates. At 31 December 2018, the total bank deposits
of the Group amounted to HK$1,405.37 million (2017:
HK$1,300.58 million) of which 12.7% were in Hong Kong
Dollars, 86.1% in Renminbi and 1.2% in other currencies
(2017: 18.8% in Hong Kong Dollars, 79.8% in Renminbi and
1.4% in other currencies).

Pursuant to the requirements from the Insurance Authority
(the “IA”) in Hong Kong, a subsidiary shall maintain at all
times a portion of its funds of not less than HK$16 million
in the name of IA account in bank deposits. At 31 December
2018, that subsidiary has placed fixed deposits of HK$16
million (2017: HK$16 million) in the name of IA account with
a bank in Hong Kong for fulfillment of such requirements.
That subsidiary has also maintained bank deposits of
MOP15.1 million (equivalent to HK$14.66 million) and
HK$17.1 million (2017: MOP14.1 million, equivalent to
HK$13.69 million, RMB4 million, equivalent to HK$4.8 million
and HK$9.6 million) for fulfilling certain requirements under
the Macau Insurance Companies Ordinance.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Cash Position (Continued)

Pursuant to the laws and regulations in Mainland China,
a subsidiary has placed bank deposit of RMB1 million
(equivalent to HK$1.14 million) at 31 December 2018 (2017:
RMB2 million, equivalent to HK$2.4 million) to guarantee
the application to the local court for legal actions against
default customers.

Risk of Exchange Rate Fluctuation

The Group operates in Hong Kong, Mainland China and
Macau, the exposure in exchange rate risks mainly arises
from currency fluctuation between Hong Kong Dollars and
Renminbi. As the Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi are both
under managed floating systems, the Group reviews and
monitors periodically its foreign currency exposure and
considers hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise. The Group did not enter into any
derivative contracts aimed at minimising exchange rate risks
during the year.

Capital Commitments

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s capital commitments
relating to property, plant and equipment and investment
properties amounted to HK$0.2 million (2017: HK$0.63
million).

Contingent Liabilities

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had no
significant contingent liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

At 31 December 2018, the Group had 78 employees. The
remuneration of the employees is based on individual merits
and experience. The Group also provides other benefits to
the employees including retirement benefits and medical
scheme.

The Group regards human resources as its valuable assets.
The Group offers numerous employee benefits and group
activities to our staff members. To motivate our employees
to enhance and develop their professional knowledges
and skills, the Group provides on-the-job trainings and
workshops for our employees as well as encourages them
to attend seminars and trainings with topics of relevance to
their jobs and duties funded by the Group. The Group also
organises recreational outings on topics such as Christmas
party and company trip.

CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIPS

With respect to the Group’s insurance business, we
are committed to establish a good long-term business
relationship with our brokers and agents. Insurance
products together with the pricing philosophy and other
guidelines will be provided to the brokers and agents if
needed. Our underwriters will visit our brokers and agents
regularly to maintain a good relationship. Our claims and
customer service staff will swiftly and carefully manage and
respond to our brokers’ and agents’ enquiries in relation to
the insurance products and other related matters.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

Being a responsible corporate citizen, the Group continues
to support the environmental protection initiatives to
conserve the natural resources. We place a high priority on
minimisation of the environmental impact of our business
activities by promoting energy-efficient lighting to reduce
energy consumption. In addition, we actively encourage
staff members to consume less energy, water and paper,
such as e-filings and paper recycling in our offices.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Compliance is an integral part of the Group’s corporate
governance and we are aware of the potential risks of
regulatory non-compliance. As far as the Board is aware, the
Group has complied in material aspects with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Group.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s businesses, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects may be affected by a number
of risks and uncertainties. The following key risks and
uncertainties identified by the Group are not exhaustive
or comprehensive, and there may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are
not known to the Group or which may not be material now
but could turn out to be material in the future.

Insurance and Financial Risks

The Group’s business activities expose it to a variety of
insurance risk and financial risks including market risk
(foreign exchange risk, price risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The details of the Group’s insurance
risk and financial risks exposure are set out in Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Business Risks

Banking Business

The growth of XIB Group depends on the macroeconomic
factors that affect Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau,
including the growth of gross domestic product, inflation
levels, changes in laws and regulations related to banks
and financial products, changes in macroeconomic control
policies, market liquidity, changes in credit policies, changes
in loan demands as well as progress of financial reform and
interest rate liberalisation. XIB Group may be unable to
maintain its growth rate as a result of an adverse change in
any one or more of the above factors or other factors, which
could have a material and adverse effect on its financial
condition, results of operations and prospects.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Business Risks (Continued)

Micro Credit Business

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in Mainland
China, Minxin Micro Credit is not permitted to grant any
loan to non-resident customers in Sanming City. As the
business operations of Minxin Micro Credit is restricted to
Sanming City, its growth opportunities and operating results
will depend on the stability and prosperity of economy
of Sanming City. If there is significant deterioration of the
economy in Sanming City, it may have adverse effect on the
repayment ability of its customers, and indeed, the financial
condition and results of operations of Minxin Micro Credit
may be adversely affected.

Insurance Business

The insurance industries in Hong Kong and Macau are
highly regulated. Companies carrying on insurance business
in Hong Kong and Macau must obtain authorisation from
IA and Autoridade Monetaria De Macau (the “AMCM")
respectively and are subject to the requirements imposed
by IA and AMCM from time to time. Authorisation will only
be granted to insurers when certain requirements under
the Insurance Ordinance and Macau Insurance Companies
Ordinance are met. Compliance with applicable laws,
rules and regulations may restrict the operations of the
Group’'s insurance business and requires the Group to
deploy significant resources and to devote considerable
time to such compliance efforts. New or revised laws, rules
and regulations may be introduced from time to time and
such changes may have an adverse effect on the insurance
business of the Group in Hong Kong and Macau.

The Group establishes and maintains reserves to cover
estimated losses and associated expenses for reported and
unreported claims. Reserves estimated can be affected
by various variables, such as changes in claims handling
procedures, inflation, missing claims and legislative
and regulatory changes. Most of these variables are not
directly quantifiable, particularly on a prospective basis,
and are outside the Group's control. As a result, actual
claims payments may differ significantly from the reserves
estimated, despite the use of actuarial analysis in calculating
reserves. If the Group's reserves are inadequate and need
to be increased in future periods, the results of the Group’s
insurance business would be adversely affected.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Business Risks (Continued)
Trading in Motor Vehicles

The trading in motor vehicles market is highly competitive.
Fujian Minxin faces intense competition in terms of pricing
strategy and product mix offered. The competitors may have
certain competitive advantages including stronger brand
recognition, broader product portfolio and comprehensive
after-sales service and wider geographical coverage. The
failure to remain competitive by Fujian Minxin will have a
material effect on the results of operations of the trading
in motor vehicles business. Fujian Minxin has begun the
process to wind down the business of trading in motor
vehicles.

Property Investment

The monthly rental and the occupancy rate will depend
on various factors, including but not limited to prevailing
supply and demand conditions of office building, economic
conditions of Mainland China as well as the quality of the
properties. There is no assurance that the Group is able to
look for new tenants within a short period of time or procure
new leases or renew existing leases at the prevailing market
rental.

The Group is required to revalue its investment properties
at the end of each reporting period and the change in fair
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement.
There is no assurance that changes in market conditions will
continue to generate gains or losses on revaluation at similar
level or at same level, or there will be no further decline in
the fair value of the Group's investment properties.

Huaneng A-Shares

Huaneng is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and
Huaneng A-Shares is classified as a long-term financial
asset of the Group. The dividend income from Huaneng
A-Shares is affected by various factors which are beyond
the Group's control, including but not limited to the results
of operations, liquidity position and dividend policy of
Huaneng.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Business Risks (Continued)

Huaneng A-Shares (Continued)

The Group is required to measure Huaneng A-Shares at
its fair value at the end of each reporting period and the
change in fair value is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity. The fair value
of Huaneng A-Shares is measured with reference to the
closing bid price of A-Share of Huaneng. The closing bid
price of A-Share of Huaneng may be volatile and is affected
by various factors which are beyond the Group’s control,
including but not limited to the results of operations of
Huaneng, investor sentiment or confidence in the stock
market and changes in economic conditions of Mainland
China.

PROSPECTS

The Sino-US trade disputes and geopolitical tensions
signalled slower global economic growth in 2019 and
the financial markets are likely to remain volatile in the
foreseeable future. Despite these concerns, the initiatives
promulgated by Central Government to open up financial
sector and the Greater Bay Area initiative have in turn,
created significant market opportunities in the challenging
operating conditions.

The Group will focus on improving the operations and
performance of our insurance business and executing the
strategy for proactively look for and grasp new financial
services investment opportunities in a dynamic operating
environment. The Group is confident that the banking
business will continue to deliver reasonable returns and
capital appreciation over the long term.

As an investment-based company with sound financial
position, the Group will take actions to optimise efficiency
and uphold excellence in order to make the most of the
opportunities and manage challenges. The Group will ensure
to deliver long-term value that meet the expectations of our
shareholders.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr YAN Zheng, aged 57, has been appointed as an
Executive Director, the Chairman of the Board, the Chairman
of the Executive Committee and the Nomination Committee,
and an Authorised Representative of the Company since
April 2018. Mr Yan holds a Bachelor degree in Economics
from Department of Economics of Xiamen University
and a Postgraduate degree in Economics (Economics
Management) from the Party School of the Central
Committee of C.P.C.. He is a Senior Economist in Mainland
China. He has been a member of Fujian Senior Economist
Evaluation Committee since 2006 and the deputy to the 13th
National People’s Congress since 2018. Mr Yan has extensive
experience in financial institutions management, corporate
management and capital operations. Mr Yan is currently
the Secretary of the Party Committee, the chairman of the
board of directors and the legal representative of Fujian
Investment & Development Group Co., Ltd., which is a
controlling Shareholder of the Company. He is also the
Secretary of Party Committee of Xiamen International Bank
Co., Ltd.. Mr Yan was the deputy director of the Department
of Education from 1987 to 1991, the deputy director of the
Rural Commercial Credit Department from 1991 to 1995,
and the deputy general manager and the general manager
of the International Business Department from 1995 to 1996
at Fujian Branch of Agricultural Bank of China. From 1996 to
2000, he was the vice president and the deputy secretary of
the Party Committee at Xiamen, Fujian Branch of Agricultural
Bank of China. From 2000 to 2005, Mr Yan was also the
deputy general manager, a member of the Party Committee
and the secretary of Commission for Discipline Inspection
at Fujian Branch of China Great Wall Asset Management Co.,
Ltd.. Mr Yan served as the deputy officer and a member of
the Party Committee from 2005 to 2009, and the officer, the
deputy director-general and the deputy secretary of the
Party Committee from 2009 to 2016 of Fujian Rural Credit
Union.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr WANG Fei, aged 52, has been appointed as an Executive
Director, the Vice Chairman and a member of the Executive
Committee of the Company since August 2014. Mr Wang
holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration and a
Doctorate Degree in Economics. He is a Senior Economist
in Mainland China. Mr Wang has extensive experience
in corporate development and management, financial
investment management as well as venture capital
management. He had previously assumed the positions of
the Chairman of Bk & B EREREHBER AT (Haixia
Goldenbridge Insurance Co., Ltd.*), the Deputy General
Manager of Investment Management Department of Fujian
Investment and Enterprise Corporation, the Deputy General
Manager of Development and Research Department of
Fujian International Trust and Investment Corporation, the
General Manager of Development Department, the General
Manager of Financial Investment Management Department
of Fujian Investment & Enterprise Holdings Corporation,
the Assistant to General Manager of Fujian Investment &
Development Group Co., Ltd., a Director of Xiamen King
Long Motor Group Co., Ltd. (Stock code: 600686) and the
Chairman of various venture capital companies. Mr Wang is
currently the Deputy General Manager of Fujian Investment
& Development Group Co., Ltd. and was the Director and the
Chairman of Vigour Fine Company Limited, both of which
companies are controlling shareholders of the Company.
Mr Wang is currently a Director of Industrial Securities
Co., Ltd. (Stock code: 601377), a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr Wang is also a Director of
Xiamen International Bank, a Director and the Vice Chairman
of BUPEEEXKRELSEEAMRARF (Haixia Capital
Management Co., Ltd.*), the Chairman of Fujian Innovation
Venture Investment Management Co., Ltd., the Director of
Alltrust Property Insurance Company Ltd. and the Chairman
of MEEEXKEIREESAMRAT (Fujian Property
Investment Fund Company Ltd.*).
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr CHEN Yu, aged 55, has been appointed as an Executive
Director, a General Manager, and a member of the
Executive Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Company since September 2018. He is currently
the Chairman of Min Xin Insurance Company Limited and
Fujian Minxin Investments Co., Ltd., and directors of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Chen was appointed as
an Executive Deputy General Manager of the Company in
August 2018. Mr Chen is currently the general manager, the
director and the chairman of Vigour Fine Company Limited,
which is a controlling shareholder of the Company. He is
also a director of Samba Limited, which is a substantial
shareholder of the Company. He is the chairman and the
leqal representative of &4 5 /vt % {2 73 e 1 2
{£/A2 7] (Fujian Province SMEs Credit Re-guarantee Co., Ltd.
*). Mr Chen holds a Bachelor degree in Water Conservancy
and Hydropower Engineering from Civil Architectural
Engineering Department of Fuzhou University. He is a Senior
Economist in Mainland China. He has extensive experience
in financial technology, capital operations and financing re-
guarantee.

From July 1985 to April 2000, Mr Chen worked for the Fujian
Branch of Construction Bank of China as a clerk of the
Investment Department, a clerk of the Sales Department,
the deputy manager of the Credit Department, the deputy
manager of the Sales Department, the manager of the
Business Development Department, and the section chief
of the Asset Preservation Department. From April 2000
to July 2004, he was the deputy general manager of the
Private Business Department, the director of the Credit
Management Department, and the deputy general manager
of the Administration Office of the Fuzhou Branch of China
Everbright Bank. From July 2004 to April 2007, he served
as the sub-branch manager of the Gulou Branch in Fuzhou
of China Everbright Bank. From April 2007 to December
2007, he served as the deputy director of the Science and
Technology Department of Fujian Rural Credit Union.
From February 2008 to September 2009, he worked for
Fujian Rural Credit Union as the director of the Science and
Technology Department and the general manager of the
Science and Technology Service Center. From September
2009 to June 2011, he worked for Fujian Rural Credit Union
as the director of Science and Technology Department,
the general manager of Science and Technology Service
Center, and the director of Ningde Office. From June 2011
to February 2015, he also worked for Fujian Rural Credit
Union as the director of the Science and Technology
Department and the general manager of the Science and
Technology Service Center. From February 2015 to February
2018, he served as the general manager of the Science and
Technology Department (Technology Service Center) and
the general manager of the Innovation and Development
Department of Fujian Rural Credit Union. From February
2018 to August 2018, he served as the general manager of
mEaP/ NERERBERBREME LT (Fujian Province
SMEs Credit Re-guarantee Co., Ltd. *). And, from February
2018 to September 2018, he served as the chairman and the
legal representative of 1224 EEZEEREABR A A (Fujian
Agricultural Credit Guarantee Co., Ltd. *).
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

BB E 5358 B018F 12 ARRES Mr YANG Jingchao, aged 53, has been appointed as a Non-
FEAEERKARIENITES - GLLRFAEE executive Director of the Company since December 2018.
AREHEEBARETAR ([BEREE Mr Yang is currently the general manager of the Ministry
B|) emEAPRBRKEENEEARARZ of Finance Capital Department of Fujian Investment &
BEE ZAMRAFINAERNARZIERIGE o Development Group Co., Ltd. (“Fujian Investment Group”)
BEEEERRARAETRARER SR E and the director of Vigour Fine Company Limited, both
ERB2EL B0 RAMG N EEARET of which are controlling shareholders of the Company.
EEIEE T2 o 1§ B A A B A B 4 2 6 B Mr Yang holds a Bachelor degree in International Finance
e GhAEREERMRENENEREGLEFE from School of Finance of Renmin University of China and
B4R B o a Master of Business Administration of La Trobe University.

He is an economist in Mainland China. He has extensive

experience in financial investment and capital operations.
BAREB1987F7 AE 1992F9 A Sl From July 1987 to September 1992, Mr Yang was the clerk of
EERERECFEERENR(AE [RERE the Finance Department, the Foreign Exchange Department
BEAR] R IEEBEFEERE AR (& and the Capital Management Department of /&2 & %
ERETEHSMIBEIE - INEERIEE £ E A7) (Fujian Investment Enterprise Group Corporation*)
NESEEIRIE - §19929F9 A% 1994 F (formerly known as &K & %A 7] (Fujian Investment
1A REEARERELEESEIRIE Enterprise Company*) and g2 BIfR{ZFE3 & 2 A (Fujian
FERE - B1994F 1 H E1995F 12 H - International Trust and Investment Company*)) (“Fujian
BEEIRERECEESNBIKE - 8 Investment Enterprise”) respectively. From September 1992
1995 12 4 £2003F 4 - B ETREE to January 1994, he served as the deputy officer clerk of
KECLEBER IR 2K18 - B2003F 4 the Capital Management Department of Fujian Investment
H Z=2005%9 A & 5200649 A Z 20094 5 Enterprise. From January 1994 to December 1995, he served
A BLECEIRERECESRIEESS as the deputy general manager of the Treasury Department
BB 432 o B52009F5 AF2015F1 A & of Fujian Investment Enterprise. From December 1995 to
EERERESEMRIRENIER BIKE April 2003, he served as the deputy general manager of
BB AHEETFEEREEREAFRBEIE o the International Finance Department of Fujian Investment
R2012F3 AE2015F1 BHIR - B L Enterprise. From April 2003 to September 2005 and from
BERBETEYMRAR RN RELIEKETE September 2006 to May 2009, Mr Yang served as the deputy
REA B2015F1H =2016F108 * & general manager of the Financial Investment Department
BREERERESEEGARENABLIE - of Fujian Investment Enterprise. From May 2009 to January
H2016F 108 £2018F 9 A * B ELE 2015, he served as the deputy project manager of the Gas
ENEEESMEARNTBERLEBNE L ELEES Investment Department of Fujian Investment Group and
ERReMEREEERAR(ITFERESE was the deputy general manager of H /& HEZHT LR
B ) 4a38 o 201798 A E20184F9 A i AR 727 (CNOOC Fujian New Energy Co., Ltd.*). During
M BEENSETATFESEEECER the period between March 2012 to January 2015, Mr Yang
20 EEREETRERA - HIEES A was also the general manager and legal representative of
BELEINAIEREETERR AR  BEE EEPEYRAMR AT (Fujian Zhongmin Logistics Co.,
EEREREESCERA AR NEEERES Ltd.*). From January 2015 to October 2016, he served as
BREIFAERARIZES  UNEBEEEAZG the deputy general manager of the Integrated Investment
EEREABILEZRERREESELSE - Department of Fujian Investment Group. From October 2016

to September 2018, he served as the project manager of the
Ministry of Finance Capital Department of Fujian Investment
Group and was the general manager of ‘LB ERES
Rt &= B A PR A A (Pingtan Comprehensive Experimental
Zone Financial Holding Group Co., Ltd.*) (“Pingtan Financial
Holding”). During the period between August 2017 to
September 2018, Mr Yang was also the secretary of the Party
Committee, the chairman of the board of directors and
the legal representative of Pingtan Financial Holding. He
is currently a director of each of Fujian Innovation Venture
Investment Management Co., Ltd., {8 2& EXREREE
% AR 7] (Fujian Property Investment Fund Company
Ltd.*) and @24 Bl {5 ERH AR AR] (Fujian Guoteng
Information Technology Co., Ltd.*), and also a member of
investment committee of BEEARBMEEREARLE
(Fujian Graphene Industry Investment Partnership*).
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr HON Hau Chit, aged 44, has been appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company since March 2016.
Mr Hon is currently the Managing Director of Citychamp
Dartong Company Limited (“Citychamp Dartong”, Stock
code: 600067), a company listed in the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. Mr Hon joined Citychamp Dartong in December
2004 as Deputy Managing Director and then appointed as
the Managing Director since April 2006. Mr Hon is currently
the Vice Chairman of Fujian Youth Chamber of Commerce,
the Vice Chairman of Development Committee of Fujian Real
Estate Association and a member of Standing Committee of
Fuzhou Municipal Committee of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr IP Kai Ming, aged 67, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since July 1998. He is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr Ip is
currently the Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Xiamen
International Bank and the Senior Advisor to the Board of
Directors of Luso International Banking Limited. He is a
fellow member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers
and the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, and has over 40
years’ extensive experience in banking and finance. He is
also a Director of the Macao Chamber of Commerce. Mr Ip
has a Master of Science Degree in Corporate Governance
and Directorship from the Hong Kong Baptist University.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi, aged 48, FCCA, CPA, has been
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director and
the Chairman of the Audit Committee since April 2017 and
has also been appointed as a member of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the
Company since April 2018. Mr Cheung graduated from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Arts
(Hons) in Accountancy in 1993 and the Chinese University
of Hong Kong with an Executive MBA degree in 2003.
Mr Cheung is also a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He has accumulated over 20 years of experience in
professional accounting, business consulting and corporate
management. Mr Cheung was the Chief Financial Officer and
the Company Secretary of Wuzhou International Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock code:1369). He was the Executive Director
and the Chief Financial Officer of Greenland Hong Kong
Holdings Limited (formerly known as SPG Land (Holdings)
Limited) (Stock code: 337) from 2011 to 2012 and from
2009 to 2012 respectively, the Group Financial Controller of
Nine Dragons Paper (Holdings) Limited (Stock code: 2689)
from 2007 to 2008, and the Group Financial Controller and
the Company Secretary of Tianjin Development Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 882) from 2000 to 2003, all of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr LEUNG Chong Shun, aged 53, has been appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director and a Member of
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company since May 2018.
Mr Leung is currently a partner of Woo Kwan Lee & Lo. He
has been a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong since 1991. Mr
Leung graduated from the University of Hong Kong in 1988
and obtained a bachelor’s degree in laws with honors. He
is qualified as a solicitor in Hong Kong and England and an
Attesting Officer appointed by the PRC. Mr Leung was the
Chief Representative of Woo Kwan Lee & Lo Beijing Office.
He was an Independent Non-executive Director of China
Communications Construction Company Limited (Stock
code: 1800) from January 2011 to November 2017 and
China National Materials Company Limited (Stock code:
1893) from July 2007 to May 2018, respectively. Mr Leung
is currently an Independent Non-executive Director of
SSY Group Limited (formerly known as Lijun International
Pharmaceutical (Holding) Co.,Ltd.)(Stock code: 2005), China
Coal Energy Company Limited (Stock code: 1898) and China
Medical System Holdings Limited (Stock code: 867). All the
companies mentioned above are listed on the Main board
of the Stock Exchange. Mr Leung has accumulated extensive
experiences in corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions
and commercial law and has been involved in various listing
and acquisition transactions of Chinese H Share companies
and red chip companies.

*  The English transliteration of the Chinese name in this annual report,
where indicated, is included for the information purpose only, and
should not be regarded as the official English name of such Chinese
name.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr CHAN Kwong Yu, is the Deputy General Manager and
Financial Controller of the Company. Mr Chan joined the
Company in April 2000 and was appointed as Deputy
Financial Controller in July 2004, Financial Controller in
January 2008 and Deputy General Manager in March 2014
respectively. He holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree in
Accounting, and is a Certified Public Accountant, a Fellow
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
Senior Associate of Australian and New Zealand Institute
of Insurance and Finance (ANZIIF). He is also a member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and Technical
Specialist of the Institute of Risk Management. Before
joining the Company, Mr Chan had worked for various listed
companies in Hong Kong. He is currently a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company and the Chief
Representative of the Fuzhou Representative Office of the
Company and the Director of Min Xin Insurance Company
Limited, Fujian Minxin Investments Co., Ltd. and Sanming
Sanyuan District Minxin Micro Credit Company Limited,
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr WU Xubin, joined the Company as Deputy General
Manager in June 2017. He holds a Master Degree in
Engineering, Economics and Management from University
of Oxford and he is certified as Project Management
Professional by Project Management Institute (USA) and
Construction Project Manager (Senior) by China National
Offshore Qil Corporation. Mr Wu has extensive experiences
in project management. He is currently the Director and
the Acting Chief Executive of Min Xin Insurance Company
Limited, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

Ms WENG Wei Jian, joined the Company as Group Chief
Auditor in January 2018. She graduated in the major of
finance and accounting from Minjiang University and in the
major of law from East China University of Political Science
and Law. She is a Senior Accountant in Mainland China.
Ms Weng has over 25 years’ extensive experience in risk
management and control, accounting, assets management
and financial management. She is currently the Supervisor
of Min Xin Insurance Company Limited, Fujian Minxin
Investments Co., Ltd. and Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin
Micro Credit Company Limited, all of which are wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company and a Director of Samba
Limited, the substantial shareholder of the Company. She is
a Non-executive Director of Fujian Holdings Limited (Stock
code:181), and also a Director of Land Hot (Hong Kong)
Limited, Jian Xing Finance Limited, Jian Xing International
Investments Limited, Fancy Time Investment Limited and
Sino Earn Holdings Limited respectively.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is
committed to achieving a high standard of corporate
governance for achieving business objectives and
sustainable development of the Company. The Company has
adopted the principles and code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
with the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2018 except for the following deviations:

CG Code A.4.1 provides that non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The
Non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed
for a specific term, but they are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at annual general meetings in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

CG Code A.6.7 provides that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings. CG Code E.1.2 also provides that the
chairman of the Board should attend the annual general
meeting. Further, it provides that the chairman of the
independent board committee (if any) should also be
available to answer questions at any general meeting to
approve a connected transaction or any other transaction
that requires independent shareholders’ approval. In
addition, the chairman of the Board should also invite the
chairmen of the audit, remuneration, nomination and any
other committees (as appropriate) to attend the annual
general meeting.

Mr SO Hop Shing, an Independent Non-executive Director,
Mr HON Hau Chit, a Non-executive Director and Mr YAN
Zheng, the Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director
of the Company were unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 13 June 2018 respectively,
due to other business commitments or unexpected
engagements. Mr WANG Fei, the Vice Chairman and an
Executive Director of the Company took the chair at the
aforesaid annual general meeting of the Company, was of
sufficient calibre and knowledge for answering questions at
the general meeting.

The Board will continue to monitor and review the
Company’s corporate governance practices to ensure
compliance with the CG Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition and Functions

The Board of the Company currently comprises a total of
eight members, with three Executive Directors, two Non-
executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors.

As at 31 December 2018, the composition of the Board of
the Company was as follow:

HITES FHITES BYFHITES
Executive Directors Non-executive Directors Independent Non-executive Directors
BIE (F/E) HEEA S A R
(R2018%F 4 412 HZA(T) (R20184 12 H7 AZA(T)
YAN Zheng (Chairman) YANG Jingchao IP Kai Ming
(appointed on 12 April 2018) (apponited on 7 December 2018)
T3k (BIEE) FEEZTE 3R
WANG Fei (Vice Chairman) HON Hau Chit CHEUNG Man Hoi
BRF (484CFE) 2E|E
(R2018%F 9 A 10 HZAT) (R2018%F 543 HZ(F)

CHEN Yu (General Manager)
(appointed on 10 September 2018)

H2018F 1A 1B EFerTE2FH
T

SEELAEEBTABYIERTEE B
2018 4 A1 HAEAER -

BREXEEZTEANTESNEETSEFE
B20184F 4 12 B4R

TR EECHTARNTEENEETS X
& B2018F 4 B12 AR -

RENELEEZTTAEBILIERITES
20185 A3 HMEAER -

BRAREEERIABIYIIERNTEE B
201845 6 A 13 HARALR -

BRFELEEZTANTESHRALE B
201859 A 10 HARA AR -

m

LEUNG Chong Shun
(appointed on 3 May 2018)

Since 1 January 2018, there have been a number of changes
in the Board as set out below:

Mr SZE Robert Tsai To resigned as an Independent Non-
executive Director with effect from 1 April 2018.

Mr YAN Zheng was appointed as an Executive Director and
the Chairman of the Board with effect from 12 April 2018.

Mr PENG Jin Guang resigned as an Executive Director and
the Chairman of the Board with effect from 12 April 2018.

Mr LEUNG Chong Shun was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director with effect from 3 May 2018.

Mr SO Hop Shing retired as an Independent Non-executive
Director with effect from 13 June 2018.

Mr CHEN Yu was appointed as an Executive Director and the
General Manager with effect from 10 September 2018.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition and Functions (Continued)

Mr LIU Cheng resigned as an Executive Director and the
General Manager with effect from 10 September 2018.

Mr LIU Lun resigned as a Non-executive Director with effect
from 15 November 2018.

Mr YANG Jingchao was appointed as a Non-executive
Director with effect from 7 December 2018.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Since 1 January 2018, there have been a number of changes
in the Board Committees as set out below:

Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi was appointed as a member of the
nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) and the remuneration committee of the
Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) with effect from
1 April 2018.

Mr SZE Robert Tsai To ceased to be a member of the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee with effect from 1 April 2018,
following his resignation as an Independent Non-executive
Director with effect from 1 April 2018 .

Mr YAN Zheng was appointed as the Chairman of the
Executive Committee and the Nomination Committee with
effect from 12 April 2018.

Mr PENG Jin Guang ceased to be the Chairman of the
Executive Committee and the Nomination Committee with
effect from 12 April 2018, following his resignation as an
Executive Director and the Chairman of the Board with
effect from 12 April 2018.

Mr LEUNG Chong Shun was appointed as a member of
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee with effect from 3 May 2018.

Mr SO Hop Shing ceased to be a member of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee with effect from 13 June 2018,
following his retirement as an Independent Non-executive
Director with effect from 13 June 2018.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Mr CHEN Yu was appointed as a member of the Executive
Committee and the Remuneration Committee with effect
from 10 September 2018.

Mr LIU Cheng ceased to be a member of the Executive
Committee and the Remuneration Committee with effect
from 10 September 2018, following his resignation as an
Executive Director and the General Manager with effect from
10 September 2018.

The composition of the current Board members
represents a balanced mixture of skills, experiences
and qualifications. The Executive Directors and Non-
executive Directors have extensive experiences in financial
investment and management, corporate development
and management whilst the three Independent Non-
executive Directors possess appropriate academic and
professional qualifications and have experiences in banking,
accounting and legal which would contribute to the long
term development of the Company by bringing in a wide
range of business, banking, accounting, financial and legal
experiences to the Board.

The Board has established a policy of diversity on the Board
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) aims at enhancing the Board
effectiveness and corporate governance. Board diversity
has been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service.

All appointments of the Board are based on the principle of
meritocracy. The appointees should be able to cope with and
extend the overall skills, knowledge and experience of the
Board so that the Board can operate effectively, supportive
to achieve strategic goals and the sustainable development.
Meanwhile the consideration has taken account of the
mixed objective criteria for gaining the benefits of diversity
of Board members. The Nomination Committee of the
Company will report on the issues of Board’s diversity
annually and will monitor the implementation of the policy.
The Nomination Committee of the Company will review the
policy in due course to ensure its effectiveness and also for
the discussion and proposal of the appropriate amendments
to the Board’s approval.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

The current Board consists of a diverse mixture of Board
members appropriate to the requirement of the business of
the Company.

The Company has maintained an updated list of Directors
and their roles and functions and whether they are
Independent Non-executive Directors on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. The updated biographical
details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
in this Annual Report.

The Board is responsible for determining the Group's
overall objectives and strategies, on-going monitoring and
evaluating its operating and financial performance. It also
decides on matters such as annual budgets and business
plans, major transactions, appointment of new Directors, re-
appointment or re-designation of Directors, and dividend
distribution and accounting policies. The Board has
delegated the authority and responsibility for implementing
its business strategies and managing the daily operations
of the Group’s businesses to senior management under
the supervision of the General Manager and the Executive
Committee of the Board.

Non-executive Directors (including the Independent Non-
executive Directors) have made positive and constructive
contributions to the development of the Company’s
strategies and policies through independent, constructive
and informed advices. They gave the Board and the Board
Committees on which they served the benefit of their skills,
expertise and experiences through regular attendance and
active participation.

All Directors are required to disclose to the Company their
offices held in other public companies or organizations and
other major appointments and professional qualifications.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Board meetings are normally scheduled in advance to
facilitate fullest possible attendance. Each Director is
invited to present any businesses that he wishes to discuss
or propose at such meetings. Full Board papers or Board
Committee papers will be sent to all Directors or Board
Committee members at least three days before the intended
date of the Board meeting or Board Committee meeting.
Management also supplies the Board and the Board
Committees with sufficient information and explanations
so as to enable them to make an informed assessment of
financial and other information put before the Board and
the Board Committees for review and approval. Draft and
final versions of minutes are circulated to all the Directors
and Board Committee members for their comments and
records respectively.

All Directors can access to appropriate business documents
and information about the Company on a timely basis.
Furthermore, management provides all Board members with
monthly updates which give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and
prospects in sufficient detail to enable the Board as a whole
and each Director to discharge their duties under the
Listing Rules. The Board and each Director has separate and
independent access to senior management of the Company.

Directors may choose to seek independent professional
advice at the Company'’s expense, if necessary. The Company
has arranged appropriate insurance covering on directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
them arising from corporate activities.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

B/\2018¢ ARNBIHBITTRAREETE SR In 2018, five Board meetings and one general meeting were
—RBERAREG - FME S 2 @R HfF 428k held. The individual attendance of each Director is set out
%WJZZD—F : below:
SRRE
HERIT
Number of Meeting
attended/held
EEg BRAE
Board General
Meeting Meeting
HITES Executive Directors
BLIERE (FER Mr YAN Zheng (Chairman and 2/4 0/1
EHEEETFE) Chairman of Nomination Committee)
(R2018%F 4 A 12 HZ(F) (Appointed on 12 April 2018)
TN AE (EER Mr PENG Jin Guang (Chairman and 1/1 N5 A N/A
EHEEETFE) Chairman of Nomination Committee)
(2018 4 F 12 HEHE) (Resigned on 12 April 2018)
TS (BIF/E) Mr WANG Fei (Vice Chairman) 3/5 1/1
PRI (AE4CHE) Mr CHEN Yu (General Manager) 2/2 N5 A N/A
(R20184F9 A 10 HZ(F) (Appointed on 10 September 2018)
B ST (AEACHE ) Mr LIU Cheng (General Manager) 3/3 11
(R2018F 9 A 10 HEHE) (Resigned on 10 September 2018)
FHITESE Non-executive Directors
REREA Mr HON Hau Chit 1/5 0/1
BaAREH Mr YANG Jingchao 2/2 EFAN/A
(R2018F 12 A7 HZ(F) (Appointed on 7 December 2018)
2wt Mr LIU Lun 3/3 1/1
(R20184 11 A 15 HEFHE) (Resigned on 15 November 2018)
BYEHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
ERAASTEE Mr IP Kai Ming 5/5 1/1
(FNZEE2+/E) (Chairman of Remuneration Committee)
BE KL Mr SO Hop Shing 1/2 0/1
(R20184F 6 413 HiR(F) (Retired on 13 June 2018)
SR X| S Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi 5/5 11
(BEZZE2FE) (Chairman of Audit Committee)
BB E Mr SZE Robert Tsai To 1/1 EFAN/A
(R20184F 4 A 1 HEHE) (Resigned on 1 April 2018)
2AINES £ Mr LEUNG Chong Shun 3/4 11
(R20184 5 A3 HZ(F) (Appointed on 3 May 2018)

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for determining the corporate
governance policies of the Company. During the year,
the Board developed and reviewed the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and made
recommendations as below:

To develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance, including but not
limited to the Dividend Policy, Board Diversity Policy
and Director Nomination Policy;

To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

To review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to the
directors and employees; and

To review the Company’s compliance with the code of
corporate governance and disclosure requirements in
the Corporate Governance Report.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The positions of the Chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”)
and the existing General Manager (acting in the capacity
of Chief Executive) of the Company are held by separate
individuals with a view to maintain an effective segregation
of duties regarding management of the Board and the day-
to-day management of the Group’s businesses.

One of the important roles of the Chairman is to provide
leadership to the Board to ensure that the Board acts in the
best interests of the Group. The Chairman ensures that the
Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities,
and that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the
Board in a timely manner. The Chairman has delegated the
responsibility for drawing up the agenda for each Board
meeting to the General Manager.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive (Continued)

Senior management is responsible for the day-to-day
management and operations of the Group under the
leadership of the General Manager of the Company. The
General Manager, working with the Executive Committee
and supported by senior management, is responsible
for managing the businesses of the Group, including
implementation of strategies adopted by the Board and
assuming full accountability to the Board for the operations
of the Group.

During the year, apart from regular Board meetings, the
Chairman also held meetings with the Non-executive
Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors)
without the Executive Directors present.

Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made
an annual confirmation of independence to the Company
and the independence has been assessed in accordance
with the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company is of the view that all the Independent Non-
executive Directors meet the independence guidelines
and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.

To further enhance accountability, any re-election of an
Independent Non-executive Director who has served the
Board for more than nine years will be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”). The Board will assess the independence
of the Independent Non-executive Directors and state
in the circular the reasons why the Board considers the
Independent Non-executive Directors are still independent
and the recommendation to the Shareholders to vote in
favor of the re-election of such Independent Non-executive
Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Appointment, Re-election and Removal

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company, one-third of the Directors are required to retire
from office by rotation for re-election by the Shareholders
at an annual general meeting. In addition, every Director is
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. New appointment to fill a causal vacancy is subject to
re-election by the Shareholders at the next general meeting
and new appointment as an addition to the Board is subject
to re-election by the Shareholders at the next annual
general meeting of the Company following his appointment.

Details of retirement by rotation of the Director at the
annual general meeting of the Company for the year
2019 (the “2019 AGM”) will be stated in the circular and
accompanied by the notice of the 2019 AGM.

Term of appointment of Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors of the Company have not
been appointed for a specific term as required by CG Code
A.4.1 but they are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the Company’s annual general meetings in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. In 2018, the Company
has arranged one seminar for the Directors and senior
management with topics covering the corporate financial
intelligence transformation - robotic process automation
solution.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

HRN SRR () Directors’ Continuous Professional Development
(Continued)
RER - SEELFERT SR L FE L7 The attendance records of each Director in attending the
PORNE seminars during the year is set out below:
HMEBRELR
WERFTHRE
HERNE Reading
Attending regulatory
seminars updates
HITES Executive Directors
BRIESAE (FEL Mr YAN Zheng (Chairman and v/
EHZEEETE) Chairman of Nomination Committee)
(R2018F 4 F12 HZ(F) (Appointed on 12 April 2018)
TN E (FER Mr PENG Jin Guang (Chairman and v/
EHZEEETE) Chairman of Nomination Committee)
(R20184F 4 A 12 HEHE) (Resigned on 12 April 2018)
FIELE (FIEE) Mr WANG Fei (Vice Chairman) v/
BRF A& (H4FHE) Mr CHEN Yu (General Manager) v/
(201849 F 10 HZ(E) (Appointed on 10 September 2018)
RS (A4 rE) Mr LIU Cheng (General Manager) v/
(R20184F 9 A 10 AHEHE) (Resigned on 10 September 2018)
FHITEE Non-executive Directors
PRERERA Mr HON Hau Chit v
HEER Mr YANG Jingchao v
(R2018%F 1257 HZ(F) (Appointed on 7 December 2018)
ZltmiE Mr LIU Lun v
(R20184 11 A 15 HEFHE) (Resigned on 15 November 2018)
BYEHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
ERAASLAE Mr IP Kai Ming v
(FTNZEEEE/E) (Chairman of Remuneration Committee)
ekttt Mr SO Hop Shing v
(R20184F 6 413 HiR(F) (Retired on 13 June 2018)
5RO Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi v/
(BBRZEETE) (Chairman of Audit Committee)
s BT A Mr SZE Robert Tsai To J/
(R20184F 4 A1 HEHE) (Resigned on 1 April 2018)
REINERE £ Mr LEUNG Chong Shun v
(R20184%F 5 A3 HZ(F) (Appointed on 3 May 2018)

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board has established four Board Committees, namely
Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. Each of the Board
Committees has its terms of reference with defined powers
and authorities given to the Committee members to
discharge their duties.

Executive Committee

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for implementing its business strategies and managing the
daily operations of the Group’s businesses to the Executive
Committee which currently consists of three Executive
Directors, namely Mr YAN Zheng (Chairman), Mr WANG Fei
and Mr CHEN Yu.

Mr PENG Jin Guang ceased to be the Chairman of the
Executive Committee and Mr YAN Zheng was appointed as
the Chairman of the Executive Committee, both with effect
from 12 April 2018.

Mr LIU Cheng ceased to be a member of Executive
Committee and Mr CHEN Yu was appointed as a member of
Executive Committee, both with effect from 10 September
2018.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr CHEUNG Man
Hoi. Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi has accumulated over 20 years of
experience in professional accounting, business consulting
and corporate management. The other members are Mr
IP Kai Ming and Mr LEUNG Chong Shun (appointed as a
member with effect from 3 May 2018). Mr SZE Robert Tsai To
and Mr SO Hop Shing ceased to be a member of the Audit
Committee on 1 April 2018 and 13 June 2018 respectively.

The Company has maintained the terms of reference of the

Audit Committee on its website and the website of the Stock
Exchange.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment of
external auditor, reviewing the Group’s financial information
and providing oversight of the Group’s financial reporting,
risk management and internal control system. It is also
responsible for reviewing the interim and annual results
of the Group prior to recommending them to the Board
for approval. Members of the Audit Committee meet
regularly to review financial reporting, risk management
and internal control matters and to perform such duties it
has unrestricted access to both the Company’s external and
internal auditors. Sufficient resources are provided to the
Audit Committee to discharge its duties including but not
limited to obtaining legal or other independent professional
advice (if necessary) at the Company’s expense.

During the year, the Audit Committee has performed, inter
alia, the following:

. reviewed and discussed with external auditor the
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2017
and the interim results for the six months ended 30
June 2018 and recommended to the Board for approval
respectively;

. reviewed and obtained explanation from management
on the interim and annual results, including causes
of changes from the previous accounting period,
effects on the application of new accounting policies,
and compliance with the Listing Rules and relevant
legislation;

. reviewed the activities of the Group’s internal audit
function and its findings and recommendations as laid
down in the internal audit reports;

. reviewed the internal audit plan for the year 2018;

. recommended to the Board regarding the appointment
of the Company’s external auditor;

. reviewed the audit plan for the year 2018;
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

. considered the adequacy of resources, professional
qualifications and experience of staffs of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programs and budget; and

. held meetings with the
annually, in the absence

external auditor, at least
of management, to discuss

matters relating to any issues arising from the audit

and any other matters the

auditor may wish to raise.

In 2018, the Audit Committee held two meetings and passed

one written resolution. The me
individual committee members

eting attendance records of
are set out below:

BB
HE R
Number of

Meetings

attended/held

RXBRE (FE)
ERRLE
RANES £

(R20184 5 A3 HZ(E)
s EMEEE

(R20184 4 A 1 HEHE)
BRARSE

(R20184%6 A 13 HiRIT)

Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi (Chairman)
Mr IP Kai Ming
Mr LEUNG Chong Shun
(Appointed on 3 May 2018)
Mr SZE Robert Tsai To
(Resigned on 1 April 2018)
Mr SO Hop Shing
(Retired on 13 June 2018)

2/2
2/2
1/1
1/1

1/1
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (Continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises five
committee members, the majority of whom are Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee
is chaired by Mr IP Kai Ming who is an Independent Non-
executive Director, the other members are Mr CHEUNG
Man Hoi, Mr LEUNG Chong Shun, Mr CHEN Yu and Mr CHAN
Kwong Yu.

Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi, Mr LEUNG Chong Shun and Mr CHEN
Yu were appointed as a member of the Remuneration
Committee with effect from 1 April 2018, 3 May 2018 and 10
September 2018 respectively.

Mr SZE Robert Tsai To, Mr SO Hop Shing and Mr LIU Cheng
ceased to be a member of the Remuneration Committee
with effect from 1 April 2018, 13 June 2018 and 10
September 2018 respectively.

The Company has maintained the terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee on its website and the website
of the Stock Exchange. The Remuneration Committee is
responsible for making recommendations to the Board
regarding the Company’s remuneration policy, and the
formulation and review of the specific remuneration
packages of all Executive Directors and senior management
of the Company.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has
performed, inter alia, the following:

. reviewed the proposal for salary adjustments to its
employees and recommended the same to the Board
for approval;

. reviewed the proposal for payment of bonus to senior
management and recommended the same to the
Board for approval;

. reviewed the Directors’ fees for the year of 2018 and
recommended the same to the Board for approval; and

. considered the Director’s fee for the newly appointed
Director and recommended the same to the Board for
approval.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

In 2018, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting and
passed four written resolutions. The meeting attendance
records of individual committee members are set out below:

BB
o)
Number of

Meetings

attended/held

ERERLE (FE)
RXUFEAE

(R20184 4 F1HZEF)
RANES £

(R20184 5 A3 HZ(E)
s EMEEE

(R20184 4 A 1 HEHE)
BRARSE

(R20184%6 A 13 HRIT)
BRF A4

(R20184F 9 A 10 HZ(TE)
St

(R20184 9 A 10 HEFHE)
BREEF o

ERESZHTMFBEIR@EREERE - I
HINAEBEGAETBERERTEI0- BHE
2018F 12 A31H » KRB I FahER
AERNHES RS HESTIWT :

Mr IP Kai Ming (Chairman) 11

Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi TE B N/A
(Appointed on 1 April 2018)

Mr LEUNG Chong Shun ANiE A N/A
(Appointed on 3 May 2018)

Mr SZE Robert Tsai To 1/1
(Resigned on 1 April 2018)

Mr SO Hop Shing 0/1
(Retired on 13 June 2018)

Mr CHEN Yu NE A N/A
(Appointed on 10 September 2018)

Mr LIU Cheng 11
(Resigned on 10 September 2018)

Mr CHAN Kwong Yu 11

Details of the remuneration of Directors are disclosed
on an individual basis and are set out in Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. The
remuneration payable to senior management of the
Company by band for the year ended 31 December 2018
was as follows:

AE

Number of

Individuals

75 #£1,000,001 7T - /5% 1,500,000 7T HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 2
75 #£1,500,001 7T - /B %5 2,000,000 7T HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1
75 #£ 3,500,001 7T - /5 %5 4,000,000 7T HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 1
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (Continued)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises four committee
members. The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr
YAN Zheng, the Chairman of the Company, and the other
members are three Independent Non-executive Directors,
Mr IP Kai Ming, Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi and Mr LEUNG Chong
Shun.

Mr YAN Zheng was appointed as the chairman and a
member of the Nomination Committee and Mr PENG Jin
Guang ceased to be the chairman and a member of the
Nomination Committee, both with effect from 12 April 2018.

Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi and Mr LEUNG Chong Shun were
appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee with
effect from 1 April 2018 and 3 May 2018 respectively.

Mr SZE Robert Tsai To and Mr SO Hop Shing ceased to be a
member of the Nomination Committee with effect from 1
April 2018 and 13 June 2018 respectively.

The Company had adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) during the year for the purpose of
nominating suitable candidates to join the Company’s
directorship for the Company’s business needs and
development. The nomination and selection had delegated
to the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
will review the structure, size and composition of the Board
and to identify suitable individual by assessment of a
number of factors, including but not limited to, reputation
for integrity, business experience and accomplishment,
professional qualification, skills, contribution in time
commitment and relevant interests, enhancement in
board diversity and the independence of independent
non-executive directorship. In regarding to ensure the
independence of independent non-executive director, the
proposed candidate will be required to provide a declaration
in respect of the information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51(2) (h) to (w) of the Listing Rules, or an
appropriate negative statement to that effect, in addition to,
a confirmation of the independence under Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules by the proposed candidate (including his/her
immediate family members).
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Nomination Committee will call a meeting for
considering the suitable candidates who are then be
nominated to the Board for it to consider and make
recommendations to shareholders for election as Directors
at general meetings or for the Board’s approval in filling
casual vacancies. The Nomination Committee may, as it
considers appropriate, nominate a number of candidates
more than the number of directors to be appointed or re-
appointed at a general meeting, or the number of casual
vacancies to be filled. In case of more candidates than
the vacancies available, and the “gross-vote” method will
be used to determine who shall be elected as a Director,
shareholder proposed resolutions shall therefore take the
same form as the resolutions proposed for the candidates
recommended by the Board. The Nomination Committee will
monitor and review the Nomination Policy as appropriate
to ensure its relevance to the Company’s needs and reflects
both current regulatory requirements and good corporate
governance practice.

The Company has maintained the terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee on its website and the website of
the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board,
identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board, and assess the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has performed,
inter alia, the following:

reviewed the structure, size and composition
(including but not limited to the skills, knowledge and
experiences) of the Board in accordance with the Board
Diversity Policy and reported to the Board annually;

. reviewed and assessed the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors;

reviewed and recommended to the Board for
appointment of new Directors; and

reviewed and recommended to the Board for the
proposed re-election of the retiring Directors at the
annual general meeting held in 2018.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

In 2018, the Nomination Committee held one meeting and
passed six separate written resolutions, amongst which
five written resolutions were concerning matters related
to change in Directors. The meeting attendance records of
individual committee members are set out below:

BERE

HE BT
Number of
Meetings
attended/held

BRIELE (F/F)

(R2018%F 4 H 12 HZE(F)
TR E

(R20184F 4 A 12 HEHE)
RXBLE

(R2018F 4 F1HZEF)
ERAALE
2EIB 54

(R 201845 A3 HZ(E)
B EE

(R20184F 4 A1 HEHE)
BRARSTE

(R 201846 A 13 HiR(E)
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BRK) -
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Mr YAN Zheng (Chairman) NiE A N/A
(Appointed on 12 April 2018)
Mr PENG Jin Guang 1/1

(Resigned on 12 April 2018)

Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi ANiE A N/A
(Appointed on 1 April 2018)

Mr IP Kai Ming 1/1

Mr LEUNG Chong Shun N 3E A N/A
(Appointed on 3 May 2018)

Mr SZE Robert Tsai To 11
(Resigned on 1 April 2018)

Mr SO Hop Shing 0/1

(Retired on 13 June 2018)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE

Subsequent to Mr PENG Jin Guang’s resignation as
an Executive Director, Mr. PENG ceased to act as an
authorised representative of the Company (the “Authorised
Representative”) under Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules with
effect from 12 April 2018.

Mr YAN Zheng was appointed as an Authorised
Representative in place of Mr PENG with effect from 12 April
2018. Following the appointment of Mr YAN, Mr. IP Kai Ming
was appointed as an alternate Authorised Representative to
Mr YAN with effect from the same day.

The Authorised Representative of the Company, namely
Mr YAN Zheng, Ms HAU Po Ping and Mr IP Kai Ming (as an
alternate Authorised Representative to Mr YAN).
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
AND SHARE INTERESTS

Compliance with Model Code

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in Appendix
10 - Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) to the Listing Rules.
All Directors of the Company have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code and the Company’s code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions throughout the year ended
31 December 2018.

Share Interests of Directors

Details of Directors’ interests in shares of the Company as
at 31 December 2018 have been disclosed in the section
headed “Directors’ Interests” in the Report of the Directors of
this Annual Report.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements on a going concern basis, with
supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary. The
Company'’s financial statements are prepared in accordance
with the Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622, Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”)
and also the accounting principles and practices generally
accepted in Hong Kong. Appropriate accounting policies
are selected and applied consistently; judgements and
estimates made are prudent and reasonable. A statement
by the external auditor, KPMG, about their reporting
responsibilities is included in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report”in this Annual Report.

The Directors endeavor to ensure a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Company ‘s position
and prospects in annual reports, interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required
under the Listing Rules and other statutory requirements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board, with the assistance of the Audit Committee, has
the responsibility for maintaining good and effective risk
management and internal control system of the Group. In
2018, the Board, through the Audit Committee and Internal
Audit Department, conducted an annual review of the
Group’s risk management and internal control system. The
annual review was co-ordinated by the Group’s Internal
Audit Department, and the Internal Audit Department
has carried out independent examination and other post-
assessment work on the review process and results after
self-assessment by senior management and each business
and operational unit. The annual review of risk management
and internal control system for the year 2018 has been
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board, details
of which as set out in the “Risk Management and Internal
Control Report”in pages 59 to 65 of this Annual Report.

The internal control system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss; to manage rather than completely
eliminate the risk of system failure; and to assist in the
achievement of the Group’s objectives.

Internal Audit plays a major role in monitoring the internal
control of the Group and reports regularly to the Audit
Committee and the General Manager and has direct
access to the Board. It has unrestricted access to review all
aspects of the Group’s activities and internal controls. It
also conducts special audits on areas of concern identified
by the Audit Committee or senior management. The Audit
Committee has free and direct access to the Head of Internal
Audit Department without reference to the Chairman or
senior management.

Ms WENG Wei Jian was the Chief Auditor of the Company
since 31 January 2018.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE

The Group is also committed to social responsibilities
and its philosophies of sustainable development, and
has conducted an annual review on the efforts and
achievements made by the Group for environmental, social
and governance issues in 2018, details of which as disclosed
in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on
pages 66 to 88 of this Annual Report, which also serves as
a platform for communication with all equity owners by
making responses to the major concerns of all stakeholders
in our efforts to facilitate mutual understandings.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees paid or payable to the external auditor for statutory
audit services, attestation work (in relation to interim
financial statements issued by the Company), professional
services for special engagement, and tax and consultancy
services were HK$1,813,000, HK$273,000, HK$346,000 and
HK$114,000 respectively for the year 2018.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for Financial Statements

The reporting responsibilities of KPMG to the Shareholders
are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages
102 to 112 of this Annual Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary. Ms HAU Po Ping (“Ms Hau”) is the
Company Secretary and an Authorised Representative of
the Company, she is the full time employee of the Company.
The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the
General Manager on the Board governance matters, and
is responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures
are followed, and for facilitating communications
among Directors as well as with the Shareholders and
the management. During the period under review, Ms
Hau undertook over 15 hours of professional training to
update her skills and knowledge. The Company Secretary
has duly complied with the relevant professional training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening a General Meeting (“GM”)

The Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the members having a right to vote at
general meetings may request Directors of the Company to
call the GM of the Company.

The request:

(@) must state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with at the GM;

(b) may consist of several documents in like form;

()  may include the text of a resolution that may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at the GM;

(d) must be authenticated by the person or persons
making it; and

(e) may be sent to the Company in hard copy form or in
electronic form.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will notify the
Directors to proceed to convene the GM within 21 days from
the date of the receipt of the request. Such GM must be held
on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice
convening the GM.

If the Directors fail to convene the GM within 21 days from
the date of the receipt of the request, the Shareholders
who requested the GM, or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene the GM. Any GM so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of three months from the date
of the receipt of the request.

The GM so convened by the Shareholder(s) concerned shall
be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as
that in which meetings are to be convened by the Directors.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Convening a General Meeting (“GM”) (Continued)

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the Shareholder(s)
concerned by reason of the failure of the Directors
duly to convene a meeting shall be reimbursed to such
Shareholder(s) by the Company.

For further details, the Shareholders are kindly requested to
refer to Sections 566 to 568 of the Companies Ordinance.

Moving a Resolution at an Annual General Meeting
(“AGM)S)

The Shareholders may request the Company to give, to
shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice of
the AGM, notice of resolution that may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at the AGM. Such Shareholders
must represent:

(@) at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
Shareholders who have a right to vote on the
resolution at the AGM to which the requests relate; or

(b) at least 50 Shareholders who have a right to vote on
the resolution at the AGM to which the requests relate.

The request (i) may be sent to the Company in hard copy
form or electronic form; (ii) must identify the resolution of
which notice is to be given; (iii) must be authenticated by
the person or persons making it; and (iv) must be received
by the Company not later than 6 weeks before the AGM to
which the request relates; or if later, the time at which notice
is given of that meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Moving a Resolution at an Annual General Meeting
(“AGM”) (Continued)

In addition, the request will be verified with the Company’s
share registrar and upon their confirmation that the request
is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will notify the
Directors for including the resolution in the agenda for the
AGM.

The Company is required to give notice of the resolution
at the Company’s own expense to each shareholder of the
Company entitled to receive notice of the AGM in the same
manner as the notice of AGM; and at the same time as, or as
soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of AGM.

For further details, the Shareholders are kindly requested to
refer to Sections 615 and 616 of the Companies Ordinance.

Circulation of Statement at General Meetings

If the Shareholders would like to express their views to
a matter mentioned in a proposed resolution or other
business to be dealt with at the GM, they can submit a
written statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to that matter or business and request the Company
to circulate their written statement to the Shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the GM. Such Shareholders must
represent:

(@) at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
Shareholders having the relevant right to vote at the
meeting; or

(b) at least 50 Shareholders having the relevant right to
vote at the meeting.

The Shareholders having the right to vote mean (i) in
relation to a proposed statement concerning a matter
mentioned in a proposed resolution, a right to vote on that
resolution at the meeting to which the requests relate; and
(ii) in relation to any other statement, a right to vote at the
meeting to which the requests relate.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Circulation of Statement at General Meetings (Continued)

The request to circulate a statement (i) may be sent to
the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form; (ii)
must identify the statement to be circulated; (iii) must be
authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (iv)
must be received by the Company at least 7 days before the
meeting to which the request relates.

The request will be verified with the Company ‘s share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the request
is proper and in order, the Company will circulate the
statement to each shareholder of the Company entitled to
receive notice of the meeting provided that:

(@) if the request relates to the AGM and the proposed
statement is received in time to enable the Company
to send a copy of the statement at the same time as
it gives notice of AGM. Otherwise, the Shareholders
concerned have deposited a sum reasonably sufficient
to meet the Company’s expenses in circulating the
statement submitted by the Shareholders concerned
not later than 7 days before the AGM;

(b) if the request relates to the GM (other than the
AGM), the Shareholders concerned have deposited
a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in circulating the statement submitted by the
Shareholders concerned not later than 7 days before
the GM.

For further details, the Shareholders are kindly requested to
refer to Sections 580 to 582 of the Companies Ordinance.

Further, the Shareholder may propose a person other
than a retiring Director of the Company for election as a
Director of the Company at the GM. The procedures for
such proposal are available on the website of the Company
(www.minxin.com.hk).

Putting Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board'’s
attention in writing together with his/her contact details
addressing to the registered office of the Company or by
email to mxhl.enquiry@minxin.com.hk for the attention of
the Company Secretary.
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SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company adopted a Shareholders Communication Policy
aims at enhancing the efficiency of communication amongst
the Shareholders, the Board and senior management of
the Company through various official channels so that the
Shareholders can access the Company’s public information
equally in a timely manner.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted the dividend policy (the
“Dividend Policy”) which has set out the principle and
procedures for the payment of dividend to Shareholders to
provide stable and sustainable returns to the Shareholders
and to share the profits of the Company with the
Shareholders. The Board may decide from time to time to
declare interim dividend or to recommend the payment
of final dividend and special dividend to the Shareholders
which is subject to the Shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting. The Company intends to provide the eligible
Shareholders with approximately 10% to 20% of the
Group's consolidated profit for the year attributable to the
Shareholders as dividend, the remaining consolidated profit
for the year will be used for the future development and
operations of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company’s Articles of Association is posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. There has
been no change during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) has the overall
responsibility for maintaining the effectiveness of internal
controls, risk management systems, and reviewing their
effectiveness to safeguard shareholders’ investments and
Group’s assets. The senior management of the Group is
charged with the responsibility to design and implement
an internal control and risk management system which can
provide a reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss, and also manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.

During the year under review, the Group complies with the
above Principles and Code Provisions C.2.1 to C.2.5 and
Recommended Best Practices C.2.6 and C.2.7 in its internal
control and risk management practices. The details are
summarized as follows:

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Group has established a risk management framework
to define its risk management objectives, risk appetite,
risk monitoring and risk reporting mechanism to enable
the Group and its subsidiaries to identify, assess, monitor
and manage material risks which are reported to senior
management, Audit Committee and the Board. The
ultimate goals of this framework are to enhance the return
to shareholders, fulfill the company’s commitment to
stakeholders and preserve the Group's reputation.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK AND
“THREE LINES OF DEFENSE” MODEL

The Group adopts a systematic risk management approach
to implement a top-down management mechanism.
The current risk management organizational structure
includes the Board of directors, Senior management,
business divisions, the risk management department, the
compliance management department and the internal audit
department.

The Board of Directors (or Audit Committee) is the
highest steering committee and has the responsibility
of determining the risk appetite and maintaining an
effective risk management and internal control systems.
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RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK AND
“THREE LINES OF DEFENSE” MODEL
(Continued)

«  The Group’s senior management is responsible for
developing risk strategies, risk policies, risk management
frameworks, promoting risk management culture as well
as maintaining the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems.

«  With the assistance of the risk management department
and the compliance department, the Group’s senior
management is responsible for developing risk
strategies, risk policies, risk management frameworks,
promoting risk management culture as well as
maintaining the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems.

- The internal audit conducts independent assessments
on the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems through audit and internal audit
activities.

The Group and its affiliated subsidiaries implement
comprehensive risk management through embedding risk
control measures into their daily operations and business
processes.
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RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK AND
“THREE LINES OF DEFENSE” MODEL

FEXBIFIREESEHBETLRREENE —BIR - BEEXBHRE
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P B IR ARFI BRI AL - REFIRPEESABRREARARE R KRB
RITENEREM -

Business divisions serve as the first line of defense to manage the risk
in each business units within the Group. They are responsible for the
execution process of business development while complying with the
Group’s risk appetite and also assume the primary responsibility of risk
identification, assessment and control. They also formulate departmental
rules and regulations, standardize business processes, conducting self-
assessed risk and compliance reviews on a regular basis; reporting risk
management and compliance information to the Risk Management
Department and the Compliance Management Department, supporting
and cooperating with them in conducting and monitoring related
assessments. The respective department heads and senior management
of the Group are responsible for the implementation of risk management
strategies and solutions.

E—Ef &
FIRST LINE OF DEFENSE
B A&

SECOND LINE OF DEFENSE

FERERBNEREERREREENE _BHR HEEARREIER
BEMART REMRIEAMRBIZEE - WHEERNELDRERREEARER
REFRE  TROBEE BN ZESGNEETGER-

The Risk Management Department and the Compliance Management
Department act as the second line of defense and are responsible for the
monitoring of significant risks and its respective mitigation progress while
addressing any exceedance over the Group’s risk tolerance and reporting
its findings to the senior management, audit committee and the Board of
Directors on a regular basis.

E=EM AR
THIRD LINE OF DEFENSE

FaHEBPT - BREAEEZIEINBETHE  ERE=BIHR EEFS
NEZZESRE THEEANRERERGNACIEE - BRIEETRET
B BCEESL -

The audit units, including internal audit and external auditor, act as the
third line of defense. The Board of Directors and its audit committee
are responsible for leading the Group in evaluating the adequacy and
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system, requesting for
enhancements where appropriate.
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RISK APPETITE FRAMEWORK

A Group-wide risk appetite system is formulated across the
whole organization and base itself on five core principles:
securing capital adequacy; maintaining a strong liquidity
position; preserving reputation for the Group; complying
with laws and regulations; matching between risks and
returns. A risk appetite statement report summarizes the
key risk indicators and risk limits which are based on the
defined risk appetites. The Group’s risk appetite statement
report is presented to the senior management for review
and subsequently submitted to the Board for approval on an
annual basis.

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS
The Group adopts the following risk management steps:

Step 1: Risk Identification — identify the significant sources
and types of risks faced by the Group and affiliated
subsidiaries.

Step 2: Risk Analysis — Evaluate the existing risks;

Step 3: Risk Monitoring — Basing on the significant risk
and risk appetite, set up key risk indicators for
monitoring all identified material risks and update
the change of material risks on a regular basis;

Step 4: Risk Reporting — Summarize and analyze the results
of the risk management and report the results to the
senior management and the Board. The report also
outlines the following items:

- Implementations of key risk indicators and risk
limits;

. Risk assessment.
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SIGNIFICANT RISKS FACED BY THE GROUP

According to the Group’s risk management process, the
following types of risks which are significant to the Group in
2018:

INVESTMENT RISK

The Group’s primary long-term investment focuses on
Xiamen International Bank (XIB). In respect of long-term
investment risk management, the main measures are
to nominate directors to the board of XIB and to closely
monitor its financial performance.

INSURANCE RISK

The risk under an insurance contract is the possibility that
the insured event occurs and the uncertainty on the amount
of the resulting claim. The Group manages the insurance
risk through its underwriting strategy, adequate reinsurance
arrangements and claims handling.

CREDIT RISK

The Group’s sources of credit risk are primarily attributable
to micro credit loans to customers, reinsurance company’s
credit risk, default risk of bond investment and settlement
risk of motor trading. Regarding to the micro credit loans
business, Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin Micro Credit
Company ceased all new micro credit loan businesses and
took aggressive actions to recover non-performing loans.
To control the credit risk of the reinsurance company
undertaken by the Min Xin Insurance Company (Min Xin
Insurance), Min Xin Insurance carefully chose reinsurance
companies possessing good credit status as reinsurance
service providers. For bond investments, the Group mainly
invests in bonds with A- or above credit ratings. To better
control the counterparty risk on motor trading business, the
Board and its senior management established a risk limit on
settlement risk to define the maximum credit risk exposure
that the Group is willing to undertake in the motor trading
transactions.
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MARKET RISK

Market risk refers to the risk of losses in positions arising
from adverse movement in interest rate, market prices and
other related market price factors. The Group’s market risk
management objective is to enhance shareholder’s value
while maintaining risk exposures within acceptable limits.

OPERATIONAL RISK

Operational risk refers to the risk of loss caused by
inadequate or failed internal procedures, employees,
information systems, as well as external events. The
operational risks can be mainly controlled through effective
segregation of duties and the establishment of formal rules
and regulations for key processes.

INSIDE INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURE

The Group has formulated the “Insider Information
Disclosure Policy” to define the definition of insider
information, the requirements for the release of insider
information, the roles and responsibilities of the
Board and senior management for insider information
management, the internal control procedures for the public
communication. The announcement of the release of insider
information shall be submitted to the Board or an authorised
officer for approval.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group’s internal controls are designed to improve the
operational efficiency, prevent misuse of the assets and
process without proper authorization, maintain proper
accounting records to deliver a true and fair view for
the financial statements, and comply with the laws and
regulations.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL REVIEW

The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee reviewed
the internal control system of the Group and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2018 on the aspects of
financial, operational, compliance and risk management
functions, details of which are summarized below:

In 2018, the Board reviewed the Group’s risk management
framework which contained risk management objectives,
risk appetite system, risk monitoring and risk reporting.

In 2018, the Board of directors was of the opinion that the
Group had been improving its risk management and internal
control systems which standardized the risk management
practices in establishing the risk appetite, risk indicators, risk
limits and risk monitoring.

The Group will target to meet the standard of best practices
stated in the Provision Code by strengthening its force on
the implementation of the risk management and internal
control framework.
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ABOUT THIS ESG REPORT

This “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
(“ESG Report”) serves as a review on the efforts and
achievements made by Min Xin Holdings Limited (the
“Group”, “Min Xin Holdings” or “we") for environmental, social
and governance issues in 2018. This ESG Report discloses the
Group's practice for its commitment to social responsibilities
and its philosophies of sustainable development. As a
platform for communication with all equity owners, this
ESG Report also makes responses to the major concerns
of all stakeholders in our efforts to facilitate mutual
understandings.

This ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with
Appendix 27 of the Main Board Listing Rules “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide”, which covers
the period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018. The
entities covered in this ESG Report mainly include Min Xin
Holdings and its three subsidiaries.

All information in this ESG Report comes from surveys,
assessments and interviews, government information
available to the public and official documents or statistics
of the Group. The Group undertakes that this ESG Report
contains no false records, misrepresentations or material
omissions, and is committed to ensure the fairness,
truthfulness and completeness of this ESG Report.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
COMMUNICATION AND MATERIALITY

ASSESSMENT

The Group emphasizes the importance of trust and support
of all sectors of society to the sustainable development
of the Group. Accordingly, the Group attaches great
importance to maintaining communication and interaction
with the stakeholders by establishing diversified platforms

and mechanisms of communications. The Group has
been actively collecting opinions and suggestions from
government and regulatory authorities, the Shareholders,
employees, suppliers, customers and the general public
so as to meet their expectations and demands as far as

General meeting:
Regular reporting;
Direct
communication.

possible.
@A Communication HASEBEERR [E] fE £ [ 8
Stakeholder Channel Concern and Demand Response and Feedback
BEREE®E GREE: HORRE S BB EXRBRE
B TEE B ER - BT EMER - BmEBERILIE
Government AT © Carry out its operation and pay | #EASEZRE °
and regulatory |Compliance matters |taxin accordance with laws; Subject to tax examination;
authorities management; Support economic development. |Comply with local regulations
Actively paying tax; and commercial ethnics, and
Complying with make contribution to local
policies. economic development.
PRER RERKRE : BRTCEEBGSHENNEZ  RE |BHRSLLEEE - BRHEE
Shareholders | EBiRIER T4 : BABARLZ R REIRKF  AREEBIER
BEBR o BMRCEGEHRENTE &H |BY BRLANKRAEED

B KR BRI -

Ensure sustainable income and
safe investments;

Ensure the completeness,
truthfulness, timeliness and
validity of corporate information
disclosure.

W BUNMBEESHHEE
RRRE RENTSEER
BRHIE o

Gradually enhance its operating
management, governance and
risk management to deliver
continuous and steadily

rising investment return over
the long term; establish a
scientific, reasonable and
efficient corporate governance
framework to regulate and
refine information disclosure
system.
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ASSESSMENT (Continued)
EREA Communication HASE BEER R B fE B [ B8
Stakeholder Channel Concern and Demand Response and Feedback
BT BIRE: AFPBEFREAEROEE 2 | RENIERR: T5ONHE
Employees EHEMERZ BT IIERR  FrBfEEN [ RETBR  A8Z 5t
HEER: FRRFRE - X B -
EEEE - Fair competition and prospect Good working place;
Town hall meeting; of promotion and development; Comprehensive systems of
Regular performance |Healthy and safe working place; remuneration, benefits and
assessment; Direct Security of remuneration and promotion; Organize various
communication; benefits. cultural and recreational
Team-building activities.
activities.
BT 2EERAREE (AT - A6 AEMRITEF R CRBERIE) LRBH
Suppliers FrF: ZERBAER |HiELE- EREREF
B FHFEZ KT |Fair, open and just bidding; Develop Administrative Rules
fly o Committed to integrity. on Procurement to regulate
Comprehensive procedures relating to bidding
management and business solicitation;
of bidding and
tendering; Carry
out projects
in accordance
with contracts;
Assessment of
suppliers regularly.
BP mEEREE SmENEMMRE  BEFELHE |[WEFREERSE —1RE - 17
Customers BRI © BEENSHRRGIRE - HERMENEREBE RS
Carry out Provide quality products and I 27 IR E ) | E AR EE B
investigation services to protect various rights | &7 ©
of customer of customers and consumers. Put customers’ satisfaction as
satisfaction; Maintain first priority in providing quality
interactions and products and services, and
other ways of develop regulatory systems for
communication with protection of information and
our customers. privacy.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND

(%) COMMUNICATION AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT (Continued)
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Stakeholder Channel Concern and Demand Response and Feedback

HEAR HEEHE BE2ENGES  AEREM |[BIERERY  MBRLREKEE

General public | RA#z)EE) gHE- BEER ©

PEEM-

Media coverage,
Charity activities,
Corporate website.

To be proactive in corporate
social responsibility by actively
participating in charity activities.

Provide jobs and expand
community investment.

AEERE [RIR - e RERHmSEHES] B
o AABBE RN A EE R MG
HAE - BBURTRE - TEERS AN
LHEFR - RS RS ANE— R
RARRE - 8 REARENEHEHEME
et RANRRL TREREEHES AT HE
ERIIFNBIREEARMMENEE T -

AP TETZREREAS  HELEN
NEFT RS WA S EEETIRARF N
MR SEEESREATREEALER
SEXBHNEAEBLERE  ®BETAKH
ERBE #HekEaTENEREZERE
e (@ EBMEEBREEMR) - WA
T+ REZZE (WE2: tREEHEMN
) BESEHRIERE L@ RERR
H¥E5l | MAEREESI K ERFE LR
TARERERZEEANFERSPE R T
EE - AGHEMENEE -

The Group organized and implemented various surveys
on importance for internal and external stakeholders in
accordance with the relevant guidelines as contained in
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”.
Through these efforts, we refined the relevancy of responses
in this ESG Report as we gained a better understanding of
expectations and needs of stakeholders and strengthened
our communication with various stakeholders. These surveys
also demonstrate our activeness in promoting sustainable
development and the efforts we made.

These surveys were conducted mainly by questionnaires,
interview, group discussions as necessary and targeted
calls. We considered priorities of major concerns of the
stakeholders and materiality of these concerns to our
businesses to develop the materiality matrix of the Group
in the areas of environmental, social and governance (as
shown in Chart 1: Materiality Matrix). We also identified ten
major concerns (as shown in Chart 2: Ten Major Concerns).
Min Xin Holdings will make realistic and targeted responses
to the ten major concerns so decided in this Annual Report
in accordance with the relevant guidelines and requirements
contained in “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide”.
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EEMZEERE Materiality Matrix

E REE R = REBHEN
1 Air and greenhouse gas emissions
E 5IKEE IR
2 Sewage treatment
Es
E,

LHFIA  SRREE
Es

—

Land use, pollution and restoration
BEEYEE

Waste treatment

AEIRGE A

Energy use

KERE A

Water use

H i [REHE A

Use of other raw materials
EEAEK

Composition of employees

BT #H BB RET

{Eﬁ & % T ,:%‘.;E Remuneration packages and benefits of the employees

BEEFEERLT S
Employment and Occupational health and safety

labour practices EEEREEE
Development and training of employees

B 1E & T Raathiss T

Preventing child and forced labour

HIER LR e
Suppliers by geographical region
it P O v BURFIRIE - R RIRIS AT
S{’\Bg‘?g Eh EE Selection of suppliers and assessment of their products and services
upply chain AR 45 TR R

ma nagement Assessment of working conditions of the suppliers

HERIRRIERETE

Environmental protection assessment of the suppliers
ERMREHERELZ S

Health and safety relating to products and services
EEmEE

Customers satisfaction

BIBE SN HEE

Acceptable marketing and promotion

HETE AN ENE

Observing and protecting intellectual property rights

B ERE ME MBI

Quality assurance and product recall
REHBEERRALE

Protection of consumer data and privacy
F7IEBRRR ~ BV - RGEROERE

Preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering
REBBER - fahe KRR R

Anti-corruption policies and measures and whistle-blowing
MEBHE ML ENZEETER - AL ER RS
Communication, assessment and development plans relating to the impact of business to the
local community

HEIRE

Community investment

EmEME
Product responsibility

Anti-corruption

HtERE

Community investment

B @ABMRAF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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Materiality to business development of the Company
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There being no material change in the principal activities of
the Group and operating environment in 2018, the below

Ten Major Concerns are the same as 2017:

+ KREE3#%E Ten Major Concerns

BF FTEHE TREERE
No. Major Areas Ten Major Concerns
: He-Emal SI8EFmEE
Social-Product responsibility S$18 Customers satisfaction
) HE-ERESEIER S11 & B 3 & RIEd
Social-Employment and labour practices S11 Development and training of employees
H 588 4mm =0 =
NP SI4BIERTIEIE - R RIS AP
3 . . S14 Selection of suppliers and assessment of
Social-Supply chain management . .
their products and services
N S24 RESHUR ~ fa i M AR R
4 o S24 Anti-corruption policies and measures
Social-Anti-corruption . .
and whistle-blowing
s RIE E6 /K &R {E
Environment E6 Water use
6 He-RBEEKSIER S12B5 1EE T &g Hlss T
Social-Employment and labour practices S12 Preventing child and forced labour
5 e -EmEE SR2REHEEEHR KETA
Social-Product responsibility S22 Protection of consumer data and privacy
NP S23MTIEFRRE ~ R - WGGF RREE
nHe-RES : . .
8 . . . S23 Preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and
Social-Anti-corruption .
money laundering
: HE-ERRSETIER S8{E B/
Social-Employment and labour practices S8 Composition of employees
NN o SOETH Rl
- ERRS THS LAMBENGE
10 . . S9 Remuneration packages and benefits of
Social-Employment and labour practices
the employees
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ENVIRONMENT

The Group is committed to protecting the
environment and notices the importance of
sustainable development of the environment for
sustainable operations. We constantly make practice
of ecological civilization concept. We not only reduce
the environmental impact but also promote the green
environmental protection plan, improve the staff’s
environmental protection consciousness, and advocate
employees to take an active part in environmental
protection. The Group continues to uphold the
environmental policy while striving to achieve
excellence in operation, improve efficiency, promote
the development of green economy and reduce the
impact on the environment.

The Group strictly complies with environmental laws
and regulations of Hong Kong and areas where its
business is carried out. There were no material non-
compliance issues involving the Group with regard to
environment during 2018.

The Group maintains strict control of emissions and
tries its best to reduce emissions, greenhouse gases,
pollutants to the soil and the production of hazardous
and harmless wastes.

Air and Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The Group is primarily engaged in financial services,
insurance, trading in motor vehicles, property
development and investment and strategic investment,
and as such is not involved in any direct activity in the
air emissions.
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I.  ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Air and Greenhouse Gas Emissions (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s greenhouse gas
emissions are as follows:

2956 -1

BERBHKREE PERURIR (RFm—FltmEE)
Scope of Greenhouse Gas Emissions Emission Sources Emission (in kg of CO2e)

2018 2017
#E—
Scope 1
BB NEAETHBER
Direct Emission Company car gasoline emissions 38,290* 27,248*
7
Scope 2
B BEN BE
Indirect Emission Purchased electricity 75,329" 77,134*
#FEF=
Scope 3
HAb R B TR R I
Other Indirect Emission Business air travel by employees 13,430 12,831
wEt
Total 127,049" 117,213

RS EA ZK%IZIKiﬁﬂ%L
FTEz —RItREEREREAR
49127,049 T 52 (20174 : #49117,213 F
%)  FEBEHNAE AN AEEM
HESFARL59FT R (20174F : 4952
F5m) AR ES -

YORAERE ARERBEREAEERY
HEERBEBRE  FEN2 2 KR
EIRMER - AHR BB A A R
— 5t -

EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

There were around 127,049kg (2017: around 117,213kg)
of carbon dioxide equivalent (CO2e) greenhouse gases
emitted from the key operations of the Group in the
reporting period. The annual purchased electricity
emission in tensity was around 59kg (2017: around
52kg) of carbon dioxide equivalent per square meter of
office area.

i During the year, the Group had revised and applied more

accurate calculation method and scope of disclosure. The
application has resulted in changes in presentation, which had
applied retrospectively to ensure the continuing effectiveness
and consistency in disclosure.
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ENVIRONMENT (Continued)
Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes

No hazardous waste was involved with the key
operations of the Group which was office based.
Around 3,314kg (2017: around 3,394kg)# of non-
hazardous waste (mainly paper waste) was generated,
each employee generated around 42kg (2017: around
46kg)" on average. Around 674kg (2017: around
728kg)’ of general office waste was generated in Hong
Kong office, each employee generated around 12.5kg
(2017: around 14.6kg)#on average.

# During the year, the Group had revised and applied more

accurate calculation method and scope of disclosure. The
application has resulted in changes in presentation, which had
applied retrospectively to ensure the continuing effectiveness
and consistency in disclosure.

Emissions

The Group formulated “Environmental Protection and
Energy Saving Measures” to guide all staff to protect
environment and save resources, encouraging the
practice of enterprise culture of energy conservation
and environmental protection. We have taken the
following environmental protection measures in 2018:

. We reduced the environmental impact of the
business travelling by using telephone and video
conference, so as to cut unnecessary business
trips.

The Group encouraged its employees to take
public transportation to work so as to reduce the
exhaust gases of motor vehicles.

We put the plant in the office to purify air and
beautify the environment.

. The Group encouraged garbage classification and
cleaned up ordinary garbage on a regular basis.

Use of Resources and Environment Protection

The Group attaches great importance to encourage
saving and efficient use of resources and strengthen
recycling use, and promote the three environmental
protection principles such as “Making the Best Use of
Everything”, “Making Good Use of Waste Materials” and
“Recycling” in order to prevent the resources wasting.
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ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Electricity

The key operations of the Group consumed around
95,353 kWh (2017: around 97,638 kWh)* of electricity
during the reporting period, electricity consumption of
each person was around 1,222 kWh (2017: around 1,319
kWh)*, electricity consumption per square meter of
office area was around 75 kWh (2017: around 66 kWh).*

Water

During the reporting period, the key operations of
one of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
consumed approximately around 419 cubic meters
(2017: around 900 cubic meters)” of water for office
use, water consumption of each person was around
30 cubic meters (2017: around 82 cubic meters)”.
Water consumption per square meter of office area
was around 2.8 cubic meter (2017: around 2.5 cubic
meters)”. The decrease in total water consumption was
due to the substantial reduction in the office area in
the current year as the water was charged at the size of
area.

Recycling

As at 31 December 2018, Hong Kong office of the
Group recycled around 360 kilograms (2017: 1,404
kilograms)® of waste paper. In 2018, the Group recycled
around 50 toner cartridges/cartridges and 0 computer
(2017: around 56 toner cartridges/cartridges and 1
computer). In 2017, in order to save the storage costs,
the Group had destroyed documents of more than 10
years and without retention value which resulted in a
large amount of recycled paper.

! During the year, the Group had revised and applied more
accurate calculation method and scope of disclosure. The
application has resulted in changes in presentation, which had
applied retrospectively to ensure the continuing effectiveness
and consistency in disclosure.
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ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Use of Resources and Environment Protection
(Continued)

The Group offers guidance on environmental
protection to its staff and strives to develop a low-
carbon corporate culture by encouraging electricity
and paper conservation in daily work. Besides, we
promote the following actions in daily operation:

We reminded employees to turn off part of the
lighting system, computer or display screen
when they went out to work, participated in
meeting and enjoyed lunch via poster. While
employees getting off work, we reminded
them to turn off the power supply as much as
possible, so as to improve the staff’'s energy
saving consciousness;

The Group encouraged employees to bring
their own eco-friendly tableware, avoiding the
use of disposable tableware;

We had LED lights installed in the office areas,
which would help to further reduce energy
consumption;

The Group encouraged employees to recycle
cartons, plastic bags and envelopes and
regularly sent damaged electrical appliances
to recyclers for processing;

We encouraged printing on both sides of
the paper and recycling of used paper and
encouraged employees to use electronic files
instead of physical documents; and

The Group installed water-saving equipment
in the office, and posted water-saving logo to
reduce the waste of water resources.

Through a series of environmental protection and
energy saving measures, the Group are continuously
improving the efficiency of resource utilization and
reducing unnecessary waste of resources, so as to
reduce the impact on the environment.
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II.

SOCIETY

The Group is committed to building up a harmonious
community of common interests and promoting
harmony and prosperity between the Group and the
relevant social organizations and individuals, including
our investors, employees, customers, suppliers,
community, the public and the government through
employment and labour practices, business practices
and community participation, aiming to achieve
comprehensive social benefits including corporate
earnings.

Employment

The Group strictly complies with relevant laws
and regulations of Hong Kong and areas where its
business is carried out. We have formulated a series
of internal policies related to employment to specify
the management of work of the Group for hiring and
promotion, salary and layoff, welfare, development and
training, and the equality and diversity.

The Group protect the basic rights and benefits of
employees actively, establish the perfect compensation
system, and provide a number of health insurance.
Employees enjoy maternity leave, examination holiday,
annual leave and other paid holidays in addition to the
statutory holidays.

The Group adheres to the concept of performance
oriented, decides employee’s promotion and
career advancement according to the professional
qualifications and work performance, and we provide
a fair and equitable workplace for employees and a
broad stage to fulfill their career dreams.
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II.

SOCIETY (Continued)

Employment (Continued)

The Group gradually sets up and optimizes its
evaluation mechanism for recruitment under the hiring
principle of justice, equality and diversification, and
decides who to hire basing on their work experience,
technical skills and work performance instead of their
gender, age, region, nationality, race, religious beliefs,
sexual orientation, physical disability and marital
status. As of 31 December 2018, the total number of
the employees of the Group and its subsidiaries was 78
and the details are as below:

2018 2017
EERH
Number of employees 78 74
(#Z 15215 ) (By gender)
% Male 39 39
% Female 39 35
(1% FEe#8 5253 ) (By age group)
20-30 5% years old 18 20
31-40 5% years old 25 20
41-50 pX years old 22 21
51-60 5% years old 13 13
(#1#tiz ) (By region)
&7 BP9 Hong Kong and Macau 54 50
1 B K BE Mainland China 24 24
(#ZHA%) (By grading)
= MREIEE Senior Management 9 11
F 4 B2 E Middle Management 16 14
L@ 8 General Staff 53 49
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ke () II. SOCIETY (Continued)
Employment (Continued)
1 A i

Employee turnover

HZE2018F12A31HILFE » K&EE
BETHRKBERMT

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the details
of employee turnover are as follows:

& B 77 <t & Employee turnover rate

(#Ffe#852]7) (By age group)

i & Region

&8 MR H B KB
Hong Kong Mainland
and Macau China
2018 2017 2018 2017
% % % %
20-30 5% years old 47 27 0 20
31-40 5% years old 77 32 0 10
41-50 5% years old 40 23 33 20
51-60 3% years old 36 18 0 0
(#&#b/2 ) (By region) # Bl Gender
£ z
Male Female
2018 2017 2018 2017
% % % %
&7 MR F9 Hong Kong and Macau 63 32 37 68
F1 B K FE Mainland China 8 50 0 50
2018 2017
RESFREERBRARNEEAH
Number of employees eligible to retire within the next 5 years 5 5

80 B{=5&E BR8] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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II.

SOCIETY (Continued)

Health and Safety

As a comprehensive enterprise with a commitment
to social responsibility, the Group has concern about
staff’s physical and mental health, advocating balance
between work and life.

Dedicated to provide the employees with a safe and
pleasant work environment, the Group implemented
no smoking policy and no alcohol policy in the office,
regular cleaning and disinfection of carpets, pest
control, filter replacement and cleaning of bottled
water cooler.

In order to safeguard the health and safety of all the
employees, we also set up medical insurance plan,
provide influenza vaccination injection services and
place first aid kit in the office, and regularly participate
in emergency exercises.

The Group encourages employees to set up a good
physical and mental health concept and join physical
fitness activities, and to relieve stress, improve mood,
build up a positive mental attitude, and establish a
good relation between work and family.

We organized a variety of recreational activities to
enhance the team cohesion and motivation. For
example, the Group organized a Christmas party
and company trip in 2018, enriching the daily life of
employees. In November, according to the Labour
Department’s “Guidelines for Fire Prevention at
Workplaces”, employees of the Company were arranged
to participate in fire-fighting fire drills to effectively
improve their occupational safety awareness and
their ability to respond urgently. During the year of
2018 and 2017, none of our employee was dead in the
course of employment.

Development and Training

With the intention of building and developing
committed human resource, the Group set up
a scientific personnel training system and staff
development to promote mutual growth of employees
and enterprise.
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SOCIETY (Continued)

Development and Training (Continued)

The Group encourages employees to participate in

EEMBEHFENME N IEE - #H 22018 training so as to develop and refresh their knowledge
F12A31H " AEBBE T2 HEEIIN and skills. As at 31 December 2018, the details of staff
B3N training participation of the Group are as follows:
2018 2017
1E 8 7ok 35 3| 42 B 25
Total number of hours of training completed by employees 755 266
(1 1=%7I#85)|) (By type of training)
SN EE S ERFZ B 20 Number of hours of external training 460 102
A AIAERLE 3B 2 Number of hours of internal training 295 164
(14 FIZ)7) (By region) % Bl Gender
£ z
Male Female
2018 2017 2018 2017
41 B F19155)| B 2 Average hours of training per employee 7.13 1.95 8.54 5.43
B S 125)|1E B & 9t Percentage of employees who received training  77% 28% 74% 43%
(#%1ES#55) (By employee category)
EREEE FREEE ERERE
Senior Middle General
Management Management Staff
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
BHAES TR
Average hours of training per employee 11.86 9.27 17.95 243 6.82 2.65
=X IEIIREBADLL
Percentage of employees who received training  78% 64% 88% 21% 72% 33%

AEBBBHEGSEIERSER @ 27
Tﬂﬂiﬁ&EImLﬁﬁ/\#%?ﬂgﬁﬁiﬁu o
AEBESEETHNEREEBRERE

BUETIRETRDEEAEEY éé/%a*
NEFES © %Fﬁéﬁféﬂﬁl%é%l?‘%
Tk moREAHED  BREAS
¥WE BETAMEAABREZRERE
BRI E BT Y —BE o EREE
HIEEE R 20184 + NEE AT

EREEEXFIBE  RSEIA
MERREE
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The Group promotes general knowledge and
professional skills of employees of different level
by organizing training seminars and other forms of
activities. The Group respects the staff development
and career planning, and provides a platform to show
talent and inspire potential for each employee. We
encourage employees to give full play to their own
advantages, achieving personal career aspirations
combining development needs of the Group. Employees
can enjoy one-on-one communication about personal
career development plan with the head of department
to get professional guidance. In 2018, the Group held
various compliance and corporate culture training
seminars to raise employees’ compliance and risk
awareness.
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II.

SOCIETY (Continued)

Labour Standards

The Group strictly complies with the laws and
regulations of Hong Kong and areas where its business
is carried out in relation to employment, so as to
protect the basic rights and interests of employees,
respect and safeguard human rights, prevent child
labour and forced labour. Meanwhile, the Group
regularly monitors the employment related information
and data in order to prevent violation of any laws and
regulations in relation to, among other things, child
labour and forced labour. During the reporting period,
there were no non-compliance and contravention
involving the Group with regard to employment.

Supply Chain Management

The Group attaches great importance to the joint
development with other enterprises or institutions
as well as growing together with its suppliers and
partners.

The Group establishes a unified regulation of
“Administrative Rules on Procurement” to regulate
supplier selection process. And we focus on
professional qualifications, product quality, service
capabilities, and price as to choose and assess our
suppliers. The management requirement of suppliers
in details are as follows:

The project tendering must follow the principles
of qualification verification, openness, fair
competition, justice, honesty and integrity as well
as centralised purchase by the Group.

. Tender organisers and bidders must handle the
tender in an honest and trustworthy manner.
Conspiracy is strictly prohibited between the
tender organisers and bidders and the winning
bidder must not abandon the project without a
proper reason.

. The abovementioned requirement effectively
prevents the tender handlers of the Group from
not properly performing their duties and helps to
establish and create an atmosphere of integrity
and discipline and corporate culture of operation
in good faith.
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II.

SOCIETY (Continued)

Supply Chain Management (Continued)

At the same time, we maintain qualified supplier list on
a regular basis to ensure the effective operation of the
supply chain.

Our main suppliers include Taiping Reinsurance
Company Limited, KPMG, Deacons and so on. The types
of main suppliers of the Group and its subsidiaries in
2018 are as follows.

RIBEMIEE - - BRE
Insurance product sales, claims
and reinsurance, etc.

ERAE B E

Legal advice, audit, etc.

RER =5 BR A5

Insurance business services

ERFERFB AR
Legal and other professional
advisory services

W (B - $TEDH) RS
Hardware (computer, printer)
and software, etc.

EBEG - HIRSE

Activities to undertake,

BTERS

Electronic products, etc.

&t - ORI

Design, printing, etc.

G EEED
Compliance and operational
practices
B EEED
Compliance and operational
practices

IRIE
Environment

B 2EBD

Compliance and operational

printing, etc. practices
HEBHAE (RHBE) 2018 2017
Number of supplier (By region)
&8 MR
Hong Kong and Macau 14 15
r B AR
Mainland China 7 9

{5 @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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II.

SOCIETY (Continued)

Product Responsibility

The Group complies strictly with the laws and
regulations of Hong Kong and areas where its business
is carried out in relation to insurance, loans and trade.
We always take customer satisfaction as the No.1
standard for testing the quality of our products, take
notice of protecting customer privacy and strive to
provide our customers and consumers with quality
products and excellent service.

In order to meet customer demand, the Group
establishes internal management system and
optimizes the service process to provide customers
with high quality and reliable service. In order to deal
with the complaints of insurance customers, we strictly
implement the process provided in the “Customer
Complaints Guidelines” of the provisions of the process,
to provide customers with a clear solution in time. At
the same time, the Group organizes the special training
of “How to Deal with Customers’ Complaints” to instruct
staff in working from the customer’s perspective and
enhance customer satisfaction.

The Group attaches great importance to the protection
of customer privacy. We ensure that our customers’
personal data and business data are used only for
authorised commercial purposes and are only available
to business-related employees. We use a variety of
security technologies and procedures to protect user
information resources from unauthorised access, use
and leakage.
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II.

SOCIETY (Continued)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

The subsidiaries of Min Xin Holdings manage
their product quality according to their business
characteristics. Min Xin Insurance Company Limited
develops standardized products and provides
customers with comprehensive property insurance
business in strict accordance with the Hong Kong
and Macao property insurance product requirements.
The quality of service is highly acknowledged by
our co-operative banks and customers. Sanming
Sanyuan District Minxin Micro Credit Company Limited
takes “Dedicated, Friendly, Win-Win” as its business
philosophy. The company is in pursuit of the common
satisfaction of the Shareholders, employees, customers
and the community. Fujian Minxin Investments Co.,
Ltd., following the business strategy and development
goals of the Group, adheres to the business philosophy
of honesty, pragmatism and high efficiency as well as
the management policy of sustainable development
as to promote business development as the main line,
aim at corporate profits and make achievement in
automobile trade to attain steady development of the
company.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
did not recall any product due to safety and health
reasons and did not receive any compliant related to
the product and service.
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II.

SOCIETY (Continued)

Anti-corruption

The Group adheres to the integrity of business,
complies strictly with the laws and regulations of
the relevant jurisdictions of Hong Kong and areas
where its business is carried out, to prevent any form
of corruption and bribery. All directors and staff are
prohibited from soliciting, accepting or offering any
bribe in conducting the Group’s business or affairs,
whether in Hong Kong or elsewhere. In conducting all
business or affairs of the Group, they must comply with
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong.

In 2018, to enhance staff awareness of the common
pitfalls of corruption, the Group held Corporate
Culture and Compliance Training for new employees
to introduce them the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
and relevant laws and regulations and provide advice
on corruption prevention.

In addition, there were no litigations involving the
Group and its employees with regard to corruption
during the reporting period.

The Group has formulated a policy of “Possible
Misconduct Raised by Employee” to monitor the
conduct of employees in their daily operations. In
addition, the Group states in the Employee Handbook
that how to manage employees’ conflicts of interest,
and it specifies employees’ red lines and restricted
areas in daily operations. If misconduct is spotted,
anyone can inform the relevant department manager
or the General Manager. The General Manager is
responsible for investigating the reported incidents
and issuing written findings. All communications will
be processed in a confidential manner.

Each year, the Group protects the benefits of the Group
and the relevant stakeholders through self-inspection.
The Group also hires independent auditors to conduct
external audits on the Group as to prevent and control
fraud or wrongdoings through internal inspections and
external audits.
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II.

SOCIETY (Continued)

Community Investment

The Group takes the “Rewarding the Community” as
its enterprise development concept, fulfills corporate
citizenship and encourages staff to participate in
various charity activities.

During the year, the Group participated in the “Dress
Casual Day” organised by the Community Chest of
Hong Kong. Employees were wearing casual clothes
to participate and made a donation of HK$5,000
(2017: HK$5,000). The Group will continue to commit
resources to social activities and play an active role in
participating in charitable activities while constantly
pursuing business development.

The Group plays an active role in social welfare
undertakings, hoping to take a small step in their own
actions to form a major step forward to arouse social
love. The Group will maintain a good corporate culture,
and actively participate in community development
and community contribution.
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The Directors hereby present their report together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
principally engaged in financial services, insurance, trading
in motor vehicles, property development and investment
and strategic investment. The principal activities and other
particulars of the principal subsidiaries and associates are
set out in Notes 39 and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations of the Group for the year are set
out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The discussion and analysis of the principal activities of the
Group and other business review as required to be disclosed
by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, including a
fair review of the business and a discussion of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group, is set out in the
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 6 to 23 of this Annual Report. The above
two sections form part of this report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out on page 113.The Board of the Company has
resolved to recommend at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held on Wednesday, 19 June
2019 (the “2019 AGM”) the payment of a final dividend of
10 HK cents per share totalling HK$59,725,725.20 for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: final dividend of 8 HK
cents per share totaling HK$47,780,580.16). The proposed
dividend, if approved, will be paid on or before 3 July 2019.
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RECORD DATE

For the purpose of determining the entitlement to attend
and vote at the 2019 AGM, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Friday, 14 June 2019 to
Wednesday, 19 June 2019, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the 2019 AGM, all completed
transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s Registrar,
Tricor Standard Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 13 June 2019.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2018 is subject to the approval by the Shareholders at the
2019 AGM. For the purpose of determining the entitlement
to the proposed final dividend, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 25 June 2019 to
Wednesday, 26 June 2019, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order
to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all completed
transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s Registrar,
Tricor Standard Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 24 June 2019.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, net assets and total equity of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 4
and 5.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group is set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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PRINCIPAL PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD

Details of the principal property interests held by the Group
are set out on page 292.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
Note 33(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out on page 117 and in Note 38(a) to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December
2018, calculated under Part 6 of the Companies Ordinance
amounted to HK$634,435,000 (2017: HK$560,460,000).

DIRECTORS

The names of the Directors who have served the Company
during the year and up to the date of this report are set out
on page 2 of this Annual Report.

In accordance with Articles 94 and 95 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr HON Hau Chit, Mr IP Kai
Ming and Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi will retire by rotation at
the 2019 AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

Pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr CHEN Yu and Mr YANG Jingchao who were
appointed during the year shall hold office until the next
general meeting, and shall then be eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the 2019 AGM.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Non-executive Directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term, but they are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the Company.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at
the 2019 AGM has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation.

The Company has received from each Independent
Non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
of the Stock Exchange and the Company considers all the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent as
defined in the Listing Rules.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors of the Company are
set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” section of this Annual Report.

CHANGE IN THE INFORMATION OF
DIRECTOR

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change
in the information of the Directors of the Company required
to be disclosed since the publication of 2018 interim report
of the Company is set out below:

Mr WANG Fei, an Executive Director and the Vice Chairman
of the Board of the Company, has resigned as a director
and the chairman of Vigour Fine Company Limited (“Vigour
Fine”), which is a controlling shareholder of the Company,
with effect from 10 December 2018.

Mr CHEN Yu, an Executive Director and the General Manager
of the Company, was appointed as a director and the
chairman of Fujian Minxin Investments Co., Ltd. and Min Xin
Insurance Company Limited with effect from 1 December
2018 and 3 December 2018 respectively, and the directors
of certain subsidiaries of the Company with effect from 10
September 2018. He was appointed as the general manager,
and was further appointed as a director and the chairman
of Vigour Fine, which is a controlling shareholder of the
Company, with effect from 13 September 2018 and 10
December 2018 respectively. Mr Chen was also appointed
as a director of Samba Limited, which is a substantial
shareholder of the Company, with effect from 20 September
2018.
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CHANGE IN THE INFORMATION OF
DIRECTOR (Continued)

Mr YANG Jingchao, a Non-executive Director of the
Company, was appointed as a director of Vigour Fine, which
is a controlling shareholder of the Company, with effect
from 10 December 2018. He was also appointed as a director
of Fujian Innovation Venture Investment Management Co.,
Ltd. with effect from 11 May 2018, I 2 EXREREES
A BR/AF] (Fujian Property Investment Fund Company Ltd.*),
BEEEKE SR AR AT (Fujian Guoteng Information
Technology Co., Ltd.*), and a member of investment
committee of %ea@é AEBEFREESELZE (Fujian
Graphene Industry Investment Partnership*) with effect
from 25 June 2018. Mr Yang has resigned as the secretary of
the Party Committee, the chairman of the board of directors
and the legal representative of Pingtan Financial Holding
with effect from 30 September 2018.

* The English transliteration of the Chinese name in this annual report,
where indicated, is included for the information purpose only, and
should not be regarded as the official English name of such Chinese
name.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of the Directors who have served on the boards
of the subsidiaries of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report are set out below:

Mr CHEN Yu

Mr LIU Cheng (Note 1)
Mr ZHANG Fan

Mr CHAN Kwong Yu
Mr WU Xubin

Ms CHEN Fen

Mr CHAN Kwok Kwong (Note 2)
Mr SHIUNG An Tai

Mr ZHANG Yannan

Mr GUO Xiang

Mr QIAN Wen Rong
Mr NG Ka Chi

Notes:

1. Mr LIU Cheng resigned as a director with effect from 10 September
2018.

2. Mr CHAN Kwok Kwong resigned as a director with effect from
10 February 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST

At 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and Chief Executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO")) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code of the
Listing Rules were as follows:

REQXBDEBRO ZHR
Long Position in Ordinary Shares of the Company

WIERITRE 2B
BEROEE Approximately Percentage
EEHA EEME Number of of the issued share capital
Name of Director Nature of interests shares held of the Company

TR EARER
IP Kai Ming Personal interest 865,800 0.14%
Br ESCERIEEEESN - 7R2018F 12 A31HIE - Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of

ARBEZERITREHMEERNRBREL
I AEOEE (RE 5 MEAE GHI% XV FTE
RER) WD - HERDSESTHREABE
MAREE S LB ERDIE35216A T HF
R B FTRe s AR B E T RIZBEAE AR
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the Directors and Chief Executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code; and none of the
Directors or their spouses or children under the age of 18,
had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such right during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.



BB AR

ARARFBERITEZRIERTEST O ERRE
ERFABEEESMEREHAEBER
B ATREE R B F W ARE EMARAE
80 ME T AR 8 2 75w ©

EHNERLZ G~ R EHZHE

fil

RAFREA(MHRERFER - RARHEFE
B AR ERBN AR EREBET
BRI EAARREZTIKEEFENER
ERRARAEEARDENRS - WHXE
#) o

JEE R Y SR IR SC

ARRIWABKBIZARZIA - £ R RHERDIR
BMERT  ARrIBREFTERNEHEELER
TRETHBERIEZABMBEZ 1)
A B BK - X RABEAQEN
FE ARFECREFLSABERHRR
EXLeABEEERE  XRERLEBE
FEETRE RER

EH A
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

All Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors of
the Company have confirmed that they did not have any
interests in business which competed or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group during the year as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACT

No transaction, arrangement or contract (that is significant
in relation to the Company’s business) to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director of the Company or an entity connected with
a Director had, directly or indirectly, a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that,
subject to the Companies Ordinance, every Director of the
Company is entitled to be indemnified by the Company
against all costs, charges, losses, expense and liabilities
incurred by him in the execution and discharge of his duties
or in relation thereto. The Company has arranged directors
and officers liability insurance for its Directors and Officers.
The terms and extent of the coverage are reviewed and
renewed annually.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

At 31 December 2018, substantial Shareholders (other than
Directors and Chief Executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required

AN 1A to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO
were as follow:
EARAF
ERITRAE
Botk
Percentage of
BERHEE the issued share
GES =20 Kzt Number of capital of the
Name of Corporation Capacity Notes shares held Company
Samba Limited (“Samba”) EnEAA 1 144,885,000 24.26%
Beneficial Owner (&)L (5L
SEEERAR ([EE]) EnE ARZIEEE R 1 355,552,883 59.53%
Vigour Fine Company Limited  Beneficial Owner and Interest (4) (L) (#F) (L)
(“Vigour Fine") of Controlled Corporation
BEEAKEAEEBRER X EE R 2 355,552,883 59.53%
BEELA ([1BRIBEEE] ) Interest of Controlled Corporation ()WL (5L
Fujian Investment &
Development Group Co., Ltd.
(”FIDG")
BHERKEEEERAT EnEAA 3 88,150,000 14.76%
([EheEs] ) Beneficial Owner (8F) (L) (5L
Citychamp Watch & Jewellery
Group Limited (“Citychamp”)
PEBRAA ([392]) R EE R 3 88,150,000 14.76%
Full Day Limited (“Full Day”) Interest of Controlled Corporation (#F) (L) (#F) (L)
EREREBERAR EnAARIIEEERR 3 99,398,000 16.64%
([EEEE]) Beneficial Owner and Interest of (FF) (L) (7)) (L)
Sincere View International Controlled Corporation
Limited (“Sincere View")
BEERE i EE R 4 99,398,000 16.64%
HON Kwok Lung Interest of Controlled Corporation (#F) (L) (7)) (L)
RO P (3 B 2 4 99,398,000 16.64%
LAM Suk Ying Interest of Spouse (4) (L) (#F) (L)

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
(Continued)

Notes:

1. 144,885,000 shares of the Company was held by Samba. Vigour Fine was
the controlling shareholder of Samba and was deemed to be interested
in the 144,885,000 shares of the Company held by Samba. Vigour Fine
also directly held 210,667,883 shares of the Company.

2. FIDG directly held the entire issued share capital of Vigour Fine and was
deemed to be interested in the 355,552,883 shares of the Company.

3. 88,150,000 shares of the Company was held by Citychamp. Citychamp
was the controlled corporation of each of Sincere View and Full Day
and each of Sincere View and Full Day was deemed to be interested in
the 88,150,000 shares of the Company. Sincere View also directly held
11,248,000 shares of the Company.

4. Mr HON Kwok Lung (“Mr Hon") held the entire issued share capital of
Full Day and was the controlling shareholder of Sincere View, Mr Hon
was deemed to be interested in the 99,398,000 shares of the Company.
Ms LAM Suk Ying, the spouse of Mr Hon, was deemed to be interested
in the 99,398,000 shares of the Company.

L:  Long position

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2018, the Company
had not been notified by any persons (other than Directors
and Chief Executive of the Company) who had short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s issued shares during
the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year, the Company had renewed the annual
management agreement with Vigour Fine, the controlling
Shareholder, whereby Vigour Fine agreed to provide
management services to the Company which included
the provision of Directors to the Board of the Company. A
management fee of HK$1,880,000 had been paid to Vigour
Fine during the year.

Mr WANG Fei and Mr LIU Cheng (who had resigned on 10
September 2018) were deemed to be interested in the above
transaction by virtue of being directors of Vigour Fine at the
then period of renewal of management agreement.

Currently, Mr CHEN Yu and Mr YANG Jingchao both are
directors of Vigour Fine.

Except for the above, there were no other contracts
concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company entered into or existed during the year.

Save as disclosed above, there was no contract of significant
entered into between the Company and Vigour Fine, the
controlling Shareholder, during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s purchases and sales attributable
to the major suppliers and customers respectively were as
follows:

Suppliers Customers

Percentage of Percentage of

total Purchases total Sales

Five largest 100.00% 93.60%

The largest 50.21% 47.53%
BANK BORROWINGS

Details of the bank borrowings of the Group at 31 December
2018 are set out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.



LSO i S Aok 1

ARRZ2EMBLARIRERRERARR
REEXEERNETE  YATARREKRD
BEREREBRERERABENRRA
FRRTE 153

AREBREZE2018F12A31BIEFERNE
THEZ@EF RS FBHN A W HREK
T 17(b), 17(c), 37(a), 37(b), 37(c) X 37(d)
W L FEESR SR ETARRENE
BREABERS -

Hip K R BIPTHE 2 BB 5 2 BlE
N RZER A M MR 10() (i) A °

E AR I ER 13,21 Mok 22 45 AE 8 B K A

RIBEARAREE TAMBRITEN (THE
RIRIE ) - AR EGERRE AR R ER
BREBRIREEE BERERESBERER
R REPREFRRENHRNESHEAR
A (EwmEEEE) ©BTRATDRN 35%
MEDSESRERHAQR 2 EREHIE -
BREBAGBEBRENEMH  MAREE
EHEFRERETINAAIHREESR
(BREAERAE) 7] & QBN B H M e -

EH A
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

COMPLIANCE WITH INSURANCE ORDINANCE

Min Xin Insurance Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, is subject to the supervision of
the Insurance Authority and is required to comply with the
relevant provision of Insurance Ordinance in relation to the
maximum limit on the amount of gross premium income
received or receivable.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2018, which
are not required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules as
connected transactions, are disclosed in Notes 17(b), 17(c),
37(a), 37(b), 37(c) and 37(d) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Other related party transactions, which also constitute
connected transactions under the Listing Rules, are
disclosed in Notes 10(a)(iii) to the consolidated financial
statements.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING
RULES

Pursuant to the term loan facilities entered into between
the Company and certain banks in Hong Kong, the Company
undertaked it will procure FIDG, the controlling shareholder
of the Company, and FIDG agreed and confirmed, to
maintain (whether directly or indirectly) not less than
35% beneficial interests in the issued share capital of the
Company and management control right in the Company
during the term of the term loan facilities. Breach of such
undertaking will constitute an event of default and all
amounts (including principal and interest) due and owing
by the Company to the banks under the term loan facilities
shall become immediately due and payable.
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OTHER INFORMATION

Pursuant to a loan facility entered into between Vigour Fine,
a controlling shareholder of the Company, and a bank in
Hong Kong, the Company had received a notice from Vigour
Fine that it had pledged an aggregate of 119,787,483 shares
in the issued share capital of the Company (the “Pledged
Shares”) in favour of the bank as security for the loan facility.
The Pledged Shares represent approximately 20.06% of the
issued share capital of the Company.

On 12 December 2016, a charge over 40,850,000 shares
in the issued capital of the Company held by Vigour Fine,
which had previously been pledged to another bank was
released pursuant to the deed of release dated 1 June 2018.

Reference was made to the announcement of the Company
dated 13 July 2018, Fujian Minxin Investments Co., Ltd.,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and Fuzhou
Representative Office of the Company, a representative
office registered in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"), made deposits as structured savings with various
licensed commercial banks in the PRC during certain periods
from 2016 to 2018. The structured savings were principals
guaranteed by the banks with higher expected interest
yields, high liquidity and relative low risk exposure. All
the structured savings as disclosed in the announcement
were fully redeemed at maturity in accordance with their
respective contracts. Details of the structured savings
transactions were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 13 July 2018.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING DATE

The Group had begun the process to wind down its business
of trading in motor vehicles. After the inventory has sold
out, the business of trading in motor vehicles will be ceased
and which will result in a reduction in the revenue of the
Group generated from such business, however, the cessation
of such business would not have any material adverse effect
on the operating results or the financial position of the
Group. The Group will utilize its resources on other principal
businesses as well as other potential new businesses as the
Board may consider appropriate from time to time. Details
of the abovementioned information were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 9 January 2019.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as of
the date of this report, the Company had maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers retired as the auditor of the
Company with effect from the conclusion of the 2018 AGM
held on 13 June 2018 and KPMG was then appointed as
the auditor of the Company. The consolidated financial
statements have been audited by KPMG who will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

YAN Zheng
Chairman

HONG KONG, 27 March 2019
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TO THE MEMBERS OF MIN XIN HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Min Xin Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 113 to 291, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2018, the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2018 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 137 to 139.
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The Key Audit Matter

EEEMBEMBKRRITREMNBAGR (E
REEE) 899.7635% MR 1D - NEEERE BT
WP ARRARREETZE -

The Group’s approximately 9.7635% interest
in Xiamen International Bank and its
subsidiaries (“XIB Group”) is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under
the equity method.

BE-_Z-)\Ft-_A=1T—"HLFE"
EEEREEREEZREAENB/LNER
61,407 87T EEERNEREEEDNIRE
BER/KABEEA4942758 T - LBFEAG
HE_Z- )/ \FEESSERREMGREND
106.22% KEE—_FT—/\F+_-_A=1—H
EEEREEN67.74% °

The Group's share of the profit after tax from
XIB Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 was approximately HK$614.07 million
and the carrying value of the Group’s interest
in XIB Group was approximately HK$4,942.75
million. This represented approximately
106.22% of the Group’s profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
approximately 67.74% of the Group’s total
assets as at 31 December 2018.

FoA s A w b B P % S T Y O ik

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BPRRFEREREENEENEAZENEEFER
AT&IE

Our audit procedures to assess the accounting for the
interest in XIB Group included the following:

AHE R S EE R AR HERET - BRANRENE
M UREREEERUEREZENSHBE
evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key group-wide internal controls and
the consolidation process for equity accounting for the
Group’s interest in XIB Group;

EREENER S T ERN 5 B RN X
HEITHEE

comparing consolidation and reclassification journal
adjustments in respect of the interest in XIB Group
with relevant underlying documentation;

BREEREENMGER  ENTEEEERIEFEE
MESENAFENEIEEN

recalculating the Group’s share of net assets and the
Group's share of profit for the year with reference to
the financial information of XIB Group;
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Accounting for interest in an associate (Continued)
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The Key Audit Matter
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We identified the accounting for the interest
in XIB Group as a key audit matter because
of its material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and the
complexity and management judgement
involved in the preparation of the financial
information of XIB Group, which increases
the risk of material misstatement in XIB
Group'’s consolidated financial statements,
particularly in respect of the assessment
of impairment allowances of loans and
advances to customers and financial assets at
amortised cost of XIB Group. The assessment
of impairment allowances is inherently
subjective and require significant judgement
and estimation which increases the risk of
error or potential management bias.

EREBGE M BmMERTOEMER - #HA]
feRBEREZEMHEEBES M B®E
EEERNTE -

Any misstatement in XIB Group's
consolidated financial statements could
have a consequential material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statement
through the equity method of accounting.

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

FREEREEAZEED ([HEE D ZEA ] ) BAME
HEEEE S - HEREBENMBENNITEZEDN
Bt

instructing the auditors of XIB Group ( “the component
auditors”) to perform a full scope audit of the financial
information of XIB Group in accordance with the Group
Audit Instructions issued by us;

SEERIBOZEE BRI EEF - UEEEREER
W ER RS FAEE AR RRMER K wmAEXE D
REMEZERRNOE &

participating in the component auditors’ risk
assessment process to identify significant risks of
material misstatement of the financial information of
XIB Group and discussing with the component auditors
their responses to address such risks; and

BZRRK BR D A BURD & iR LB AT IR - BB
ERE D BB TIEER @ sH AR EABRER
BRI BRRETEFRERENEE »
discussing with the component auditors their
findings and conclusions with regard to their audit
and evaluating the sufficiency and appropriateness
of the audit evidence for purpose of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements by reviewing the
component auditor’s working papers.
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Impairment allowances on loans to customers and interest receivable of Sanming Sanyuan District
Minxin Micro Credit Company Limited (“Minxin Micro Credit”)
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Refer to note 26 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 157 to 165.
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As at 31 December 2018, the balance of total
loans to customers and interest receivable
of Minxin Micro Credit, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, amounted to
approximately RMB254.44 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$289.8 million),
representing approximately 3.97% of the
Group’s total assets. Impairment allowances
on loans to customers and interest receivable
amounting to approximately RMB234.35
million (equivalent to approximately
HK$266.93 million), were provided by
management. The impairment allowances
to total loans to customers and interest
receivable ratio was 92.11%.

ERFEHERBEER - 100 EFER K
EWF B REEEEFERARE - BE/)
EREEE S e TRRSENRER
ER > BREABERE  FREMEMAR
ESE S

Under the expected credit loss model,
100% of the loans to customers and interest
receivable were assessed as credit-impaired.
The determination of loss allowances for
Minxin Micro Credit is subject to some
key parameters and assumptions, such as
loss given default, discount rate and other
adjustment factors.

FAM 7 A st v B P % T Y O ik

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BT AEENEREPERREWH SR EEFENEEETIZ
FrEiEA TR :

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment allowances
of loans to customers and interest receivable of Minxin
Micro Credit included the following:

TERNFGEEENETPER LB SR EEH
TRAE RV RRSE A BB IR I R AT - BAEANIRIER L |
understanding and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls of Minxin Micro Credit’s impairment
assessment of loans to customers and interest
receivable;

- BEEDRCELEERRERSNER - BEENE
FANERYE R EMENE ARKE 2R EERY
BTG EAREITLLE « FPIRFHE 7 IR &35 B0
kA= - FHEEMEGFIMER SR - stEE/ NEHNEIK
SIEMRAIEMETEE  WERERERATHHMER
HR
for selected samples of loans and advances to
customers and interest receivable that are credit-
impaired, evaluating management’s assessment
of the value of collaterals and forecast cashflows,
by comparing collaterals’ market prices with
management’s assessment of value, and evaluating
the viability of management’s recovery plans. We
also evaluated the timing and means of realisation of
collateral and evaluated other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contract terms;
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Impairment allowances on loans to customers and interest receivable of Sanming Sanyuan District
Minxin Micro Credit Company Limited (“Minxin Micro Credit”) (Continued)
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Management exercises judgement in
determining the quantum of loss given
default based on a range of factors. These
include available remedies for recovery,
the financial situation of the borrower,
the recoverable amount of collateral, the
seniority of the claim and the existence
and cooperativeness of other creditors.
Management refers to valuation reports
issued by qualified third party valuers and
considers the influence of various factors
including the market price, location and use
when assessing the value of property held
as collateral. The enforceability, timing and
means of realisation of collateral can also
have an impact on the recoverable amount
of collateral and, therefore, the amount of
loss allowances as at the end of the reporting
period.

R & P B R B WM BB R B 2E 17 R [E
BETEEM S REREHE - AR
RIS/ NE TP E SN YRS 8RB 2
RGBS EEIE -

We identified the impairment allowances of
loans to customers and interest receivable as
a key audit matter because of the inherent
uncertainty and management judgment
involved.

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
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having considered the above, recalculating the amount
of credit loss allowance using the expected credit loss
model for samples of loans and advances to customers
and interest receivable, to verify the calculation
accuracy of the credit loss allowance; and

HEEE P ERRERA S REEGHEEBNHRELSS
HEBEYBRELENE7R @R ITA : HE] K
BE

evaluating whether the disclosures on impairment
allowances on loans to customers and interest
receivable meet the disclosure requirements of HKFRS 7
- Financial Instruments: Disclosures.
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Transitional adjustments and disclosures in relation to the adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standard 9: Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
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Refer to note 2.2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 123-133.
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The Group has applied HKFRS 9 since 1
January 2018. HKFRS 9 has amended the
previous classification and measurement
framework of financial instruments and
introduced a more complex expected credit
loss model to assess impairment. The Group
is required to retrospectively apply the
classification and measurement (including
impairment) requirements and recognise
any difference between the original carrying
amount and new carrying amount at the
date of initial application (i.e. 1 January
2018) in the opening retained earnings or
other comprehensive income.

FeAr it et vh R PR AL R TE ) 7 1

How the matter was addressed in our audit

B EESEETEY B MEELE O FERANERAE
HENEAEFRIEAT -

Our audit procedures to assess the Group’s transition
adjustments in relation to the adoption of HKFRS 9 included
the following:

TEMFHE B BN B REERE oS BB AR R
P ERFE I

understanding and assessing the key internal controls

of the financial reporting process related to the

transition to the HKFRS 9;

. Z%HXTE%@EIEF\:; NEF—A—HHEMIA
DEBE  BREAR  #TERRSRARLEHER
BRI XA - AR 0 SR A0 2 [ 28 S5 A0 45 R0 YE 1
1
assessing the logic and accuracy of the classification
of financial instruments, including obtaining a list
of financial instruments classified by the Group
management as at 1 January 2018, selecting samples to
check the contractual cash flow terms and inspecting
relevant documents in relation to the business model
evaluation;

- HRESBEREMTUAAABEFENSREE - Fif
EReREENGEEZNAR288ER - WhEKF
NEHEENHA B2 EEREARUNEBEGEES ENHE
R2B2ECEAMNSIRL
for financial assets that are measured at fair value due
to changes in classification, obtaining information
on the valuation method and key parameters used,
selecting samples to evaluate the validity of the
valuation method and key parameters with the
involvement of our internal valuation specialists;
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Transitional adjustments and disclosures in relation to the adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 9: Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) (Continued)
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We identified the transition adjustments and
disclosures in relation to the adoption of
HKFRS 9 as a key audit matter, because of the
complexity of the transition process which
involved changes in internal controls of
the financial reporting process, accounting
treatment, application of new data and
management judgment.

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

FEERE 8 B 75 i o5 R BI| 55 0 SR AR H ) RIS A BE
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B #ARSREEL SR T ANAEREEETCE - 57
R D B TR AR

obtaining journal entries relating to adjustments
made on transition to HKFRS 9 and comparing the list
of classification of financial instruments, the original
carrying amounts, the list of journal entries and new
carrying amounts of the financial instruments to assess
if the journal entries have been entirely put through
the system accurately;

FEOEAEFAERES R TENREEE - HERY)
RERR (BIZT—-N\F—F—R) (RE{EMNERT -
N et RERR e B BN BMELRE 9
selecting samples to recalculate the new carrying
amount of the financial instruments and assessing
the accuracy of the opening balance at the date of
initial application (i.e. 1 January 2018) to assess if the
accounting treatments were in compliance with HKFRS
9;

EEARBOZBERBERFIEMEEEEA 555
HEREEFANELWBREERE 9RERN AR
B - WimiR e A E D R BRI TAEETS - T h1E
MEAEBRENBMRGaMBRRETEARS AR
MaE s &

instructing the component auditors to assess the
XIB Group’s transition adjustments in relation to the
adoption of HKFRS 9 in accordance with the Group
Audit Instructions issued by us, and evaluating the
sufficiency and appropriateness of the audit evidence
for purpose of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements by reviewing the component auditor’s
working papers; and

AHE B Bk e Rl T EER SRR R E R LR
BT LR WEER -

assessing whether the relevant disclosures in relation
to the change in financial instruments standards are in
compliance with the prevailing accounting standards.
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Li Ka Lam.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

HE20184F 125 31 HIEFE  For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
iFE BT T BT T
Note HKS’000 HK$'000
W sa 58 Total revenues 5 1,038,698 960,046
Efh (518) UWzs — F58  Other (losses)/gains — net 6 (11,427) 25,803
SHE AR Costs of sales (920,394) (819,733)
R EBEER Net insurance claims incurred and
EEFERAS commission expenses incurred on
&H insurance business 7 (36,973) (53,293)
BEFER K ERFE Write back of impairment loss on loans
Y B e 1R B O] to customers and interest receivable 26 4,016 3,393
THE MDA Selling and distribution costs (2,332) (1,214)
THREEME A Administrative and other expenses (52,260) (58,947)
el Operating profit 8 19,328 56,055
A& KA Finance costs 9 (26,165) (37,056)
e N Share of results of associates 617,363 517,924
BRFL AR R Profit before taxation 610,526 536,923
RS g Income tax expense 11 (32,436) (20,033)
REERF Profit for the year 578,090 516,890
BRE Dividend
RNEARR B Final dividend 12 59,726 47,781
B JEN
HK CENTS HK CENTS
BREF Earnings per share
EANEE Basic and diluted 13 96.79 96.30
BREE Dividend per share
REARR B Final dividend 10 8
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

#2018 12 H 31 HIEF/  For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
EBETFT BT T
HKs’000 HK$'000
R Profit for theyear | 578,090 | ! 516,890
Hi2EUWEH Other comprehensive income
FTEEFIBERER Items that will not be reclassified to
HIER : income statement:
AT ESFAEMEEWZS  Equity investments at fair value through
HIARIEIRE — N EEREE  other comprehensive income - net
% (A {EIR) B &) F5E movement in fair value reserve (non-recycling) 66,903 -
EREENRNEMEE Share of other comprehensive income
Iz of associates (171) -
,,,,,,, 66,732 | -
HETREHOESIEHK Items that may be reclassified subsequently
WIEH : to income statement:
At ESFEE — 2 F{E Available-for-sale financial assets — net
HES (AJfER) E8))FE  movement in fair value reserve (recycling)
NEEEE Fair value changes = (29,946)
EXTFT 1S Deferred income tax - (a1)
HE RO Released on disposal - (10,265)
- (40,252)
ME G INF B A | M B Exchange differences arising on translation
NAH &R PIEE of the financial statements of foreign
BB = RE subsidiaries and associates (311,630) 399,654
BB E AR EMEE Share of other comprehensive income
Weas of associates 191,041 (139,080)
,,,,, (120,589) | 220,322
RIBRBHIERNEEE Other comprehensive income for
Hib 2 WS the year, net of tax - (53,857)| 220,322
rEEXHEHRRAHE Total comprehensive income for the year 524,233 737,212

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

20184 12 H 31 H4%5  As at 31 December 2018

2018 2017
i BT B F T
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
kRBEE Non-current assets
M - RN ERIE Property, plant and equipment 14 20,935 16,878
\EEE Intangible assets 15 1,573 2,504
KEYE Investment properties 16 169,632 169,818
i /NE] Associates 17 4,988,673 4,842,032
Tﬁ’&?ﬁd‘kﬁﬁ’i\ﬁ%ﬁ_& Financial assets at fair value through
HE R E E other comprehensive income 18 570,417 -
AR EemEE Available-for-sale financial assets 19 = 503,514
Tﬁ%fﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ’]i%ﬁiﬁ% Financial assets at amortised cost 20 3,129 -
LR FHH B E Held-to-maturity financial assets - 3,119
BREER N EWF S Loans to customers and interest
receivable 26 - 39
BRREE Reinsurance assets 25 1,546 213
TEH%( Prepayments 6 180
Tﬁﬁﬁfﬁfﬂ_m Pledged bank deposit 28 227,800 -
LR EE Deferred income tax assets 32 535 10,150
5984246 | 5548447
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 21 10,668 89,946
FEU R IB 815 & Investments in receivables 22 = 132,105
IEIEENS A A Deferred acquisition costs 23 21,242 16,868
1R B B UL FX Insurance receivable 24 13,134 10,854
BiRBEE Reinsurance assets 25 4,791 6,099
}E'f)f R % JrE U B Loans to customers and interest
receivable 26 22,875 26,026
RITHRGESR Banker’s acceptance 56,186 -
E b e U BR X Other debtors 2,927 6,324
ENER Advance payment 1,387 99,480
HEMIBEANRRIZE Other prepayments and deposits 1,548 1,437
REEE Repossessed assets - 3,940
BRATHEBEBERIR Financial assets at fair value through
HNEpEE profit or loss 27 306 304
WE NIR1TETF Cash and bank balances 28 1,177,580 1,300,589
1,312,644 1,693,972
}ﬁi))ﬁ{i Current liabilities
IR AE# Insurance contracts 29 65,523 49,991
IR ERT R Insurance payable 30 9,196 7,250
HiENBER R IETER Other creditors and accruals 24,498 29,579
RITER Bank borrowings 31 198,804 354,141
R AR ERRE 1A Current income tax payable 25,495 26,369
,,,,,, 323,516 | 467,330
REBEEFE Net currentassets | 989,128 1,226,642
BEERREBERE Total assets less current liabilities 6,973,374 6,775,089
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

20184F 12 H 31 H#%E  As at 31 December 2018

2018 2017
FE BT T JEMEF T
Note HK$’000 HKS’000
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
RITER Bank borrowings 37 199,966 198,131
R A4 Insurance contracts 29 17,482 37,659
EEFEHAaE Deferred income tax liabilities 32 24,106 28,397
,,,,,, 241,554 | 264,187
EERE Net assets 6,731,820 6,510,902
= Equity
A AN Share capital 33(a) 1,715,377 1,715,377
Hin#ES Other reserves 1,504,672 1,628,236
R & Retained profits 3,511,771 3,167,289
ARATRREGEES Total equity attributable to
EEE shareholders of the Company 6,731,820 6,510,902
B 1E YAN Zheng
FzE Director
PR = CHEN Yu
FzE Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE20184F 125 31 HIEFE  For the year ended 31 December 2018

e
Other reserves
AYE  ATE  HEBE i
) BEE  BREE EMBRE NEFE GRS
BRI iy g8 ERO(TER)) (FUER) leaschold  ffd g RFRE
B Mddtonal  HEE  BEE BES  Faralue  Fairvalue  buildings  Exchange  Total  REBER a8
Share  equity  Statutory  Gemeral  Capital  reserve  reserve revaluation transfation other  Retained Total
capital instrument  reserve  reserve  reserve (recycling) (i) (non+ecyding)  reserve  reserve  reserves profits equity
i BTr BTn BETn BETn BT BEFn BRFn ERFn BBFn BErn BEx
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
ROTENENE . A3 December 2017,
GEL as originally presented 115311 192,14 814N 84476 329956 127,336 - 3,192 19651 1628236 3,167,289 6,510,902
IREREEHHEREEY mpactoninitial application
F9TNTE (3B ofHKFRS (Note22) - - - - - (307435) 281,765 - - (5670 (38848 (64518)
RRABN-BE Adjustment to lign the classfcation - (192214) - - - - s s - (192214) - (192214)
R2ETA1E EEF] At January 2018, s restated 1715371 - WA 84476 329956 (180,099) 281765 3192 19651 1410352 3128441 6,254,170
REEEH Profitfor the year - - - - - - - - - - 578090 578,090
Eb2Eks Other comprehensive income - - - - S 1/ LT ) - (9278)  (33857) - (38)
IS Dividend - - - - - - - - - - (a8 (47781)
~FHEDATHERRTE Released on disposalof equity
SAAHRENES  investments atfairvalue
G through other comprehensive
income by an associate - - - - - - (13) - = (13) 13 =
El-FBANTMEL  Shareofmovement in capitel
EErl feserveof an asociate - - - - 1% - - - - 119 - 1%
o Transfers - - 985 45 - - - - - 146992 (146992) -
R2018E12831A At31December 2018 1,715371 - OT0646 132233 331,154 (7.945) 348,484 3192 (213,092) 1504672 3511771 6,731,820
AT Representing;
WIBERRRE 2018 proposed dividend - - - - - - - - - - N6 5972
ifp Others 1,715371 - 90646 132233 331,154 (7.945) 348484 3192 (213,092) 1504672 3452045 6,672,094
HaotsE12831R At 31 December 2018 1715377 - 970646 132233 331,154 (7945) 348,484 3192 (273,092) 1504672 3511771 6,731,820
() RDTERES (ATER) 12017412 431 HOER (i) The balance of fair value reserve (recycling) at 31 December 2017

RIBRBEEE G ERNEFEENREEMHERHD -

represents the investment revaluation reserve under HKAS 39 basis.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

#FE20184F 12 31 HIFAEE  For the year ended 31 December 2018

Efritae
Other reserves
BEER it
£ BEER BfdEE  HERE R
&Il EE il BE GEE  leaschold  HES ag RxER
BE  Addomal  EEE B2 GBS Investment  buldings  Exchange Tl REEA ]
Share equity  Statutory  General Capital ~ revaluation ~revaluation translation other  Retained Total
capital instrument  reserve  reserve  Ieserve  feserve eIV feServe  TESEIVes profits equity
BEFT BEFT BETn BETr BEFr BEFr BEFT YT BT BRTrT BETr
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKs'000 HKs'000 HKs'000 HKs'000 HKS'000
R07E1 818 At 1 January 2017 891,135 - 707,962 68,969 329482 277,464 3192 (350,799)  1,036270 2859692 4,787,097
REFEH Profitfor the year - - - - - - - - - TI680 516890
EzEks Other comprehensive income - - - - - (150128) -0 22030 -0
DERAASIZHER  Issuance of new ordinary
R OEG) shares by way of rights
BRkTE issue,net of share issue
(FEE33(a)) expenses (Note 33(2)i) 824242 - - - - - - - - - M
—~FBENFZHERR  Issuance of subordinated
KTRRE-RER  additional tier 1 capital
% securities by a subsidiary
of an associate - 192,214 - - - - - - 192,214 - 192,214
RE Dividend - - - - - - - - - (29,863) (29,863)
~FELLNTHE-F  Released ondissolution of
HEATEED a subsidiary by an
associate - - - (70) 474 - - - 404 (404) -
B Transfers - - 163449 15,577 - - - - 1906 (179026) -
RN7EN AR At 31 December 2017 1715377 192,214 87141 84476 329956 127,336 3192 19651 1628236 3167289 6,510,902
BRiT Representing:
W7 FRERE 2017 proposed dividend - - - - - - - - - 47781 47781
£ Others 17153717 192,214 87141 84476 329956 127,336 3192 19651 1628236 3119508 6,463,121
R17E1A3A At 31 December 2017 17153717 192214 871411 84476 329956 127,336 3,192 19651 1628236 3167289 6,510,902
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

#FE2018F 12.H 31 H 1L F/%  For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
it EBETFT B F T
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
RETERE Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
FAS ORE) B8 operations 36(a) 101,231 (161,979)
BEHBFHE Interest received 36,703 34,421
ERFE Interest paid (21,626) (31,482)
BT H A EERA Other borrowing costs paid 36(b) (1,234) (1,400)
EANEZAE] Tax paid (26,000) (35,357)
REEBTEHRS Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
A GRE) B operating activites | 89,074 | | (195,797)
REEE Investing activities
BIERBEEERERT Placement of bank deposits pursuant to
MERZ BITFER insurance regulatory requirements (3,667) (7,582)
TREVE R 2 IR1TE Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits 1,133 8,100
() /REVREIE A (Placement)/withdrawal of bank deposits
BiB=EA ZRITFER with original maturity over three months (104,942) 32,946
BATHLEESRERE Purchase of available-for-sale financial
assets - (27,060)
BARKFIRERE Purchase of investment receivables - (129,215)
A - WS RHRE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,902) (205)
BABREEE Purchase of intangible assets (1,080) -
B —KEE A RIRE Dividend received from an associate 153,195 250,075
FE O e R IRRRIR & Redemption of investment receivables 136,666 -
HEMHEESHEE Sale of available-for-sale financial assets - 50,887
HEYE - SN RE Sale of property, plant and equipment 12 17
RETEBRERAFE Net cash inflow from investing
activites 179,415 | 177,963
RMEETEANES Net cash inflow/(outflow) before
WA CR) B8 financing activities 268,489 (17,834)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE20184F 12 H 31 HI4/%  For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
it B TFT BT T
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
R EE Financing activities
AR T 3172 Fr & BmAY  Net proceeds from issuance of new
I (7 S s I8 F 58 ordinary shares by way of rights issue = 824,242
WEERTER Bank loans obtained 36(b) 200,000 -
EBERITER Bank loans repaid 36(b) (356,880) (806,352)
PIELTi esN Dividend paid (47,781) (29,863)
FRERS ZIRITER Placement of restricted bank deposit  36(b) (227,800) -
REVER & 2 RIT1FE N Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits ~ 36(b) 46,699 -
RMEFTHRERNEEH Net cash outflow from financing
activites | (385,762) | (11,973)
ReRASEEWRD Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (117,273) (29,807)
1A1R&FZERER Cash and cash equivalents at
BEZEEY 1 January 1,184,547 1,129,111
EREFH oL Effect of foreign exchange rates changes (63,849) 85,243
12831 BEFEZRER Cash and cash equivalents at
REeEEY 31 December 1,003,425 1,184,547
ReRBESEEYHER Analysis of the balances of cash
ki and cash equivalents
We MIRTTETF Cash and bank balances 28 1,405,380 1,300,589
o AR IEREEEEHE Less: Bank deposits placed pursuant
MEMERZ RIT to insurance regulatory
T requirements 28 (47,760) (44,093)
BIREH 2 HRITFER Restricted bank deposits 28 (228,939) (51,635)
JREIEAREB=1EH Bank deposits with original
ZRITIER maturity over three months (125,256) (20,314)
1,003,425 1,184,547

B @ABMRAF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Min Xin Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively refer to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in financial services,
insurance, trading in motor vehicles, property
development and investment and strategic investment.

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of its
registered office is 17th Floor, Fairmont House, 8
Cotton Tree Drive, Central, Hong Kong. The Company
is listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

The directors of the Company consider that Vigour
Fine, a limited liability company incorporated in
Hong Kong, is the immediate holding company of
the Company and FIDG, a company established in the
People’s Republic of China, is the ultimate holding
company of the Company.

These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 27
March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in
the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collectively refer to all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations (“Ints”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”"), and have been aligned with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure requirements of
the Listing Rules.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at
their fair value as explained in the accounting policies
set out below:

financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

- financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative financial instruments) at fair value
through profit or loss

investment properties

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale
and repossessed assets are stated at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with the HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. Although these estimates
are based on management’s best knowledge of current
events and actions, actual results may differ from those
estimates.

Estimates and judgement made by management are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity or where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 3.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

The Group has adopted the following new standards
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and amendments to standards issued by the HKICPA:

HKFRS 9

- HKFRS 15

- Amendments to
HKAS 40

- Amendments to
HKFRS 2

- Amendments to
HKFRS 4

- HK(IFRIC) -

Interpretation 22

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Transfers of Investment
Property

Classification and Measurement
of Share-Based Payment
Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

- Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle

- Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

- Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

The Group has been impacted by HKFRS 9 in relation
to classification and measurement of financial assets
and measurement of credit losses. The adoption of
other new standards and amendments to standards
had insignificant or no effect on these consolidated
financial statements.

Details of the changes in accounting policies are
discussed below.

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”. It sets out the
requirements for recognising and measuring financial
assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to buy or
sell non-financial items.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to items
that existed at 1 January 2018 in accordance with the
transition requirements. Under the transition method
chosen, the Group has recognised the cumulative
effect of initial application as an adjustment to
the opening equity at 1 January 2018. Therefore,
comparative information continues to be reported
under HKAS 39 and not restated.

Up to the date of issuance of these consolidated
financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number
of new standards and amendments to standards which
are not yet effective for the accounting year ended
31 December 2018 and which have not been early
adopted in these consolidated financial statements as
follows:

- HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

- Amendments to Definition of Material
HKAS 1 and

HKAS 8
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2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Amendments to
HKAS 19

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to

HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

HK(IFRIC) -

Interpretation 23

Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures

Definition of a Business

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these new standards and
amendments to standards is expected to be in the
period of initial application, except for the impact on
the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 as disclosed below, it
is impracticable to quantify the effect as at the date of
issuance of these consolidated financial statements.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases - Incentives and
HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets
out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two elective recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low value assets
and short-term leases. At the commencement date
of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make
lease payments (i.e. the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset
during the lease term (i.e. the right-of-use asset). The
right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property in HKAS 40. The lease liability is
subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the
lease liability and reduced for the lease payments.
Lessees will be required to separately recognise
the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees
will also be required to re-measure the lease liability
upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change
in the lease term and change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine those payments. As a practical expedient,
the lessee can elect not to apply this accounting model
to short-term leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12
months or less) and to leases of low-value assets, in
which case the rental expenses would continue to be
recognised on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from the accounting under HKAS 17.
Lessors will continue to classify all leases using
the same classification principle as in HKAS 17 and
distinguish between operating leases and finance
leases.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

At 31 December 2018, the Group had non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$104,000 as set
out in Note 35(a), which are all payable within 1 year
after the reporting date. The Directors of the Company
do not consider the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 will
have significant impact on the financial position
and operating results of the Group, after taking into
account the applicability of the practical expedient.

The following table gives a summary of the opening
balance adjustments recognised for each line item in
the consolidated statement of financial position that
has been impacted by HKFRS 9:

NBERER
B # R & 2R
FORNEE
Impact on
12 A31H initial 1A1H
31 December application 1 January
2017 of HKFRS 9 2018
BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
=N Associates 4,842,032 (64,518) 4,777,514
B ERAEA Financial assets at fair value
ZHEHREDEF through other comprehensive
BiE income - 503,514 503,514
AEHESHEE Available-for-sale financial assets 503,514 (503,514) -
EREBEE Non-current assets 5,548,447 (64,518) 5,483,929
FEYRIEFEIR A Investments in receivables 132,105 (132,105) -
H b U BR X Other debtors 6,324 (1,497) 4,827
BATERBER Financial assets at fair value
SRR SR EE through profit or loss 304 133,602 133,906
REEE Current assets 1,693,972 - 1,693,972
EEFE Net assets 6,510,902 (64,518) 6,446,384
HihFES Other reserves 1,628,236 (25,670) 1,602,566
N ERER Fair value reserve
(RIBER) (i) (recycling) (i) 127,336 (307,435) (180,099)
NEEFES Fair value reserve
(A EIR) (non-recycling) - 281,765 281,765
REBHF Retained profits 3,167,289 (38,848) 3,128,441
AATRRE/E#EZ  Total equity attributable to
pak o) shareholders of the Company 6,510,902 (64,518) 6,446,384

() 2FEEES(AIEER)R2017F
NRANBNESRABRERESE
ARSI EM R E FELHEB

N
i e

(i) The balance of fair value reserve (recycling) at
31 December 2017 represents the investment
revaluation reserve under HKAS 39 basis.
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2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

The following table summarises the impact of
transition to HKFRS 9 on retained profits and other
reserves and the related tax impact at 1 January 2018:

EBETT
HK$’000
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Retained profits

Recognition of share of results/assets of an associate:
Recognition of additional expected credit losses
on financial assets measured at amortised cost
and FVOCI (67,996)
Transferred from fair value reserve (recycling)
relating to financial assets now measured

at FVPL 38,825
Remeasurement upon reclassification of

financial assets from amortised cost to FVPL (17,984)
Related tax impact 8,307

Net decrease in retained profits at 1 January 2018 (38,848)

Fair value reserve (recycling)

Transferred to fair value reserve (non-recycling)
relating to equity investments now measured
at Fvoci (280,128)
Recognition of share of results/assets of associates:
Transferred to retained profits relating to
financial assets now measured at FVPL (38,825)
Transferred to fair value reserve (non-recycling)
relating to equity investments now measured

at Fvodl (1,637)
Recognition of additional expected credit

losses on debt securities measured at FVOCI 3,142
Remeasurement upon reclassification of

financial assets from amortised cost to FVOCI (22)
Related tax impact 10,035

Net decrease in fair value reserve (recycling)
at 1 January 2018 (307,435)

Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

Transferred from fair value reserve (recycling)
relating to equity investments now measured
at FvoCI 280,128
Recognition of share of results/assets of associates:
Transferred from fair value reserve (recycling)
relating to equity investments now measured

at FVOCI 1,637
Net increase in fair value reserve (non-recycling)
at 1 January 2018 281,765
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes
to previous accounting policies and the transition
approach are set out below:

(i)  Classification of financial assets and financial
liabilities

HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal
classification categories: measured at amortised cost,
at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”) and at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL"). These supersede categories of at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-
to-maturity and available-for-sale under HKAS 39.
The classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is
based on the business model under which the financial
asset is managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics.

Derivatives embedded in contracts where the host
is a financial asset in the scope of HKFRS 9 are not
separated from the host. Instead, the hybrid instrument
as a whole is assessed for classification.

The following table shows the original measurement
categories for each class of the Group’s financial assets
under HKAS 39 and reconciles the carrying amounts
of those financial assets determined in accordance
with HKAS 39 to those determined in accordance with
HKFRS 9:
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2 FEGFEUR (M) 2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.2 ERTBUREHE () 2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(i) EMEE R [E 5 (i)  Classification of financial assets and financial
(%) liabilities (Continued)
EBEHER ERUMEHRE
£395 ERE IR
2017128310 20181418
HERHEE HEREE
HKAS 39 carrying HKFRS 9 carrying
amounts at EfOE amounts at
31December2017  Reclassification 1 January 2018
BETT BETFT BETT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
SREETER Financial assets measured at:
BHERA Amortised cost
REERATENSHEE  Financial assets at amortised cost
(ZE () (Note (i)) - 3,119 3,119
BEHHBSAEE (75() Held-to-maturity financial assets (Note (i)) 3,119 (3,119) -
EEERMEWF & Loans to customers and interest receivable 26,065 - 26,065
M IBRIRE (5 (ii)) Investments in receivables (Note (i) 132,105 (132,105) -
Hofth FEUCR TR (5E (i) Other debtors (Note (ii)) 6,324 (1,497) 42827
BeRRT&EF Cash and bank balances 1,300,589 - 1,300,589
1,468,202 (133,602) 1,334,600
BRAHEERBRIE FVPL
FEMHUREERE (FE (i) Investments in receivables (Note (ii)) - 133,602 133,602
BRAHEEABRTIR Financial assets at fair value through
MemEE profit or loss
RIFEENBEE S Equity securities held for trading 304 - 304
304 133,602 133,906
BAVEFAHM2EKE  FVOCI (non-recycling)
(FARR)
EREEENREZRS Equity securities not held for trading
(& (iii) (Note (iii)) - 503,514 503,514
AHLE Available-for-sale
IEFEEERNIRIER 5 Equity securities not held for trading
(&F (i) (Note (iii)) 503,514 (503,514) -

130 {5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i)  Classification of financial assets and financial
liabilities (Continued)

Note (i) The category of held-to-maturity under HKAS
39 was no longer used under HKFRS 9. At 1
January 2018, the Group reclassified held-to-
maturity financial assets to financial assets
at amortised cost, and its measurement
remained unchanged.

Note (ii) The investments in receivables represented
fixed-term and principal guaranteed wealth
management products issued by a bank in
Mainland China. These financial assets have
contractual cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest and are
therefore measured at FVPL under HKFRS 9.
These financial assets and related interest
receivable are reclassified to FVPL at 1
January 2018.

Note (iii) Under HKAS 39, equity securities not held
for trading were classified as available-for-
sale financial assets. These equity securities
are classified as FVPL under HKFRS 9,
unless they are eligible for election and
designation as FVOCI. At 1 January 2018,
the Group designated its investment in
Huaneng A-Shares as FVOCI (non-recycling)
as the investment is held for long term and
strategic purposes.

The measurement categories for all financial liabilities
of the Group remain the same. The carrying amounts
for all financial liabilities at 1 January 2018 have not
been impacted by the initial application of HKFRS 9.

The Group did not designate or de-designate any
financial asset or financial liability at FVPL at 1 January
2018.

An explanation of how the Group classifies and
measures financial instruments and accounts for
related gains and losses under HKFRS 9 is described in
Notes 2.9 and 2.11(i) respectively.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(i) Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39
with the expected credit loss (“ECL") model. The ECL
model requires an ongoing measurement of credit
risk associated with a financial asset and therefore
recognises expected credit losses (“ECLs") earlier than
under the “incurred loss” accounting model in HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL model to the following
items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including debt securities, loans to customers
and interest receivable, insurance receivable,
reinsurance assets, other debtors, cash and bank
balances); and

- debt securities measured at FVOCI (recycling).

As a result of this change in accounting policy, the
Group has recognised share of additional ECLs of
XIB Group, an associate of the Group, amounted to
HK$67,996,000, which decreased both retained profits
and associates by HK$67,996,000 at 1 January 2018.

The opening impairment allowances of the Group
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9 at 1 January
2018 remain the same as the closing impairment
allowances of the Group determined in accordance
with HKAS 39 at 31 December 2017.

Additional information about how the Group measures
the allowance for impairment is described in Note
2.11(i).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(iii) Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting from the
adoption of HKFRS 9 have been applied retrospectively,
except as described below:

- Information relating to comparative periods has
not been restated. Differences in the carrying
amounts of financial assets resulting from the
adoption of HKFRS 9 are recognised in retained
profits and other reserves at 1 January 2018.
Accordingly, the information presented for 2017
continues to be reported under HKAS 39 and thus
may not be comparable with the current period.

- The following assessments have been made on
the basis of the facts and circumstances that
existed at 1 January 2018 (the date of initial
application of HKFRS 9 by the Group):

- the determination of the business model
within which a financial asset is held; and

- the designation of certain investments in
equity instruments not held for trading to
be classified as measured at FVOCI (non-
recycling).

- If, at the date of initial application, the assessment
of whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition would have
involved undue cost or effort, a lifetime ECL has
been recognised for that financial instrument.
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries and the Group's interests in associates
made up to 31 December.

(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities)
controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity
when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power,
only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

Subsidiaries are consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control
commenced until the date that control ceases.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed,
where necessary, in the consolidated financial
statements to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The Group uses the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair value of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at fair value at the date of acquisition. For
each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
identifiable net assets.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
changes in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (Note 2.9) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate (Note 2.3(b)). In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in respect of
that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income are
reclassified to the consolidated income statement or
transferred directly to retained profits when the Group
loses control of the subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised profits but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of
those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated income statement
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the shareholders of the
Company.

Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and
other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with
Notes 2.21 or 2.22 depending on the nature of the
liability.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less impairment losses (Note 2.11(ii)), unless the
investments are classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale)
(Note 2.18). The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(b) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

Investments in associates are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless they are classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale) (Note 2.18). Under the equity method, the
investments are initially recognised at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair value of the investees’ identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investments (if any). The cost of the
investments include purchase price, other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investments, and
any direct investment into the associates that forms
part of the Group’s equity investments. Thereafter,
the investments are adjusted for the post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the investees’ net
assets and any impairment losses relating to the
investments (Notes 2.4 and 2.11(ii)). The consolidated
income statement includes the acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year, whereas the Group’s share of the

post-acquisition, post-tax items of the investees’

other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
The accounting policies of the investees have been
aligned, where necessary, in the consolidated financial
statements to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
(b) Associates (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interests
in an associate, the Group’s interests are reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group's
interests in an associate are the carrying amount of the
investments under the equity method together with
the Group's long-term interests that in substance form
part of the Group's net investments in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in
the investees, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred,
in which case they are recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when significant influence
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (Note 2.9). In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in respect of that investee are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
(b) Associates (Continued)

When the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the interest reduced
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in the consolidated income statement. In
addition, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income relating to that reduction
in ownership interest is reclassified to consolidated
income statement where appropriate.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
the investments in associates are stated at cost less
impairment losses (Note 2.11(ii)), unless they are
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale) (Note 2.18). The
results of associates are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

2.4 Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) the Group's interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is

recognised immediately in the consolidated income
statement as a gain on a bargain purchase.
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (Note 2.11(ii)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year,
any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the gains or losses on
disposal.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment, including leasehold
land and land use rights held for own use, are stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
assets.

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with that asset will
flow to the Group and the cost of that asset can be
measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance
costs are expensed in the income statement during the
period in which they are incurred.

Gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined by comparing the net sale proceeds with
the carrying amount and is recognised in the income
statement on the date of retirement or disposal.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, over their estimated useful lives
at the following annual rates:

(a) Straight line method

Leasehold land and
land use rights held
for own use

Over the unexpired term of
the lease

Over the shorter of the
unexpired term of the lease
and 30 years

Buildings held for
own use

Computer equipment  20% - 50%

(b) Reducing balance method

Furniture, fixtures and  10% - 20%
office equipment

Motor vehicles 20% - 25%

An asset’s residual value and useful life are reviewed,

and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date. An

asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to

its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount

is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.11(ii)).
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6 Intangible assets

Intangible assets which comprise software are stated
at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
assets.

Costs associated with maintaining computer system
are expensed in the income statement during the
period in which they are incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 3
to 4 years.

Gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of intangible asset is determined by comparing
the net sale proceeds with the carrying amount and
is recognised in the income statement on the date of
retirement or disposal.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset are reviewed, and adjusted,
if appropriate, at each reporting date. An intangible
asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the intangible asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount (Note 2.11(ii)).

2.7 Investment properties

Investment properties are land or buildings, or both
which are owned or held to earn rental income or for
capital appreciation or both, and are not occupied by
the companies within the Group. They comprise land
held under operating leases and buildings held under
finance leases.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Investment properties (Continued)

Land held under operating leases are classified and
accounted for as investment property on a property-
by-property basis when the rest of the definition of
investment property is met. The operating lease of
land classified as investment property is accounted for
as if it was a finance lease.

Investment properties are measured initially at their
costs, including related transaction costs. After initial
recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value. Fair value is based on active market prices and
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. If this
information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less
active markets or discounted cash flow projections.
Investment property that is being redeveloped for
continuing use as investment property, or for which
the market has become less active, continues to be
measured at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the period
in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair value and gain or loss on disposal of
an investment property are recognised in the income
statement as part of “Other gains/(losses) — net”.

When a property held for own use is reclassified to
investment property following a change in its use,
any difference arising at the date of reclassification
between the carrying amount of the property held for
own use immediately prior to the reclassification and
the change in fair value as a result of revaluation is
recognised as below:
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Investment properties (Continued)

(@) If the carrying amount of the property is increased
as a result of the revaluation, the increase shall be
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the leasehold
buildings revaluation reserve.

(b) If the carrying amount of the property is
decreased as a result of the revaluation, the
decrease shall be recognised in the income
statement.

On subsequent disposal of the investment property,
the revaluation surplus recognised in the leasehold
buildings revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to retained profits.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied,
it is reclassified as a property held for own use and its
fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its
deemed cost for subsequent accounting in accordance
with Note 2.5.

2.8 Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are collateral assets taken by the
Group through court proceedings or voluntary delivery
of possession by the borrowers.

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at fair
value, and the related outstanding loans and interest
receivable together with the related impairment
allowances are derecognised from the consolidated
statement of financial position. Repossessed assets are
not depreciated or amortised.

Repossessed assets are subsequently measured at
the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell. When the fair value less costs to sell is lower
than the carrying amount of a repossessed asset, an
impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.

When a repossessed asset is disposed of, the difference
between the net sale proceeds and the carrying
amount is recognised in the income statement.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments

(i) Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and loans to customers are initially
recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assets (including regular-way purchases and sales of
financial assets) and financial liabilities are initially
recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without
a significant financing component) or financial liability
is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not
at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a
significant financing component is initially measured
at the transaction price.

(i) Classification

Financial assets — Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as
measured at: amortised cost, FVOCI| or FVPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to
their initial recognition unless the Group changes its
business model for managing financial assets, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on
the first day of the first reporting period following the
change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates

to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Classification (Continued)

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets
both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVPL. This includes all derivative
financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at amortised
cost or at FVOCI as at FVPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that
would otherwise arise.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (Continued)
(i) Classification (Continued)

Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of
the business model in which a financial asset is held at
a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the
business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio
and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether management’s strategy
focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets to
the duration of any related liabilities or expected
cash outflows or realising cash flows through the
sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated
and reported to the Group’s management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the
business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks
are managed;

- how managers of the business are compensated
- e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual
cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of
financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for
such sales and expectations about future sales
activity. However, information about sales activity
is not considered in isolation, but as part of an
overall assessment of how the Group’s stated
objective for managing the financial assets is
achieved and how cash flows are realised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Classification (Continued)

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in
transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are
not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with
the Group’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are
managed and whose performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis are measured at FVPL.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely
payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal” is
defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. “Interest” is defined as consideration
for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding
during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and
administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are
solely payments of principal and interest, the Group
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This
includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the timing or
amount of contractual cash flows such that it would
not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount
or timing of cash flows;

- leverage features;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon
rate, including variable-rate features;
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Classification (Continued)
- prepayment and extension features;

- terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows
from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features);
and

- features that modify consideration of the time
value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest
rates).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely
payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid
amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable
additional compensation for early termination of the
contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at
a discount or premium to its contractual par amount,
a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an
amount that substantially represents the contractual
par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual
interest (which may also include reasonable additional
compensation for early termination) is treated as
consistent with this criterion if the fair value of
the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial
recognition.
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (Continued)
(i) Classification (Continued)

Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVPL: These assets are subsequently
measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including
any interest or dividend income, are recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost: These assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The amortised cost
is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI: These assets are
subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI: These assets are
subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognised as income in profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and are
never reclassified to profit or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (Continued)
(i) Classification (Continued)

Financial assets — Policy applicable before 1 January 2018

The Group classified its financial assets into one of the
following categories:

loans and receivables;

- held to maturity;
- available for sale; and

- at FVPL, and within this category as:

held for trading;

derivative hedging instruments; or

designated as at FVPL.

Subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial assets at FVPL: Measured at fair value and
changes therein, including any interest or dividend

income, were recognised in profit or loss.

Held-to-maturity financial assets: Measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Loans and receivables: Measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Classification (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets: Measured at fair
value and changes therein, other than impairment
losses, interest income and foreign currency differences
on debt instruments which were recognised in profit or
loss, were recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the fair value reserve. When these
assets were derecognised, the gain or loss accumulated
in equity was reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities — Classification, subsequent measurement
and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at
amortised cost or FVPL. A financial liability is classified
as at FVPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it
is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVPL are measured
at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss.
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss
on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (Continued)
(iii) Derecognition
Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retain control of the financial asset.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers
assets recognised in its statement of financial position,
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the
transferred assets are not derecognised.

In transactions in which the Group neither retains nor
transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of a financial asset and it retains control
over the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement,
determined by the extent to which it is exposed to
changes in the value of the transferred asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the carrying amount of the asset (or the
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset
derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any
new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss.
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (Continued)
(ii1) Derecognition (Continued)

From 1 January 2018 any cumulative gain/loss
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect
of equity investment securities designated as at FVOCI
is not recognised in profit or loss on derecognition of
such securities. Any interest in transferred financial
assets that qualify for derecognition that is created or
retained by the Group is recognised as a separate asset
or liability.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its
contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire. The Group also derecognises a financial liability
when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different, in which
case a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference
between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in
profit or loss.

(iv) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has
a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only
when permitted under HKFRSs, or for gains and losses
arising from a group of similar transactions such as in
the Group’s trading activity.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(v) Fair value measurement

“Fair value” is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date in the principal or, in its absence,
the most advantageous market to which the Group has
access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects
its non-performance risk.

When one is available, the Group measures the fair
value of an instrument using the quoted price in an
active market for that instrument. A market is regarded
as “active” if transactions for the asset or liability take
place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide
pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the
Group uses valuation techniques that maximise the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of
unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique
incorporates all of the factors that market participants
would take into account in pricing a transaction.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial
instrument on initial recognition is normally
the transaction price - i.e. the fair value of the
consideration given or received. If the Group
determines that the fair value on initial recognition
differs from the transaction price and the fair value
is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability nor based on
a valuation technique for which any unobservable
inputs are judged to be insignificant in relation to the
measurement, then the financial instrument is initially
measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference
between the fair value on initial recognition and the
transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is
recognised in profit or loss on an appropriate basis
over the life of the instrument but no later than when
the valuation is wholly supported by observable
market data or the transaction is closed out.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(v) Fair value measurement (Continued)

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid
price and an ask price, then the Group measures assets
and long positions at a bid price and liabilities and
short positions at an ask price.

Portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are exposed to market risk and credit risk that
are managed by the Group on the basis of the net
exposure to either market or credit risk are measured
on the basis of a price that would be received to sell
a net long position (or paid to transfer a net short
position) for the particular risk exposure. Portfolio-level
adjustments - e.g. bid-ask adjustment or credit risk
adjustments that reflect the measurement on the basis
of the net exposure — are allocated to the individual
assets and liabilities on the basis of the relative risk
adjustment of each of the individual instruments in the
portfolio.

The fair value of a financial liability with a demand
feature is not less than the amount payable on
demand, discounted from the first date on which the
amount could be required to be paid.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the
fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

2.10 Hedge Accounting

The Group does not adopt hedge accounting for
derivatives which may qualify as eligible cash flow
hedges or fair value hedges.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Impairment
(i) Non-derivative financial assets

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
Financial instruments

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs on:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including debt investments, loans to customers
and interest receivable, insurance receivable,
reinsurance assets, other debtors, cash and bank
balances); and

- debt investments measured at FVOCI.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which
are measured at 12-month ECLs:

- debt securities that are determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balances for which
credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over
the expected life of the financial instrument)
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition.

The Group considers a debt security to have low credit
risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent to the
globally understood definition of “investment grade”.

While cash and bank balances are also subject to the

ECL assessment, the identified loss allowance was
immaterial.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Impairment (Continued)

(i) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Loss allowances for insurance receivable, reinsurance
assets and other debtors are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on
the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.

For loans to customers, interest receivable and all other
financial instruments, the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Impairment (Continued)
(i) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward-looking information.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial assets, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial assets are grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due
status, credit risk ratings and collateral types.
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Impairment (Continued)

(i) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default
when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or

- the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value
of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from
default events that are possible within the 12 months
after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the
expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the
financial assets.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Impairment (Continued)

(i) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial assets’ credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial
asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable data:

significant financial difficulty of the borrower or
issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a default or being
more than 90 days past due;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise;

- significant changes in the technological, market,

economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the borrower;
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Impairment (Continued)

(i) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

- it is probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties.

Basis of calculation of interest income on credit-impaired
financial assets

Interest income recognised in accordance with Note
2.28(a) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of
financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at
amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is
charged to profit or loss and is recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Impairment (Continued)
(i) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)
Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off when the Group has no reasonable expectations of
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group individually makes an assessment
with respect to the timing and amount of write-off
based on whether there is a reasonable expectation
of recovery. The Group expects no significant recovery
from the amount written off. However, financial
assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the
Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Policy applicable before 1 January 2018

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the assets (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Objective evidence
that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
obligor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- the Group granting to the issuer or obligor,
for economic or legal reasons relating to their
financial difficulty, a concession that a lender
would not otherwise consider;
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Impairment (Continued)

(i) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

- it becoming probable that the issuer or obligor
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

- observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from a group of financial assets since
the initial recognition of those assets, although
the decrease cannot yet be identified with the
individual financial asset in the group, including:

- adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the group; or

- national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the

group.

If any such evidence existed, an impairment loss was
determined and recognised as follows:

For loans and receivables and other financial assets
carried at amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the financial
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the financial asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the income statement. If, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in the income
statement.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Impairment (Continued)

(i) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

For equity securities classified as available-for-sale,
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the equity securities below their cost is considered
in determining whether the assets are impaired.
The cumulative loss that had been recognised in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to the
income statement. The amount of the cumulative
loss that is recognised in the income statement is the
difference between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in the income statement.
For unquoted available-for-sale equity securities that
are carried at cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount of the
equity securities and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset, where the effect
of discount is material. Impairment losses recognised
in the income statement in respect of available-for-sale
equity securities are not reversed through the income
statement. Any subsequent increase in the fair value
of such assets is recognised directly in statement of
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the investment revaluation reserve.
Furthermore, any further decline in value after an
impairment loss had been recognised in the income
statement should be recognised immediately in the
income statement.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Impairment (Continued)

(i1) Other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether
there is an indication that a non-financial asset is
impaired. Assets that have an indefinite useful life
or have not yet available for use are not subject to
amortisation and are at least tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

If any such indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for a non-financial asset is
required, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit).

An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement for the amount by which the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value less costs to
sell, or value in use, if determinable.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Impairment (Continued)

(i1) Other non-financial assets (Continued)

Previously recognised impairment losses on goodwill
are not reversed in subsequent periods. Previously
recognised impairment losses on other assets are
reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of an asset, however not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any amortisation or depreciation), had no
impairment loss been recognised against the asset in
prior periods. Reversal of impairment loss is credited to
the income statement in the period in which it arises.

(ii1) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (Notes 2.11(i) and 2.11(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities
and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if
no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised
had the impairment been assessed only at the end of
the financial year to which the interim period relates.
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Insurance contracts classification
The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk.

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer
significant insurance risk. The Group defines significant
insurance risk as the possibility of having to pay
benefits on the occurrence of an insured event that
are at least 10% more than the benefits payable if the
insured event did not occur.

2.13 Insurance contracts

(a) Classification

Insurance contracts are classified depending on the
duration of risk and whether or not the terms and
conditions are fixed.

Short-term insurance contracts issued by the Group
are casualty and property insurance contracts.

Casualty insurance contracts protect the Group’s
customers against the risk of financial loss arising
from causing harm to third parties as a result of their
legitimate activities. Damages covered include both
contractual and non-contractual events. The typical
protection offered is designed for employers who
become legally liable to pay compensation to injured
employees (employers’ liability) and for individual
and business customers who become liable to pay
compensation to a third party for bodily harm or
property damage (public liability).

Property insurance contracts mainly compensate
the Group’s customers for damage suffered to
their properties or for the value of property lost.
Customers who undertake commercial activities on
their premises could also receive compensation for
the loss of earnings caused by the inability to use the
insured properties in their business activities (business
interruption cover).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.13 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(a) Classification (Continued)

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged
to the income statement as incurred based on the
estimated liability for compensation owed to contract
holders or third parties damaged by the contract
holders. They include direct and indirect claims
settlement costs and arise from events that have
occurred up to the reporting date even if they have
not yet been reported to the Group. The Group does
not discount its liabilities for unpaid claims. Liabilities
for unpaid claims are estimated using the input of
assessments for individual cases reported to the Group
and statistical analyses for the claims incurred but
not reported, and to estimate the expected ultimate
costs of more complex claims that may be affected by
external factors (such as court decisions).

(b) Deferred acquisition costs (“DAC”)

Commissions and other acquisition costs that vary
with and are related to securing new contracts and
renewing existing contracts are capitalised as an asset,
DAC. All other costs are recognised as expenses when
incurred. The DAC is subsequently amortised over the
life of the contracts as premium is earned.

(c) Liability adequacy test

At each reporting date, liability adequacy tests are
performed to ensure the adequacy of the contract
liabilities net of related DAC assets. In performing these
tests, current best estimates of future contractual cash
flows and claims handling and administration expenses
are used. Any deficiency is immediately charged to
the income statement initially by writing off DAC and
subsequently by establishing a provision for losses
arising from liability adequacy tests (the unexpired risk
provision). Any DAC written off as a result of this test
cannot subsequently be reinstated.
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.13 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(d) Reinsurance contracts held

Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers
under which the Group is compensated for losses on
one or more contracts issued by the Group and that
meet the classification requirements for insurance
contracts in Note 2.12 are classified as reinsurance
contracts held. Contracts that do not meet these
classification requirements are classified as financial
assets. Insurance contracts entered into by the Group
under which the contract holder is another insurer
(inwards reinsurance) are included as “Insurance
contracts” in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The benefits to which the Group is entitled under
its reinsurance contracts held are recognised as
reinsurance assets. These assets consist of short-
term balances due from reinsurers, as well as longer
term receivables that are dependent on the expected
claims and benefits arising under the related
reinsurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or
due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the
amounts associated with the reinsurance contracts
and in accordance with the terms of each reinsurance
contract. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily premiums
payable for reinsurance contracts and are recognised
as an expense over the terms of reinsurance contracts
and are included as “Insurance payable” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group assesses its reinsurance assets for
impairment on a regular basis. If there is objective
evidence that the reinsurance asset is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount of the reinsurance
asset to its recoverable amount and recognises
that impairment loss in the consolidated income
statement. The Group gathers the objective evidence
that a reinsurance asset is impaired and calculates the
impairment losses using the same processes adopted
as described in Note 2.11(i).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.13 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(e) Receivables and payables related to insurance
contracts

Receivables and payables are recognised when due.
These include amounts due to and from agents,
brokers and insurance contract holders.

If there is objective evidence that the insurance
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount of the insurance receivable to its recoverable
amount and recognises that impairment loss in the
consolidated income statement. The Group gathers
the objective evidence that an insurance receivable is
impaired and calculates the impairment losses using
the same processes adopted as described in Note
2.11(3).

(f) Salvage and subrogation reimbursements

Some insurance contracts permit the Group to sell
(usually damaged) property acquired in settling a
claim (salvage). The Group may also have the right to
pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs
(subrogation).

Estimates of salvage recoveries are included as an
allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability
for claims, and salvage property is recognised in other
assets when the liability is settled. The allowance is
the amount that can reasonably be recovered from the
disposal of the property.

Subrogation reimbursements are also considered as an
allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability
for claims and are recognised in other assets when
the liability is settled. The allowance is the amount
assessed that can be recovered from the action against
the liable third party.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.14 Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated on specific identification basis as
appropriate and comprises all costs of purchase and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is based on the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of the expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

2.15 Land use rights

All land in Mainland China is state-owned and no
individual ownership right existed. The premiums paid
for the land use rights held for development for sale
are classified as inventories in accordance with HKAS
2 “Inventories” and measured at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Land use rights are transferred
to properties under development for sale upon
commencement of development.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.16 Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are included in
current assets and stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to estimated sale proceeds of the properties
sold in the ordinary course of business less estimated
variable selling expenses and anticipated costs to
completion, or by management’s estimates based on
prevailing market conditions.

Development costs of properties comprise land use
rights, construction costs, capitalised finance costs and
professional fees incurred during the development
period of a normal operating cycle. On completion,
the development costs of properties are transferred to
completed properties held for sale.

2.17 Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are completed
properties remaining unsold at the reporting date and
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost comprises development cost attributable to the
unsold properties. Net realisable value is determined
by reference to estimated sale proceeds of the
properties sold in the ordinary course of business
less estimated variable selling expenses, or by
management’s estimates based on prevailing market
conditions.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.18 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for
sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified
as held for sale if the carrying amount is recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through a continuing use and the asset (or disposal
group) is available for sale in its present condition.

Immediately before the initial classification as held
for sale, the carrying amounts of the non-current
assets (and all individual assets and liabilities in the
disposal group) shall be measured in accordance
with applicable HKFRSs. Then, on initial classification
as held for sale and until disposal, the non-current
assets (except for certain assets as explained below),
or disposal groups, are recognised at the lower of
their carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell. Deferred tax assets, financial assets (other than
investments in subsidiaries and associates), insurance
contracts and investment properties, even if held for
sale, would continue to be measured in accordance
with the policies set out elsewhere in Note 2.

As long as a non-current asset is classified as held
for sale, or is included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated or amortised.

If a non-current asset previously classified as held for
sale, or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale no longer met the recognition criteria
stated above, the Group measures that asset at the
lower of its carrying amount before that asset was
classified as held for sale, adjusted for any depreciation,
amortisation or revaluation that would have been
recognised had that asset not been classified as held
for sale, and its recoverable amount at the date of the
subsequent decision not to sell.

The Group includes any required adjustment to the
carrying amount of a non-current asset that ceases to
be classified as held for sale in income from continuing
operations at the date of the subsequent decision not
to sell.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.19 Other debtors

Other debtors are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
effective interest method, less impairment losses, if
any.

2.20 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks
and in hand, deposits held at call with banks, cash
investments with original maturity of three months or
less from the date of investment less bank overdrafts.

2.21 Financial liabilities — Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial liability,
including fees and commissions paid to the borrowers.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings,
together with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liabilities for at least twelve months
after the reporting date.

2.22 Financial liabilities — Creditors and payables

Creditors and payables are initially recognised at fair
value and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount can be reliably estimated. Where there are
a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow of economic benefits
with respect to any one item included in the same class
of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed,
for example under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.24 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow of
economic benefits occurs so that the outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain events not wholly within the control of
the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements
when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When
the inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.25 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains or losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation at closing
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities, such as equity instruments held at
fair value through profit or loss, are reported as part of
the fair value gains or losses in the income statement.
Translation differences on non-monetary items, such
as equity investments at FVOCI, are included in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.25 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(¢) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

assets and liabilities in their statement of financial
position are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position;

- income and expenses in their income statement
are translated at average exchange rates,
unless these average exchange rates are not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing at the transaction
dates. In such case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions; and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the
net investments in foreign operations are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is partially disposed
of or sold, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to the income statement as
part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.26 Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that they relate to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case they are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the assets can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary differences or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account
if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.26 Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets and liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

Where investment property is carried at its fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2.7, the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale
of that investment property at its carrying value at
the reporting date unless that investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in that investment
property over time, rather than through sale. In all
other case, the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of realisation
or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each reporting date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit
to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.26 Income tax (Continued)

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on the same taxable entity.

2.27 Share capital

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.28 Revenue recognition

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the sale of goods, the provision of services
or the use by others of the Group’s assets under leases
in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

If control of the goods and services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods and services.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.28 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the customer for more than 12 months, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
with the customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest method. Where
the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. The Group takes
advantage of the practical expedient in HKFRS 15
and does not adjust the consideration for any effects
of a significant financing component if the period of
financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue recognition
policies are as follows:

(a) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI
(recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost
(i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.28 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) Rental income from investment properties

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in the income statement in equal
installments over the periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in the income statement as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable.

(¢) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholder’s
right to receive payment is established.

(d) Short-term insurance contracts

Gross premiums from the sale of short-term insurance
contracts are recorded when written.

Earned premiums are recognised as revenue
proportionally over the period of coverage. The portion
of premium received on in-force contracts that relates
to unexpired risks at the reporting date is reported as
the unearned premium liability. Premiums are shown
before deduction of commission.

(e) Management fee

Management fee is recognised upon the provision of
services.

(f) Sales of motor vehicles

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes control
of and accepts the motor vehicles. In the comparative
period, revenue from sales of motor vehicles was
recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the motor vehicles had been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintained
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the motor vehicles sold. There is no impact on opening
balance at 1 January 2018
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.28 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(g) Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties in the ordinary course
of business is recognised when the risks and rewards of
the respective properties are transferred to the buyers,
which is when the construction of relevant properties
has been completed and the properties have been
delivered to the buyers and collectability of related
receivables is reasonably assured.

(h) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as income in
the consolidated income statement on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred.

2.29 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the income statement
in the period in which they are incurred, except to
the extent that they are capitalised as being directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceased when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are interrupted or completed.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.30 Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of assets transferred to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases. All other leases are
operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases (including those for leasehold land) net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the
lease periods.

2.31 Employee benefits

(a) Short-term employee benefits

Salaries and annual bonuses are paid or accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. When payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

(b) Retirement benefit costs

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. These pension plans
are defined contribution schemes which the Group
pays fixed contributions and has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee services rendered in the current
and prior periods.

The Group’s contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave
the scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future
payments is available.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.31 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the reporting
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(d) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably
committed to either terminating the employment of
current employees according to a detailed formal plan
or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy without
realistic possibility of withdrawal. Benefits falling due
more than twelve months after the reporting date are
discounted to present value.

2.32 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in these consolidated
financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.32 Segment reporting (Continued)

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products or
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated
if they share a majority of these criteria.

2.33 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders of the
Company is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and
the Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved for distribution.

2.34 Related parties
For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, a related party is a person or entity that is

related to the Group.

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.34 Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) one entity is an associate or a joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or a joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in Note 2.34(a).

(vii) a person identified in Note 2.34(a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel
of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT

The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions
concerning the future that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses in these
consolidated financial statements. The application of
assumptions and estimates means that any changes
of them, either due to changes of management’s
judgement or the evolvement of the actual
circumstances, would cause the Group’s financial
position and results to differ.

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The Group believes that the assumptions and estimates
that have been made in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are appropriate and
that these consolidated financial statements therefore
present fairly the Group’s financial position and results
in all material respects.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next twelve
months are discussed below.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value of investment
properties held by the Group is current prices in an
active market for similar lease or other contracts. In the
absence of such information, the Group determines
the amount within a range of reasonable fair value
estimates. In making this judgement, the Group
considers information including current prices in
an active market for properties of different nature,
condition or location (or subject to different lease or
other contracts) adjusted to reflect those differences,
or recent prices of similar properties in less active
markets with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the date of the transactions
that occurred at those prices. As at 31 December 2018,
the fair value of the Group’s investment properties was
approximately HK$169.63 million (Note 16).

(b) Investment in XIB

The Company holds approximately 9.7635%
shareholding in XIB. The Company considered that it
has the ability to exercise significant influence over the
financial and operating policy decisions of XIB through
its two representatives on the board of directors
of XIB as well as the participation in policy-making
processes through the representations in committees
set up by the board of directors of XIB even though
the Company holds less than 20% of the voting power
of XIB. Accordingly, the Company considers that
XIB will continue to be classified as an associate of
the Company and the Company'’s interest in XIB will
continue to be accounted for using equity method in
accordance with the HKFRSs (Note 17).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(c) Casualty and property insurance contract
liabilities

For casualty and property insurance contracts,
estimates have to be made for both the expected
ultimate costs of claims reported at the reporting date
and for the expected ultimate costs of claims incurred
but not reported (“IBNR”) at the reporting date. It may
take a significant period of time before the ultimate
claims costs can be established with certainty and for
some type of policies, IBNR claims form the majority of
the insurance liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The ultimate costs of outstanding
claims are estimated by using a range of standard
actuarial claims projection techniques, such as the
Bornhuetter-Ferguson (“BF”) method.

The main assumption underlying these techniques
is that past claims development experience can
be used to project future claims development and
hence ultimate claims costs. As such, these methods
extrapolate the development of paid and incurred
losses, average cost per claim and claim numbers
based on the observed development of earlier years
and expected loss ratios. Historical claims development
is mainly analysed by accident year, as well as by
significant business lines and claim types. Large claims
are usually separately addressed, either by being
reserved at the face value based on loss adjustors’
estimates or separately projected in order to reflect
their future development. The assumptions used are
those implicit in the historical claims development
data on which the projections are based. Additional
qualitative judgement is used to assess the extent to
which past trends may not apply in future (for example
to reflect one-off occurrence, changes in external or
market factors such as public attitudes of claiming,
economic conditions, levels of claims inflation, judicial
decisions and legislation, as well as internal factors
such as portfolio mix, policy conditions and claims
handling procedures), so as to arrive at the estimated
ultimate costs of claims that present the likely outcome
from the range of possible outcomes, taking into
account all of the uncertainties involved.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Current income tax and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income tax in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required
in determining the amounts of the provision for
income tax and the timing of the payment of the
related income tax. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the provisions for current
income tax and deferred income tax in the period in
which such determination is made. As at 31 December
2018, the Group had deferred income tax liabilities of
approximately HK$24.11 million (Note 32). The deferred
income tax liabilities will increase or decrease by
approximately HK$1.03 million if the actual applicable
tax rate differs by 1%.

(e) Critical accounting estimates and judgement of
an associated financial institution

The Group’s major associated financial institution,
XIB Group, is principally conducted banking business
in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau (Note 17).
The management of XIB Group has prepared a set
of consolidated financial statements for the Group’s
reporting purposes. In preparing its consolidated
financial statements, the accounting policies of
XIB Group have been aligned, where necessary, in
the consolidated financial statements to ensure
consistency with those accounting policies adopted
by the Group. Certain critical accounting estimates
and judgement have been applied by XIB Group as
described below:
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(e) Critical accounting estimates and judgement of
an associated financial institution (Continued)

- Classification of financial assets

The classification of financial assets is based on two
criteria: the business model for managing the financial
assets; and whether the financial assets’ contractual
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. The
assessment of business model was made as of the
date of initial application, i.e. 1 January 2018, and then
applied retrospectively to those financial assets that
were not derecognised before 1 January 2018. The
management of XIB Group has made an assessment
of the objective of a business model in which an asset
is held at a portfolio level because this best reflected
the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management. The assessment of whether
the contractual cash flows on financial assets are solely
comprised of principal and interest was made based on
the facts and circumstances as at the initial recognition
of the assets. In assessing whether the contractual cash
flows are solely payments of principal and interest,
XIB Group considered the contractual terms of the
financial asset. This included assessing whether the
financial asset contained a contractual term that could
change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows
such that it would not meet this condition.

- Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments that are not
quoted in active markets are determined by XIB Group
using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques used
include discounted cash flows analysis and models.
To the extent practical, models use only observable
data, however areas such as credit risks (both own
and counterparty), volatilities and correlations require
management of XIB Group to make estimates. Changes
in assumptions about these factors could affect
reported fair values of financial instruments.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(e) Critical accounting estimates and judgement of
an associated financial institution (Continued)

- Impairment allowances on loans and advances

XIB Group adopts ECL model for measurement of
impairment allowances on loans and advances. ECLs
are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
It will no longer be necessary for a loss event to occur
before an impairment loss is recognised under ECL
model. Therefore it may result in earlier recognition of
credit losses as either 12 month ECLs or lifetime ECLs
on XIB Group’s loans and advances depending on the
facts and circumstances. When determining whether
the credit risk of a loan and advance has increased
significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECLs, XIB Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information and analysis, based on
XIB Group’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking information.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash
flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that XIB Group expects to receive)
which are discounted at the effective interest rate of
the individual loan and advance. The methodology
and assumptions used in assessing the credit risk and
determining whether a loan and advance is credit-
impaired and the amount of ECLs recognised are
reviewed at each reporting date. Any change in the
amount of ECL is recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(e) Critical accounting estimates and judgement of
an associated financial institution (Continued)

- Valuation of equity investments measured at FVPL

The fair value of an unlisted equity investment has
been estimated using a market comparison approach
by an independent professional valuer. Based on the
market ratio (e.g., price-to-earnings and price-to-book
ratios) of a number of listed companies engaged in
similar industries as the investee and the investee’s
historical financial information, management of
XIB Group makes estimates and judgement on the
appropriate adjustments required to reflect the
circumstances of the investee, including the liquidity
discount applicable to the paid-up capital of the
investee as compared to those of the shares of a listed
company, for fair value estimation purposes. The fair
value change is recognised in profit or loss.

- Estimation of impairment allowance on goodwill

XIB Group has recognised a consolidated goodwill
on acquisition of approximately 64.31% shareholding
in CYB at the date of acquisition based on the costs
of acquisition and the fair value of identifiable net
assets of CYB. In assessing the impairment of the
consolidated goodwill, the recoverable amount of
CYB cash-generating units is determined based on the
value in use calculation. The value in use calculation
requires XIB Group to estimate the future cash flow
projections of CYB cash-generating units based on
financial budgets covering judgment and assumptions
made by senior management and the pre-tax discount
rate in order to calculate the present value. Based on
the impairment assessment performed by XIB Group
on such consolidated goodwill at 31 December 2018,
no impairment loss was recognised. However, as
key assumptions on which XIB Group’s management
has made in respect of future cash flow projections
are subject to change, an adverse change in the
assumptions could cause the carrying amount to
exceed its recoverable amount.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors

The Group’s business activities expose it to a variety
of insurance risk and financial risks including market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. This note
summarises the Group'’s exposure to these risks, as well
as its objectives, policies and processes for managing
and the methods used to measure these risks.

The Group's investment policy is to prudently invest
its funds in a manner which satisfies the Group’s
liquidity requirements and generates optimal returns
to the Group within a manageable risk level. The
Group’s overall risk management focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
performance.

The Board, representing the interest of shareholders,
is the highest decision making authority of the
Group and has the ultimate responsibility for risk
management. The Board has adopted procedures
for evaluating and approving significant investment
decisions. Given the nature of the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities, their risk exposures are monitored
by the Group primarily on a qualitative basis.

The General Manager (“GM”) is responsible for
managing the Group’s various types of risks, approving
detailed risk management policies, and approving
material risk exposures or transactions within his
authority delegated by the Board. The other members
of the management team assist the GM in fulfilling
his responsibilities for the day-to-day management of
risks.

The Group has put in place an internal control system,
including establishment of the Group’s organisation
structure that sets adequately clear lines of authority
and responsibility for monitoring compliance with
policies, procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines
also provide sufficient independence of the control
functions from the business areas, as well as adequate
segregation of duties throughout the organisation
which helps to promote appropriate internal control
environment.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Insurance risk

The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk.
This section summarises these risks and the way the
Group manages such risks.

The risks under any one insurance contract are the
possibility that the insured event occurs and the
uncertainty of the amount of the resulting claim. By
the very nature of an insurance contract, these risks are
random and therefore unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory
of probability is applied to pricing and provisioning,
the principal risk that the Group faces under its
insurance contracts is that the amount of the actual
claims exceed the carrying amount of the insurance
liabilities. This could occur because the frequency or
severity of claims are greater than estimated. Insurance
events are random and the actual numbers and
amounts of claims will vary from year to year from the
level established using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of
similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative
variability about the expected outcome will be. In
addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be
affected across the board by a change in any subset of
the portfolio.

Factors that aggravate insurance risk include lack of
risk diversification in terms of type and amount of risk,
geographical location and type of industry covered.

(i)  Frequency and severity of claims

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by
several factors. The most significant are the increasing
level of awards for the damage suffered and the
increase in number of cases coming to court that were
inactive or latent for a long period of time. Estimated
inflation is also a significant factor due to the long
period typically equired to settle these cases.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(i)  Frequency and severity of claims (Continued)

The Group manages these risks through its underwriting
strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and claims
handling.

The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that
the underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of
type and amount of risk, industry and geographical
location.

Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate
risk selection criteria. For example, the Group has the
right to re-price, cancel or not to renew a contract, it
can impose deductibles and it has the right to reject
the payment of fraudulent claim. Insurance contracts
also entitle the Group to pursue third parties for
payment of some or all costs (subrogation). Unless the
legislation requires, the Group's strategy limits the total
exposure of any individual policy to a certain amount.

The reinsurance arrangements include facultative,
proportional treaties and excess of loss coverage. The
effect of such reinsurance arrangements is that the
Group should not suffer total net insurance losses more
than the prescribed amount. In addition to the overall
reinsurance program, additional reinsurance protection
for any individual risk will be arranged when necessary.

The concentration of insurance risk before and after
reinsurance by territory in relation to type of insurance
accepted is summarised below, with reference to the
carrying amounts of the insurance liabilities (gross and
net of reinsurance) arising from insurance contracts:
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4 PR K s R b A B (AE) 4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
4.1 PRBa R R B R (48) 4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) PREgEBR (48) (a) Insurance risk (Continued)
()  BEERIBERERERE (&) (i) Frequency and severity of claims (Continued)
2018
— & =3\
EEER ke
J5E  General Accident Hit o]
Motor liability and health Others Total
BETFT BMTr BEFT EBEEFT BEFT
HKS$’000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
E ) Gross
BB Hong Kong 19,423 23,029 491 108 43,051
P Macau 5,323 1,015 2,375 31,241 39,954
RBSEHEME £ Total insurance liabilities, gross 24,746 24,044 2,866 31,349 83,005
R Net
B Hong Kong 17,236 21,487 485 60 39,268
JRFY Macau 5,184 920 2,076 29,220 37,400
RBEFHEME FE  Total insurance liabilities, net 22,420 22,407 2,561 29,280 76,668
2017
—% EHN
ERES RigR
JTE  General  Accident Hitb k]
Motor liability and health Others Total
BEFr BEFT EEFr BEFT FEFT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
I8 Gross
BB Hong Kong 23,270 33,103 484 211 57,068
R Macau 6,112 974 2,196 21,300 30,582
R SFEE - £5  Total insurance liabilities, gross 29,382 34,077 2,680 21,511 87,650
FE Net
&8 Hong Kong 20,679 29,851 481 139 51,150
P Macau 6,009 925 1,911 21,343 30,188
RIS FEE - B5E  Total insurance liabilities, net 26,638 30,776 2,392 21,482 81,338
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(i) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claims
payments

Claims on insurance contracts are payable on a claim-
occurrence basis. The Group is liable for all insured
events that occurred during the term of the contract
even if the loss is discovered after the end of the
contract term. As a result, liability claims are settled
over a long period of time and a larger element of
claims provision relates to incurred but not reported
claims. There are several variables that affect the
amounts and timing of cash flows from these contracts.
These mainly relate to the inherent risks by individual
contract holders and the risk management procedures
adopted. The compensation paid on these contracts
is the monetary awards granted for bodily injury
suffered. Such awards are lump-sum payments that are
calculated as the present value of the lost of earnings
and rehabilitation expenses that the injured party will
incur as a result of the accident.

The estimated costs of claims include direct expenses
to be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected
subrogation value and other recoveries. The Group
takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has
appropriate information regarding its claims exposures.
However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims
provisions, it is likely that the final outcome will prove
to be different from the original liabilities established.
The liabilities for these contracts comprise provisions
for IBNR, provisions for reported claims not yet paid
and provisions for unexpired risks at the reporting
date.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(i) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claims
payments (Continued)

In calculating the estimated costs of unpaid claims
(both reported and not reported), the Group’s
estimation techniques are a combination of loss-
ratio-based estimates (where the loss ratio is
defined as the ratio between the ultimate costs of
insurance claims and insurance premiums earned in a
particular financial year in relation to such claims) and
estimates based upon actual claims experience using
predetermined formulae where greater weight is given
to actual claims experience as time passes.

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater
degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the
costs of settling claims already notified to the Group,
where information about the claim event is available.
In estimating the amounts of IBNR which make
reasonable provisions for the claims and the unexpired
risks, it is necessary to project future claims costs and
associated claims expenses and simulate the outcomes
of claims liabilities using models. These models are
simplified representation of many legal, social and
economic forces and may not be entirely appropriate
for the types of insurance business being analysed. It
is certain that actual future claims and claims expenses
will not develop exactly as projected and may vary
significantly from the projections.

In estimating the liabilities for the costs of
reported claims not yet paid the Group considers
any information available from loss adjusters and
information on the costs of settling claims with similar
characteristics in previous periods. Large claims
are assessed on a case-by-case basis or projected
separately in order to allow for the possible distortive
effect of their development and incidence on the rest
of the portfolio.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(i) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claims
payments (Continued)

Where possible, the Group adopts multiple techniques
to estimate the required level of provisions. This
provides a greater understanding of the trends
inherent in the experience being projected. The
projections given by the various methodologies also
assist in estimating the range of possible outcomes.
The most appropriate estimation technique is selected
taking into account the characteristics of the business
class and the extent of the development of each
accident year.

(iii)  Process used to decide on assumptions

The Group uses several statistical methods to
incorporate the various assumptions made in order
to estimate the ultimate costs of claims. The choice
of selected results for each accident year of each
class of business depends on an assessment of the
technique that has been most appropriate to observed
historical developments. In certain instances, different
techniques or combination of techniques have been
selected for individual accident year or group of
accident years within the same class of business.

In estimating the claims liabilities of the Group'’s
motor, employees’ compensation and property
damage insurance portfolio, the paid and incurred loss
development methods supplemented by BF method
are applied. For other classes of insurance portfolio, the
incurred loss development method is used to project
the claims liabilities.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(iii)  Process used to decide on assumptions (Continued)

The paid and incurred loss development methods
are used to project the ultimate costs of the claims,
and the BF method relies on a gradual transition
from an estimated loss ratio to an experience-rated
development. BF method is applied to the more recent
accident years, for which the paid and incurred loss
development methods may yield less accurate results.

(iv)  Sensitivity analysis - sensitivity of insurance claims
development tables

The reasonableness of the estimation process is tested
by an analysis of sensitivity around different scenarios.
The change in the monetary awards granted for bodily
injury suffered and also the employers’ liabilities
claims are the most critical to the assumptions used to
estimate the liabilities for these insurance contracts.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(iv)  Sensitivity analysis — sensitivity of insurance claims
development tables (Continued)

The Group believes that the liabilities for these claims
carried at the reporting date are adequate. However,
an increase of 10% in the costs of these claims would
require the recognition of an additional loss of
approximately HK$4.2 million (2017: approximately
HK$5.2 million) net of reinsurance.

The impact on the profit before taxation described
above does not take into account of changes in other
variables, as they are considered to be less material.
Such an assessment and the relative materiality of
individual variable may change in the future.

In addition to scenario testing, the development of
insurance liabilities provides a measure of the Group’s
ability to estimate the ultimate value of claims. The
table below illustrates how the Group’s estimate of net
claims outstanding of the Group’s motor, employees’
compensation and property damage insurance
portfolio for each accident year has changed at
successive reporting dates.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(iv)  Sensitivity analysis — sensitivity of insurance claims

BEHRE (&) development tables (Continued)
JRERE Motor insurance
EHEE Accident year 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 #8% Total
BEFT BEFT BEFr BEFr BT | BETn
HK$S'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 | HKS$'000
fEt RSB ER A Estimate of ultimate claims costs
REHFE atend of accident year 7,359 7,549 10,067 16,561 11,950
—&f one year later 6,324 6,831 7,468 10,122
—E% two years later 5,274 5,189 6,970
—Fik three years later 3,947 4,563
TeEiE four years later 3,625
SHIET 2 25HBE  Current estimate of cumulative claims 3,625 4,563 6,970 10,122 11,950 | 37,230
2EZHMNT Cumulative payment to date (3,491) (3,929) (5,662) (4,898) (2,623) | (20,603)
134 634 1,308 5,224 9,327 16,627
014EFH2EM  Liabilities in respect of prior years
before 2014 218
16,845

{5 @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(iv)  Sensitivity analysis — sensitivity of insurance claims

BEHRR (&) development tables (Continued)
ETRE Employees’ compensation insurance
EREE Accident year 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 % Total
BEFT BT BT BT BETT | BEFr
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 | HK$’000
Et AR EKA Estimate of ultimate claims costs
RENEFE atend of accident year 9,294 11,965 19,720 15,515
—&f one year later 10,214 12,051 6,225 1175
“E two years later 7,210 7,496 6,628
—Fik three years later 5,950 7,637
TeEiE four years later 6,012
2HiffEt 7 2518 Current estimate of cumulative claims 6,012 7,637 6,628 1,175 15,515 36,967
2AEHNT Cumulative payment to date (5,077) (5,033) (5,402) (763) (85) | (16,360)
935 2,604 1,226 412 15,430 20,607
014FEF2EME  Liabilities in respect of prior years
before 2014 1,038
21,645
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4 DR LB Ja i HE (A) 4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
4.1 DRBg K BB R B IR R (48) 4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) PrBeEpy (%) (a) Insurance risk (Continued)
(iv) HEEN — (RB IS I1EEE A5 (iv)  Sensitivity analysis - sensitivity of insurance claims
BEHF () development tables (Continued)
BI85 2R B Property damage insurance
ENEE Accident year 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 H% Total
BETT EEFT BB EEFT BETT | BEFR
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 | HK$'000
R B A Estimate of ultimate claims costs
REHEFE atend of accident year - 5 301 7,902 4263
—E% one year later - 5 21 7875
—EB two years later - 6 249
=Fig three years later - 3
Mm% four years later -
SHEIEE 7 2B Current estimate of cumulative claims - 3 249 7,875 4263 | 12,390
ZAEHNHT Cumulative payment to date - (3) (236) (7,875) (1,075 | (9,189)
- - 13 - 3,188 3,201
014EFf2ERE  Liabilities in respect of prior years
before 2014 -
3,201
NEHAETHEHREE RS — XY The Group has in place a series of effective reinsurance
BHRHDRER - BB F—HRET covers on a number of short-term insurance products
oo that have remained unchanged in recent years.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss that results from
movements in market rates and prices. The risk
includes potential losses arising from changes in
foreign exchange rates, interest rates, equity prices and
commodity prices.

The Group’s risk management objective is to enhance
shareholders’ value by maintaining risk exposures
within acceptable limits. The Group’s control of market
risk is based on restricting individual operation
to invest within a list of permissible instruments
authorised by the Board to ensure all risks arising
are thoroughly identified, properly measured and
adequately controlled.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss due to adverse
movements in foreign exchange rates relating to
investments denominated in foreign currencies. The
Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland
China and is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from recognised assets and liabilities and
net investments in foreign operations measured in
Renminbi (“RMB").

In respect of receivables, payables and cash balances
held in currencies other than the functional currency of
the operations to which they relate, the Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level,
by buying and selling foreign currencies at spot rates
where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

The Group’s borrowings are in the functional
currency of the entity taking out the loans. Given this,
management does not expect that there will be any
significant currency risk associated with the Group’s
borrowings.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s exposure to
foreign exchange risk arising from recognised assets
and liabilities measured in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate
at the reporting date:

2018 2017
AEB¥TTT ABREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

AP EF AHMSE  Financial assets at fair value through
W= EE other comprehensive income 500,805 -
At ESREE Available-for-sale financial assets - 419,263
H i UL BR X Other debtors 1,252 2,093
e NIRTTHEF Cash and bank balances 176,714 182,838
HihERBEFN L FEETE A Other creditors and accruals (8,787) (9,075)
JE < ZN B 75 18 Current income tax payable (20,929) (20,929)
649,055 574,190

{5 @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate changes
in the Group’s profit after taxation (and retained
profits) and other components of equity in response to
reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange
rates to which the Group has significant exposure at
the reporting date:

2018 2017

PERBRE HEREENR HNEFBE  HRREENR
LR/ (TH) REEANEE HEREEM A/ (TH) RBENSHZE a“tﬁ& fEM
Increase/ Effecton ARHINETE Increase/ Effecton ARIEHHMTE
(decrease) in profit after Effect on (decrease) in profit after Effecton
foreign  taxationand other foreign taxation and other
exchange retained components exchange retained components
rate profits of equity rate profits of equity
Brlt B¥TT BETT Bt BT BT
% HK$'000 HKS'000 % HKS'000 HK$'000
N Renminbi 5 8,443 28,521 5 9,303 25176
(5) (8,443) (28,521) (5) (9,303) (25,176)

FRBREDH HIRREZZESHENZE
BRERLERCRERAENTEAKHE
FENEMIAZINERE - MATEEHE
R (FrRlEFR) AR E

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange rate had
occurred and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose
to foreign exchange risk at the reporting date, and that
all other variables, in particular interest rate, remained
constant.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rates over the period until the next reporting
date. In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged
rate between the Hong Kong Dollars and the United
States Dollars would be materially unaffected by
any changes in movement in value of the United
States Dollars against other currencies. Results of the
analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the effects on profit after taxation
and equity of each of the Group’s entities measured
in the respective functional currencies, translated into
Hong Kong Dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the
reporting date for presentation purposes. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2017.

The Group is also exposed to foreign exchange
risk from its investments in investees which are in
Renminbi.

(i) Pricerisk

The Group is exposed to price risk on investments held
by the Group classified in the consolidated statement
of financial position as financial assets at amortised
cost, at fair value through other comprehensive income
or at fair value through profit or loss.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Pricerisk (Continued)

The Group’s equity investments held for trading are
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Decisions
to buy or sell trading securities are based on the
performance of individual security compared to that of
the index and the Group’s liquidity needs. Investments
not held for trading are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange and have been chosen based on their long
term growth potential and are monitored regularly for
performance against expectation.

The following table indicates the approximate changes
in the Group’s profit after taxation (and retained
profits) and other components of equity in response
to reasonably possible changes in the relevant stock
market index for listed investments to which the Group
has significant exposure at the reporting date:

2017
REERZY HRERZEAR WERAM BREREH HERRENR HiEsH
LR/ (TH) REENGNEE ARBs0¥E A/ (TH) RIEFNFE ERHranze
Increase/ Effect on Effect Increase/ Effect on Effect
(decrease) profit after on other (decrease) profit after on other
intherelevant  taxation and components in the relevant taxation and components
risk variance retained profits of equity risk variance  retained profits of equity
Al B¥TT BRTT Bt BT EAETT
% HK$'000 HK$'000 % HK$'000 HKS'000
EHRE2  Stockmarketindex
BERT  inrespect of listed
E¥ investments
[E4%E%  Hang Seng Index 5 16 - 5 15 -
(5) (16) = (3) (15) -
B A%E Shanghai Composite
Index 5 - 28,637 5 - 25,298
(5) = (28,637) (5) - (25,298)

ZZ—)\&EF%{ Annual Report 2018

213



214

ARG PR LR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EIEES

R B b B 165 e o 5 2 )

i

4.1 PREE S E BRI R (%)

(b) TR R (%)
(i) 1EtS5ELE (&)

BRESTERZAERETIZEEN
BRI EBHE N E WE%E&EFE
WAFTEFECBRERESF ZERER

EREMEEMEREFTET - KE
B MR E A FESB G
EWIGRH T ES B EEmMED) KT
EEMEHEFTE - IEEEIEER
BHEET—EFE2RH ILEFREAE
%%ﬁ%%%mﬁmAﬁT%ZQMﬂ
fth © 2017 FRIDITIRIE R EEHETT ©

(iii) 2w E R FEFFER
NEBEFERBBIERA TSN RS
EReMIAEELRKRESNER - 3R
SHRENREARIERRTSNERES)
BRI ANARRERELEKE

# Rz -

AEENAEREENBEIERRE
TESF B A R ZIRT Tm 15 9ME F5
([HIMEHR]) RBITER  ©4XEE
AEATEFEERLALHENEA
2o AEBEEEBBHEEEIARE
BB B 1 O R E T B AR R
BE - W EEIET IS R EZUEARLE
gﬁéﬁéﬂfﬂﬁb FEREHRRRE -

EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Pricerisk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the reasonably possible changes in the stock
market index had occurred and had been applied to
the exposure to equity price risk in existence at the
reporting date. It is also assumed that the fair values
of the Group’s equity investments would change in
accordance with the historical correlation with the
relevant stock market index and that all other variables
remained constant. The stated changes represent
management’s assessment of reasonably possible
changes in the relevant stock market index over the
period until the next reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2017.

(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is
the risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.

The Group’s interest bearing assets and liabilities
mainly comprise bank deposits, over-the-counter
("OTC”) bond and bank borrowings bore in fixed or
floating rates which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk.
The Group manages these risks primarily through
maintaining the maturity profile of these assets
and liabilities within a short to medium period and
monitoring the market interest rate movements so
that the Group can react accordingly when there are
adverse interest rate movements.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)

(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks (Continued)

The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s net borrowings at the reporting date. For
this purpose the Group defines “net borrowings” as
being interest-bearing financial liabilities less related
interest-bearing investments (excluding cash held for
short term working capital purposes):

2018 2017
ERFIE REE EIRA = RmEE
Effective Carrying Effective Carrying
interest rate amount  interest rate amount
E BT T E BEFIT
% HK$’000 % HKS'000
FENHE Variable rate
BILIRITER HK Dollars bank borrowings 3.1-5.2 398,770 42-43 552,272
o BIEMARE Less: Renminbi bank
T deposits pledged 4.1 (227,800) 3.7-38 (49,239)
170,970 503,033

M20185F 128318 7% &) Fl K 4R
TT%?XE’M"‘H%EW%ELEJUZT;JMOM%
2 MATEEMBEERFTE - BN
‘EEIZMTR&/@%U&{%EE@%UH#E./ A
g I 4B 2058 7T (20175 « 478
¥a42287T) °

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a general
increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates of floating rates bank borrowings, with all other
variables held constant, would decrease or increase
the Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits by
approximately HK$2.05 million (2017: approximately
HKS$4.22 million).
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)

(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the changes in interest rates had
occurred and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for financial instruments with variable
interest rates held by the Group at the reporting date.
The 100 basis points increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
changes in interest rates over the period until the next
reporting date. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2017.

(c¢) Creditrisk

The Group is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk
that a customer or counterparty will be unable to
or unwilling to fulfill its repayment obligations for
amounts due to the Group. The Group’s credit risk
is primarily attributable to loans to customers and
interest receivable, insurance related receivables, OTC
bond, banker’s acceptance, other receivables and
advance payment.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer
and therefore significant concentrations of credit
risk primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers.

In respect of the insurance related receivables, banker’s
acceptance and other receivables, the Group limits its
exposure to credit risk by screening the counterparties,
on-going monitoring and acquiring collateral from
counterparties.

Those receivables and advance payment are required
to meet the Group’s established financial requirements
and the Group will obtain third party guarantees when
it considered necessary.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(¢) Credit risk (Continued)

In order to mitigate the Group’s exposure to credit
risk and counterparty risk from loans to customers,
the Group has set out its objectives, credit policies,
processes for monitoring and managing those risks as
well as the detailed policies and procedures for credit
approval process related to the micro credit business.

The Group classified and measured its loans portfolio
into the following five categories: pass, special
mention, substandard, doubtful and loss, among which
loans classified as substandard, doubtful and loss are
recognised as non-performing loans. The Group carried
out regular investigations and one-by-one monitoring,
reported overdue loans and adjusted risk classification
results in a timely manner, so as to reflect asset quality
objectively and set aside provisions accurately.

The Group recognises an impairment allowance at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs for loans to customers
and interest receivable. At 31 December 2018, the
Group's impairment allowances on loans to customers
and interest receivable were HK$266.93 million (2017:
HK$289.95 million) and impairment allowances to
loans to customers and interest receivable ratio was
92.11% (2017:91.75%).

In respect of the OTC bond, the Group will only invest
in investment grade bond with certain selection

criterion imposed.

At 31 December 2018, bank balances were placed with
reputable financial institutions with diversification.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(¢) Credit risk (Continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date without taking into account of any
collateral held or other credit enhancement is the
net carrying amount of the financial assets stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position. A

summary of the maximum exposure is as follows:

2018 2017
EBEFT BT T
HKS’000 HKS’000

R HKATTER Financial assets at amortised cost
TREE 3,129 -
BEDBHESREE Held-to-maturity financial assets - 3,119
FEYT RIBFEIR A Investments in receivables = 132,105
15 Bz JiE U ZX Insurance receivable 13,134 10,854
BREEE Reinsurance assets 6,337 6,312
ZEER K ERRE Loans to customers and interest receivable 22,875 26,065
SRITRAESE Banker’s acceptance 56,186 -
H At FEUER X Other debtors 2,927 6,324
NE NIRITER Cash and bank balances 1,405,380 1,300,589
1,509,968 1,485,368

EAAEBREEVREERRAE—
SHERBHNEE 24 MEFERR
R BEERBRAE— T EIRE RS
REERE 26 o

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from insurance
receivable are set out in Note 24 and that arising from
loans to customers and interest receivable are set out
in Note 26.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter
difficulty in meeting its cash flow needs or
commitments. Liquidity risk may result from either
inability to raise new funds, sell financial assets quickly
at their fair value, a counterparty failing on repayment
of a contractual obligation or an insurance liability
falling due for payment earlier than expected.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash, readily realisable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines of funding
from reputable financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

Individual operating entity within the Group is
responsible for its own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturity value at the reporting date of the Group’s
reinsurance assets and financial liabilities which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay:

2018 2017
£o£7 £fz
BHANE EXERm BAFITE ERER
FEiEE  EF-E4 (G FEigg A (85
Tt FEEX  EERE) Tt ZEEX  BERE)
EE  contractual  Withinone  Inthe second BEE  contractual  Withinone  Inthe second
Carrying  undiscounted yearor  tofifthyear Carrying  undiscounted yearor — tofifthyear
amount cashflow  ondemand inclusive amount cashflow — ondemand inclusive
EEFr  BETn EEFn BETR| BT BETn BEFT BETT
HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
(S Assets

BRREE Reinsurance assets 6,337 6,337 4791 1,546 6312 6312 6,099 213

&f Liabilities
Raah Insurance contracts 83,005 83,005 65,523 17,482 87,650 87450 49991 37,659
(R Insurance payable 9,196 9,19 9,19 - 750 7250 750 -
EREHESREEE  Other creditors and accruals 24,498 24498 24498 - 29579 2579 29579 -
il Bank borrowings 398,770 422,968 210,619 212,349 552212 579491 376,149 20334
515,469 539,667 309,836 229,831 676,751 703,970 462,969 241,001
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution

The financial risks exposure and management
objectives and policies of the Group’s associated
financial institution, XIB Group, are summarised as
below:

(i) Overview

The activities of XIB Group expose it to a variety of
financial risks including credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price
risk and interest rate risk). XIB Group continuously
identifies, evaluates and monitors these risks. XIB
Group’s aim is to achieve an appropriate balance
between risk and return and minimise potential
adverse effects on its financial performance.

The board of directors of XIB Group (“XIB Board”)
provides strategy for overall risk management.
Its senior management establishes related risk
management policies and procedures under the
strategy approved by the XIB Board, including written
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of
derivative financial instruments and non-derivative
financial instruments. Those risk management
policies and procedures are implemented by various
departments after XIB Board’s approval. In addition,
its internal audit department is responsible for the
independent review of risk management and control
environment.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution (Continued)

(ii)  Creditrisk

Credit risk is one of the main risks that XIB Group faces
in its operations which arises primarily from loans
and advances, investment portfolios, trade finance,
guarantees and other payment acceptance.

The credit approval policies and procedures of
XIB Group are standardised. Credit rating, risk
measurement, economic capital, various post-lending
management, indicator control, collective assessment,
risk warning and risk reporting are measures for
managing credit risk.

(iii)  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that XIB Group has to
ensure the availability of adequate funds to meet
its needs to funding deposit withdrawals and other
liabilities as they fall due, as well as being able to
meet its obligations to funding loan originations
and commitments and to take advantage of new
investment opportunities.

XIB Group has set up a series of liquidity indices to
assess and monitor its liquidity risk and reviewed such
indices on a timely basis.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution (Continued)

(iv)  Market risk

XIB Group's market risk arises from open positions in
the trading book and banking book in interest rate,
foreign exchange rate, equities and commodities. The
trading book consists of financial instruments and
commodities that are free of any restrictive covenants
on their tradability and held with trading intent, and
in order to or for the purpose of hedging market risk
of the trading book. The banking book consists of
financial instruments not included in the trading book
(including those financial instruments purchased with
surplus funds and managed in the investment book).

XIB Group has established a structural system of limit
controls including regulatory limits, position limits
and risk limits to identify, monitor and control market
risk. XIB Group performs sensitivity analysis on a
regular basis to assess the interest rate risk and foreign
exchange risk of its trading book and banking book.

- Foreign exchange risk

XIB Group conducts the majority of its business
in Renminbi with other transactions in foreign
currencies, therefore XIB Group is exposed to the
fluctuations in the prevailing foreign exchange rates
on its financial position and cash flows. XIB Group
manages its exposure to foreign exchange risk through
management of its net foreign currency position.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution (Continued)

(iv)  Market risk (Continued)
- Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that XIB Group's assets,
liabilities, revenue and economic value would suffer
losses or have the risk of contingent losses due to
fluctuations of interest rates and changes of interest
rates structure. The re-pricing risk, the primary and
most common interest rate risk, arises from the
difference between maturity terms (for fixed interest
rates) or between the re-pricing terms (for floating
interest rates) of XIB Group’s assets, liabilities and off
balance sheet commitments. Cash flow interest rate
risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates.

XIB Group mainly manages its exposure to the interest
rate risk arising from fluctuations in the prevailing
market interest rates on re-pricing, fair value and cash
flows. XIB Group’s business in Mainland China operates
under the interest rate scheme regulated by the
People’s Bank of China. XIB Group controls its interest
rate risk primarily through controlling the distribution
of the maturity date or re-pricing date of loans and
deposits and the asset-liability re-pricing gap.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders of
the Company and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total bank borrowings divided
by total net assets. Total bank borrowings comprise
all bank borrowings as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Total net assets
comprise all components of equity attributable
to shareholders of the Company as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

During 2018, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from 2017, was to maintain the gearing
ratio at a healthy level of 30% or below. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders
of the Company, issue new shares, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The gearing ratio of the Group at 31 December 2018

MEREBGELERINT : and 2017 were as follows:
2018 2017
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BIRITEN Total bank borrowings 398,770 552,272
wEEFRE Total net assets 6,731,820 6,510,902
BEXRBELR Gearing ratio 5.9% 8.5%

ERBELERTEEERE2018F12A
STHEAREEBRITEZRD (FEE31)
FrEL o

The decrease in the gearing ratio resulted primarily
from the decrease in bank loans outstanding at 31
December 2018 (Note 31).
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

Pursuant to the capital requirements imposed by the
IA, a subsidiary of the Company, Min Xin Insurance,
should maintain at least HK$20 million in its adjusted
net assets calculated in accordance with the
requirements set out in the Insurance Ordinance. In
order to fulfill these requirements, Min Xin Insurance
may adjust the dividend paid to the Company or issue
new shares to the Company. If Min Xin Insurance
cannot maintain the capital requirements imposed, the
IA may place restrictions on the operations of Min Xin
Insurance.

Capital risk management of associated financial
institution

XIB Group’s objectives when managing capital are: (i)
to comply with the capital requirements set by the
regulators of the markets where the entities within
XIB Group operate; (ii) to safeguard the ability to
continue as a going concern so that it can continue to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders; and (iii) to maintain a strong capital base
to support the development of its business.

Capital adequacy and regulatory capital are monitored
by XIB Group’s management, employing techniques
based on the guidelines developed by China Banking
and Insurance Regulatory Commission, for supervisory
purposes.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value of financial instruments

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature,
and are made as of a specific point in time based on
the characteristics of the financial instruments and
relevant market information. The Group measures fair
values using the following hierarchy of methods:

- Level 1: fair value measured using only
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical instruments at the measurement date.

- Level 2: fair value measured using inputs other
than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable either directly (i.e., as prices) or
indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). This category
includes instruments valued using: quoted market
prices in active markets for similar instruments;
quoted prices for identical or similar instruments
in markets that are considered less than active; or
other valuation techniques where all significant
inputs are directly or indirectly observable from
market data.

- Level 3: fair value measured using inputs that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs). This category includes
all instruments where the valuation technique
includes inputs not based on observable data
and the unobservable inputs have a significant
effect on the instrument’s valuation. This
category includes instruments that are valued
based on quoted prices for similar instruments
where significant unobservable adjustments or
assumptions are required to reflect differences
between the instruments.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value
(Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as equity securities held for trading and
measured at FVOCI) is based on quoted market prices
at the reporting date. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These financial instruments are included in Level
1 of the fair value hierarchy.

During the year there was no transfer of financial
instruments between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy, or transfer of financial instruments into
or out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The Group’s
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

The following table presents the carrying value
of financial instruments held by the Group at the
reporting date measured at fair value across the three
levels of the fair value hierarchy, with the fair value of
each financial instrument categorised in its entirety
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to
that fair value measurement:
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43 @M TRAHE () 4.3 Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)
(a) DAAPEZNHRRY 4 T B (a) Financial instruments carried at fair value
(78) (Continued)
2018 2017
-5 #2ER E=ER B 250 FIER F=ER ag
Level1 Level2 Level3 Total Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total
B¥Fr  B¥Tn BETr EBEFn | BRFn BETr BT BETr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
TEUHATEFE  Recurring fair value
measurement
K& Rssets
BROTEFALER  Listed equity securities at
2ERENLT  fairvalue through other
RiEES comprehensive income 510417 - - 570,417 - - - -
TEAELBEE  Availableforsale financial
assets = = = = 503514 - - 503,514
RATEFBERT  Listed equity securities at fair
BOLTREES  valuethrough profitor loss 306 - - 306 304 - - 304
570,723 - - 570,723 503,818 - - 503,818

(b) JE L2 T (850 W Y 4 b T L
AT

HEBHRATENETREE - BUK
HERRERE (08) REMNFKAIRE
EBENRTEEAFEMEE - ERAEN
ANHEEASEBUSM T ARG R
BMSMERRRKEHRSRIELAE
o

fAETFIHIE &R ARG - WIRBATE
REMEMAZETHE  BREERH
BRTHERGENHRREMHNTE

Al o

EERRARENEREERERAR
MAFEAESREARERANEE
'TE o

(b) Fair value of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value

The carrying value of financial assets at amortised cost,
trade receivables less impairment losses (if any) and
trade payables are assumed to approximate their fair
value. The fair value of financial liabilities is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at
the current market interest rate that is available to the
Group for similar financial instruments.

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

In the Directors’ opinion, the fair values of financial

assets and financial liabilities of the Group approximate
their carrying values at the reporting date.
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RERNARN T ZHEFIN AT

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL

INFORMATION

The amount of each significant category of revenue
recognised during the year is as follows:

2018 2017
BT BT T
HKS’000 HK$'000
REHE WS Sales of motor vehicles 930,621 827,105
BEERFABUWA (@) Interest income from loans to customers (a) 4,708 6,334
HEYERSIWA Rental income from investment properties 9,245 9,205
AT EFEAEMEE  Dividend income from financial assets
WamemEERE at fair value through other
A comprehensive income 8,420 -
At EESmEERS  Dividend income from available-for-sale
WA financial assets - 23,224
,,,,,, 952,994 | 865,868
WEIR B FEE Net earned insurance premiums
ERBIWA Gross insurance premiums 60,573 55,642
KmERRE & Movement in unearned insurance premiums (5,310) 5,890
BRESCHEBR Reinsurance premiums ceded and
g A JFE(E K i 2f reinsurers’ share of movement in
IREEE) unearned insurance premiums (5,372) (5,122)
,,,,,,, 49,891 | 56410
H e Other revenues
BB Management fee 4 48
RITF ) BUA Interest income from bank deposits 33,197 35,046
IR AT E Interest income from financial assets at
SREEN WA amortised cost 101 _
BEIHACHEE Interest income from held-to-maturity
MEMA financial assets - 99
JEYGRIBEEIR EFI B Interest income from investments in
A receivables = 1,379
FIEEBM EMAE Dividend income from listed equity
BHBREWA securities held for trading 20 171
BRAT 8L (b) Government grants (b) 2,229 693
Hib Others 262 332
,,,,,,, 35813 | 37,768
W a5 4 RR Total revenues 1,038,698 960,046

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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Wit b e B ERE (88)

BB R EARRLEFR B EE RS
FRBANEEIZER 10% G A A I RAL
BEFEAMNAEE S keSS RI4E
#.471,101,000 7T & /& ¥ 420,965,000 7T
(20174 : 7 % 391,675,000 7T & /& &
413,211,000 7T) °

@ RER ' EFERFBKABTE
EEFEREBEZEFPERF B KA
75 1 4,664,000 7C (2017 4F = B #&
5,986,000 7T) °

(b) AEE—-REEMBRRWERF
B A 7 BT AR T R U
B N FERAERRRTE
RBERERERMERHE

AEEZABREBESTERAKE L
TEEERRARKRBIERR - RS
R FHERRZABERER T A —&
ER THETRAZBOHDBER -

RAERBEERRAZRZER - THRE
XEE FAIRERKREHRMD
B HNEXEBRIFEZNE A
SERANBERDEEAERIEEERS
MRERBERAEERAEZRERE
o WRIREHR - AEERENRE
HRFHEEZERSR -

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenues from sales of motor vehicles to two
customers in Mainland China have exceeded 10% of
the Group'’s revenue. The segment revenue of trading
in motor vehicles generated from these two customers
amounted to approximately HK$471,101,000
and HK$420,965,000 (2017: HK$391,675,000 and
HK$413,211,000) respectively during the year.

(@) The interest income from loans to customers for
the year included an interest income accrued for
impaired loans to customers of HK$4,664,000
(2017: HK$5,986,000).

(b) The government grants received by a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group from the local
government in Mainland China represented
incentive compensations for development
of enterprise in Pingtan Comprehensive
Experimental Area.

The Group identifies its operating segments based on
the reports reviewed internally by the chief operating
decision-makers which include the Executive Board
Committee and the General Manager that are used to
make strategic decisions, allocate resources and assess
performance.

The reports to the chief operating decision-makers are
analysed on the basis of business entities, investments
held and investees. For business entities and
investments held, operating performance evaluation
and resources allocation are based on individual
business activity operated and investment held by
the Group. For investees, operating performance
evaluation is based on individual investee of the
Group.
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5 WsR SR ERER (7)

AEBBTHNEZHD B

- TR ERRHTEABES
NREEREBLBEBAEERFE
MEBHEAAER SRR
RO BN R E A - FE MR

RBIRITRTE o

- KRB BEEREBELAFN K

RERETS ©

— AEHEY BERAEEZER-

- PEZFRLEKRE: BERPER
W REEMEEE MEHEHEE

- RWRE: AEEFENERLA

B e

— Hit: BRRAEERHERHEM
ERDHNEERENRANE

BE® -

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group has the following reportable operating
segments:

Financial services: this segment includes the
provision of micro credit business in Mainland
China and the engagement of banking business
through the Group’s major associates, XIB, CYB
and LIB in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau
respectively.

Insurance: this segment includes the general
insurance business in Hong Kong and Macau.

Trading in motor vehicles: this segment includes
the trading in motor vehicles business.

Property development and investment: this
segment includes the real estate development
business and the leasing of high quality office
space in Mainland China.

Strategic investment: this segment represents the
Huaneng A-Shares held by the Group.

Others: this segment includes results of
operations not directly identified under other
reportable segments and corporate activities.
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Wit b e B ERE (88)

(a) TPEL - BEMAMK

FERHE D ERRIR Mo ”*BF‘?E’Jﬁﬁ‘
> NEEETE EL/?% RAIZ T IIE
ERE2WMOMNFE  BERAE

AEEEESSERNOMZRAETS -
EmkRENKRESEXZ2ZHNAEBD
I TH"*BE’JFFF@‘E&F‘%E&%E@@E{‘
BRAD B o EARKE AR IERK
FEBEELA ﬂ?ﬁiﬂﬁ%@ﬁﬁT\ﬁEéﬁ
WORERMDEB - Em MR EEE
P M iR AR S 2R EABIA T ©
DERE 2 X B TIRBER TR =FHEE
=ERGZFBIGHERE - D EEZ W
BmAHREE RN - 2 W0 8
MATARER @] 8 BIEXER
MEBRTRER - FAREEERFRA
KMERIREHRIES

DHMEERBRECREBRANABINE
E BPEEMRDEE HBAREWN
Eﬁﬁ;\%’r@&ﬁ%fmﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ&%ﬁ&
RTREHRNER - D HBERER
M,J_jc ENERANESFER  BBR
fE B2 2R A TS 3 MR E R IR B A
L/{&“*BEE%EEiEﬂEZ’\*BETﬂHF'f?
MIRTTER - ERERNEEERE
o E%Eﬁ?ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂvﬁ%iﬁﬁ’éﬂ—“
2o BN TARRBIRB BN ERD
MEERBEBERISRDEEE -

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s chief operating decision-makers monitor
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenues derived from customers, products and
services directly identifiable with individual segment
are reported directly under respective segments. All
direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped
under respective segments. Indirect costs and support
functions’ costs related to the strategic decision
making and day-to-day management of the business
of the Group and corporate activities that cannot be
reasonably allocated to other segments, products
and services are grouped under others. Transactions
between segments are priced based on similar terms
offered to or transacted with external parties. Inter-
segment income and expenses are eliminated on
consolidation. The measure used for reporting segment
profit is “profit for the year”, i.e. profit after taxation
of the business entities, net income generated from
investments held and share of results of investees.

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible and
current assets held by the business entities, net book
value of investments held and share of net assets of
and loans to investees. Segment liabilities include
insurance liabilities, creditors and accruals, income
tax payable and deferred tax liabilities attributable to
respective segments and bank borrowings managed
directly by the segments or directly related to those
segments. An asset and a liability are grouped
under same segment if the liability is collateralised
by the asset. Dividend payable to shareholders of
the Company is treated as unallocated liabilities in
reporting segment assets and liabilities.
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5 Wt SR E

V.
_%1\;;
i

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) hibEsE - EENLAME () (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)
L] NRERRAY pisis
SREE ki Trdingin ~ Property development RBRE 0] Inter-segment &4
Finandial services Insurance motor vehicles andinvestment  Strategicinvestment Others elimination Consolidated

18 017 2018 2017 2008 2017 2008 2017 2018 2017 2008 2017 2008 007 2018 A0

BETR | EETE | BEF | BETTL | BETE | EETT| BEF | BETI | BETE | BETL | BEFA | BETE | BRTR | BETL | BRFR | AT
HKS000 | HKSO00 | HKS'o00 | RkSOco| RSO0 | HESOOD| HKSO00 | HKSO00 | HKSO0D | AKSOGD| RSO0 | HRSOOD| HKS'O00 | HKSO00 | HKSO00 | HtSO

BZ1A318  Yearended
i34 31 December

& Revenue

[EEBEHES Disaggregated by
EBZ15%  timing of revenue
BEEHZ  recognition under
BEAR  HKFRSIS

g Point in time - - - 930,621 | 827,105 - - - - - - - 930,621 | 827,105
(5 Overtime 5 - B ) N - B i B i ) ) i ] ) ’

930,621 | 827,105 o - o - o - - 930,621 | 827,105

RFER Interestincome from

FlslA loans to customers 4708 634 = - = - = - = - = - . | ans| 63
hERE Net eamed insurance

- remiums - | asger | s6mo - - - - - - - - - - agser| a0
REHA Divdendincome - - - 1 - - - -8 B - - - -osm| B
HEUA Rentalincome - S|4 46 - - 45| 4556 - - - - - -5 925
Eoha Other revenues 305 | 1AT8| 77| 84 T 3| 60| 3| - - 30639 34365| - -| 35813 | 37768
EzP Revenuefrom extemnal

s customers 7013 7812 56,281 | 62930 | 930,693 | 827142| 4,652 4500 8420 23207| 31639| 34365 - - 11,038,698 | 960,046
En Interseqments Y DY P ) Sl e e e 386 3649 (3683) BS9| - -

BES vkl Reportablesegmentrevenue| 7,013 7812 56478 | 62930 | 930,693 | 827142| 4,652 4500 8420 2327| 35125| 38014| (3,683)| (3,649)| 1,038,698 | 960,046
EH(5E)/  Other osses)/gains
YE-58  -net (Bo0)| 64| 7061 672 5)
TEERREN  Write back of mpaiment
FISHESE  lossonloansto customers

(84| G674 S| 9% (9952 14217 = (nan| 25803

&m and interest receivable 4016 3393 - - - - - - - - - - - - a6 339
BERY Operating expenses 4,508) (6110)f (53,972)| (70320)| (923,851)| (826444) (1,733) (1,73]) - S| (31,578) (3225 3,68 3649 |(1,011,959)| (933,187)
S257/ (FB) Operating profit/(loss) 6,131 56059 | 9,567 (638)f 6,837 69| (5222) (282 8420 | 33151| (6,405) 20006 - - 19328 | 56,055
BEHE Finance costs 9.7370)  (17,781) - - - - - - - - (16428)] (19279) - - (26165)| (37,05)
EIEEENT  Shareof esultsof

25 associates 614,071 | 513233 - - - - - - - -l 3292 4691 - -| 617,363 | 51794
BHAER/  Profit/loss) before

(BB taxation 610465 | S01111| 9,567 (638 6,837 098 (5222) (282) 8420 | 33151f (19541)] 542 - -| 610,526 | 536923
BER () Income tax (expense)/

Vi) credit 25,462) (14212)|  (1,264) 5821 (1,939) 637)] 5114 36712 842) (2321) (8,043)| (7117 - - (32,436)| (20033
REERA/  Profitlloss)for

(BB the year 585,003 | 486899 | _ 8303 56)| 4,898 61 108 851 7,578 | 30830 | (27,584 16%) - - 578,090 | _5168%
HEwA Inteest income 7009|  Ta| e2| 1463 - - - - - |36 | 365 - - 3g006 | 428
KEEFE  Depreciationand

e amortisation for the year 1 33| __1.146 536 14 9 - - - - 668 m - S| 1999 | 1640
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e g S o e R (B8 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) TPES - BELAME (H) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)
HEER NEERRRE
SHER Ri Tradingin Property development RBRE =] &4
Financial services Insurance motor vehicles andinvestment  Strategicinvestment Others Consolidated

218 017 2018 017 218 017 2018 017 2018 017 218 017 2018 017

BYTR | BETR| BETR | BXTR| BETR | BETE| BETR | BHTR| BETR | BSTT| BEFx | BE7T| BRFx | BRI
HKSO00 | HKSO00|  HKS00 | HKSO0D|  HKS00 | HKSOOD| HKS00 | HKSOOD| HKSO00 | HKSOOD| HKS00 | HKSOOD| HKS'O00 | - HKSUOD

R128318  At31December

ARAK  TheCompanyand
HEAR subsidiaries 126,644 | 136815 300,349 | 235656 68,608 | 189426 65051 | 73248| 570,417 | 503514| 1,177,148 | 1261728| 2,308,217 | 2400387
FEBEAT  Investmentsin associates | 4,942,748 | 4797639 - 45,925 44393| 4,988,673 | 4,842,032

BEE Total assets 5,069,392 | 4934454| 300,349 | _2356%| _ 68,608 | _189426| _ 65051 | 73248 _570,417 | 503514/ 1,223,073

\F

7,296,890 | 7,42419

KREK  TheCompanyand

&L subsidiaries 24422 | 224461| 100,257 | 103,842 1,706 3650 22,253 | 27,753 = -| 216432 | 371811| 565070 | 731517
ek Totalliabilities 24422 | 224461 100,257 | 103,842 1,06 3650| 22253 | 21753 - -| 216432 | _371811| 565,070 | _731517

TEEER  Additions to non-current
FRINT  segmentassets
BE during the year 4,140 il 81 2946 - - - - - - 966 9%| _ 5187 3055
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5 ia Ko ERE () 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) b [&@ &k} (b) Geographical information
TXREHNBEEG)AEEREIINARLH The following table sets out the information about
Wz K (i) NERE R Y - HEES N ERE - the geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenues
B EE KEWENKEHRZ QA from external customers and (ii) the Group’s property,
([$ETEIERBEE]) TEMEANER - plant and equipment, intangible assets, investment
EE R IR RIS sk E Yk E AT properties and investments in associates (“specified
EHElD o IBEIIERBEEMTHIES non-current assets”). The geographical location of
Ely o W BBERRERIEEMER customers is based on the location at which the
BEERMEME D  EEEERKE services were provided or the goods delivered. The
BN T Bl LA B T &5 - geographical location of the specified non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the assets,
in the case of property, plant and equipment and
investment properties and the location of operations,
in the case of intangible assets and investments in
associates.
Bt HER An Gy
Hong Kong Mainland China Macau Consolidated
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
BRI\ BT | BETR| FETL | BRFR| BETT | BRFL| BETT
HK$'000|  HKS'000 | HKS$'000| HKS'000 | HKS'000| HKS'000 | HK$'000|  HKS'000
BZ12831HLEE  Yearended 31 December
MREPYE Revenues from external customers  |__16,317| __ 27934 | _976,784| _ 893,125 | __45,597| __ 38987 |1,038,698| _ 960,046
R12831H At 31 December
KRR RIELR The Company and subsidiaries 119,448 112214 71,983 75,699 709 12871 192,140| 189,200
REBENT Investments in associates - - 14,988,673 | 4,842,032 - - 14,988,673 | 4,842,032
EEFRBEE Specified non-current assets 119,448 | 112,214 | 5,060,656 | 4,917,731 709 1,27 | 5,180,813 | 5,031,232
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HAth (F548) iids — 1F8 6 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS — NET
2018 2017
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
AT EBEBIIEZYIE  Netrealised and unrealised gains on
MemEENDZR financial assets at fair value through
RARBIR I E F 5 profit or loss 1,547 635
KEYEEHAFE Fair value losses on revaluation of
518 investment properties (186) (718)
HEMHHESLFEE  Netgains on disposal of available-for-sale
Was #58 financial assets - 9,802
HEHMBEEE (B18) (Loss)/gain on disposal of repossessed
ek assets (390) 548
FEN (JB18) Uz %%  Net exchange (losses)/gains (12,398) 15,536
(11,427) 25,803

RBgEB E AN BEEFRHE LM 7 NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED
42 AND COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED
ON INSURANCE BUSINESS
2018 2017
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000
R ERELNEEE Net insurance claims incurred on

JHEE (a) insurance business (a) 5,125 23,140

REBEBEADFEME  Net commission expenses incurred on
ZH (b) insurance business (b) 31,848 30,153
36,973 53,293
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7 PRBg SRS E AR G R AR 7 NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED

M ()

AND COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED
ON INSURANCE BUSINESS (Continued)

(a) PRBgSETS B AR 0 A v 4 (a) Net insurance claims incurred on insurance
business
2018
£ ] Bk iR
Gross Reinsurance Net
BYETT BYETT BYETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

AEEBERBRRAE

Current year claims and loss

£ adjustment expenses 7,827 (1,552) 6,275
FFEEREREX Additional cost for prior years’
FEBRHEEIN claims and loss adjustment
DN expenses 1,466 135 1,601
BEEBKSIHMRE  Decrease in claims incurred but
S not reported (717) (1,752) (2,469)
FmEER 2 BETEEE  Decrease in the expected cost of
PR AR claims for unexpired risks (282) - (282)
8,294 (3,169) 5,125
2017
8 iRk R
Gross Reinsurance Net
BT T BETT BB TF T
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

AEEBERBRAE
4

EFERERBRRAE
BRMBEINIE,/
(EFEEIR)

ERLERZFNRE
2,/ OR)

Aom IR 2 85T R E

Current year claims and loss

adjustment expenses 17,501 (4,417) 13,084
Additional cost/(run-off savings)

for prior years' claims and

loss adjustment expenses 12,763 (2,314) 10,449
Increase/(decrease) in claims
incurred but not reported 989 (604) 385
Decrease in the expected cost of
claims for unexpired risks (778) - (778)
30,475 (7,335) 23,140

238 B{=5&E BR8] Min Xin Holdings Limited



AR A IR AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR B S5 8 A 1) Hi
M ()

2

AR A 7 NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED

AND COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED
ON INSURANCE BUSINESS (Continued)

(b) PREZERS =AW T4 E A (b) Net commission expenses incurred on

insurance business

2018 2017
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
S M ERESERE Gross commissions paid and payable 32,654 30,669
o B % E AR Less: Commissions received and receivable
YN ik from reinsurers (806) (516)
HeER T Net commission expenses 31,848 30,153
=il 8  OPERATING PROFIT
2018 2017
BT B F T
HK$’000 HKS’000
BEFFEE AN Operating profit is stated after crediting
T &1 and charging the following:
A Crediting
BE W U 2 /= 58 Net exchange gains - 15,536
WEMEE W E Rentals received and receivable from
e MBREEEA investment properties less direct outgoings 8,227 8,159
kR Charging
BIRKA  BFEESEEE Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments 36,625 34,947
— Frz B RIEAT — Salaries, allowances and bonus 35,161 33,837
— RIKBFEL A (a) - Retirement benefit costs (a) 1,464 1,110
2 Gl ea Auditor’s remuneration 2,086 2,748
— EIFEE - provision for current year 1,813 2,388
— HEIEET — interim attestation work 273 360
PHE A Costs of sales 920,394 819,733
— FERK - Cost of inventories 918,224 818,825
— FERE — Write down of inventories 1,552 -
— At - Others 618 908
e Ky Depreciation and amortisation 1,999 1,640
BIBE (FEREE 10(a)(iii) Management fee (Note 10(a)(iii)) 1,880 1,880
HEME HWENERME  Loss on disposal of property, plant and
&8 equipment 57 38
PE X B 18 %58 Net exchange losses 12,398 -
EihEE 7 L %44 Operating lease rentals in respect of
land and buildings 520 658

ZZ—)\&EF%{ Annual Report 2018

239



240

AR A T IR LR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8 EEERF| (48) 8  OPERATING PROFIT (Continued)

(@) f£2000511 A30H A @ & & (@) The Group contributed to a defined contribution
M—IBRERZKETS ([REM/—H scheme (“DC Scheme”) which was available
FE) B FBEEERZES to all eligible Hong Kong employees prior
BEBERIZ2MN - RAEHKGEZ to 30 November 2000. The assets of the DC
BERAEBE 2 EESDRES - Scheme were held separately from those of the
MEBEVERESRE - HEE2000 Group in an independently administered fund.
F11 A30 B AEHIAGT B BRE Contributions to the DC Scheme by the Group
HEABREIMAES TSRO and employees were calculated at 15% of the
BsREIE A B8 ([RERE employees’ basic salary until 30 November
gl]) MRRERL AEERE 2000 when the DC Scheme was replaced by
B ¥R TEHRETE 2 HREUE a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF
BEXRAHzEDZ THETE - Scheme”) set up under the Hong Kong Mandatory

Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
REB T ARBRESE 2 1% The Group’s monthly contributions (mandatory
Rt ke REEEXRH and voluntary) to the MPF Scheme for each
B2 1 (200099 A30H & hn employee are calculated at the higher of 10% (or
ABEE ZHRBERAEELXA 6% for employees who joined after 30 September
FHEHZN) EEFTABRAN 2000) of the monthly basic salary and 5% of the
BOZAURSEREFE (BA monthly total income, subject to a maximum
MARGNEEEZRSHRBERL contribution of HK$2,000, HK$3,000 or HK$4,000
# 2,000 7T ~ & 3,000 7T 3k B based on the internal grading system. The Group’s
4,0007T) ° f& B EEUS 2 U FUH) contributions to the MPF Scheme can be reduced
mAIBEF R ST BT HOR M 2 by the Group’s voluntary contributions forfeited
HEREAARERDAEE MR in relation to those employees who leave the MPF
BestElz aRMER - R20184F Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.
2017412 A31 B EAEAEXR At 31 December 2018 and 2017, there were no
REVA 2R WK - material unutilised forfeited contributions.
HPEAMHNEENS  A&H For Mainland China employees, the Group
A REES B AR ELE % participates in the employee pension schemes
BHE 2 E # ™ RTEE B8R administered by the respective municipal
HKatdl - ~"EEREEFEZA government in various locations in Mainland
ShemFEEEELST A HK China where the Group operates. The Group
& ™ BT IR E A AR E makes monthly contributions calculated at
FTEEBHRNBANEE - a percentage of the monthly payroll costs to
these schemes and the respective municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of the employees of the
Group.
9 REMA 9  FINANCE COSTS
2018 2017
B FT BT
HK$’000 HKS'000
RITEZNEXH Interest expenses on bank loans 26,165 37,056
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Pl <z 2 A1 A N £

(a) HEHM4

10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES” EMOLUMENTS

AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

ERES() EREEE (i)
As director (i) As management (ii)
5% EE
REAMRR
RENFE
Salaries,
housing
EEHE and other 2018
Directors’ allowances, and #4 bl
fees benefits in kind Bonus Total
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HIES Executive Directors
BESLAE (£/)' MrYan Zheng (Chairman)' - - = =
PN L (/) MrPeng Jin Guang (Chairman)’ - - - -
TIE%E (B/Z/F) MrWang Fei (Vice Chairman) - - - -
[ Mr Chen Yu® 22 582 220 824
B Mr Liu Cheng’ 78 1,090 390 1,558
FRITEE Non-executive Directors
BEER AL Mr Yang Jingchao’ - - - -
BERRLE Mr Hon Hau Chit 60 - - 60
Bfmik " Mr Liu Lun’® = - - -
BUEHTEE  Independent Non-executive Directors
ERBALE Mr Ip Kai Ming 250 - - 250
RIBEE Mr Cheung Man Hoi 350 - - 350
2elEs £ Mr Leung Chong Shun’ 167 - - 167
PERKAE® Mr Sze Robert Tsai To® 86 - = 86
AL’ Mr So Hop Shing’ 112 - - 112
1,125 1,672 610 3,407
1 R2018F4 A N2BEAAREERIPITES 1 Appointed as Chairman and Executive Director on 12 April 2018
2 R2018F4ANEBRERERRATES 2 Resigned as Chairman and Executive Director on 12 April 2018
3 201895 10BE T ARNITES 3 Appointed as Executive Director on 10 September 2018
4 H2018F9R10HETEARNITES 4 Resigned as Executive Director on 10 September 2018
5 R2018F 12 A7HEZEAIRNITES 5 Appointed as Non-executive Director on 7 December 2018
6 12018F 11 A 15 HEIEAIERNITES 6 Resigned as Non-executive Director on 15 November 2018
7 R2018F5A3HBEEABYIINITES 7 Appointed as Independent Non-executive Director on 3 May 2018
8 M2018F4 A1 HEEABIUIERNITES 8 Resigned as Independent Non-executive Director on 1 April 2018
9 20185 6 13 HRMEABYIFHNITES 9 Retired as Independent Non-executive Director on 13 June 2018
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10 SHATHAN B4 KX A4 e 10
M4 2 A £ (%)

(a) HEHEME (F)

SENIOR EXECUTIVES” EMOLUMENTS
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

EREZ)
As director (i)

ERERE (i)

As management (ii)

EFBE
R E A A -
REWMF=
Salaries,
housing
EEHE and other 2017
Directors'’  allowances, and ®e k]
fees  benefitsin kind Bonus Total
BT BT BEFT BT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
HIES Executive Directors
E N %E (£/F) MrPeng Jin Guang (Chairman) - _ _ _
TIE%E (B/Z/E) MrWang Fei (Vice Chairman) - - - -
Bl Mr Liu Cheng 100 1,335 520 1,955
FHTER Non-executive Directors
AmEE Mr Liu Lun - - - -
BERLE Mr Hon Hau Chit 60 - - 60
BUIHITEE  Independent Non-executive Directors
R LAE Mr Ip Kai Ming 250 - - 250
FERLE Mr Sze Robert Tsai To 350 - - 350
HamktE Mr So Hop Shing 250 - - 250
ROFFEAE' Mr Cheung Man Hoi' 188 - - 188
1,198 1,335 520 3,053

1 R2017F4 1 BERTABIENTES

{5 @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

1 Appointed as Independent Non-executive Director on 1 April 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ARAT BN B M <5 B 4% B e
Pl <5 2 A AN ()

(a) HEHME (5)

() ZERBEE/AQASHNE
N AIH)E F AT A0 AR TS 1 S A
SR E

(i) ZFERBEABEERRAER
P 42 45 ) EL At AR 7% 1 S A< 3l A
EENE o

(iiiy RARA—IERBREEEZHE
BEBE188E T (2017 F : B
1888 7T)  ERERE—MER
HRREE-LEERS  BEIR
HEETFARREEGZER -

ORERAT ] PN
FiliiF @2 AT ARG AZE S AN H
e RAEERN A TSNS 2 ERIA
T INTFREALZMEFBEOT -

10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

(i) The amounts represented emoluments paid
or payable for the services as a director of the
Company or its subsidiaries.

(i) The amounts represented emoluments paid or
payable for other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company.

(iii) An amount of HK$1.88 million (2017: HK$1.88
million) was paid to Vigour Fine, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, for the provision of
certain management services which include the
provision of directors to the Board of Directors
of the Company pursuant to a management
agreement.

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The analysis in note (a) above does not include
those individuals who are not directors but whose
emoluments are among the five highest in the Group.
Details of the emoluments paid to those individuals
are as follows:

2018 2017
BT T BT T
HKS’000 HKS’000
i - BE N EAMEEL « Salaries, housing and other allowances,

LEYH = and benefits in kind 4,427 4,572
RIRERET 2R Contributions to retirement benefit scheme 96 48
R"e Bonus 5,126 5,346

9,649 9,966
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10 SHATHAN B4 KX A4 e
P4 2 AR Al Nt (48)

10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES” EMOLUMENTS
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(Continued)
(b) 2 m B & 2 Rl A+ (b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
(%)

e E Emoluments Band 2018 2017
AZ A#
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
751,000,001 7T — 7% 1,500,000 7T  HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1 -
511,500,001 7T — 7815 2,000,000 7T HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1 2
2,500,001 7T — 7% 3,000,000 7T HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 1 -
7B 3,000,001 7T — 7% 3,500,000 7T HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 = 2

75 ¥ 3,500,001 7T — 78 % 4,000,000 7T

(c) FHEMAE

BN TARAISREEABZME (1R
#E) FBHWT -

HK$3,500,001 - HK$4,000,000

(¢) Senior management

Details of the emoluments payable to senior
management of the Company by band are as follows:

[ S Emoluments Band 2018 2017
A& AZ

Number of Number of

Individuals Individuals

B 500,001 7T — 75 1,000,0007T  HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 = 1
1,000,001 7T — 7B 1,500,000 7T HK$1,000,001 - HK$ 1,500,000 2 -
1,500,001 7C — 7B %5 2,000,000 7T HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1 1
B 3,000,001 7T — 7B %5 3,500,000 77 HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 = 2

7B 3,500,001 7T — /& %5 4,000,000 7T

{5 @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

HK$3,500,001 - HK$4,000,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated
income statement represents:

2018 2017
BT T BT T
HKS$’000 HKS’000
EHHE Current tax
BBHER Hong Kong profits tax 281 465
HR B A 1 S AT IS AR Mainland China corporate income tax 8,184 7,249
B TRIR FTIS Mainland China withholding tax 18,016 15,217
SBPFREIE Macau taxation 441 _
26,922 22,931
EEEERBD Under provision in prior year
R IR Macau taxation - 4
ELER IR Deferred tax
FREEBRNELEN Relating to the origination and reversal
# o) of temporary differences 5,514 (2,902)
B8 H Income tax expense 32,436 20,033

EBFER IR BENG T ERT T
73 Bl i W AR ) 15 75 B 2 8.25% 1% 16.5%
(20174 : 16.5%) IEREER -

PRI AT S D IRIRE AGET R
NPT S BRI TR K 25% (2017 F ¢ 25%)
R BRI B AR RIEEE R
F2008F 1 A1 B BEMNFHEE R
B AEBEZED IR EWAR 5%
K2 10% 4097 B A FBARFT 15 FY ©

R 2 A 2 B AR R 4 A 5T AR 7
PSRRI ZIRITHKREE -

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 8.25% and 16.5% respectively under the Two-tiered
Rates of Profits Tax (2017: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the
year.

Mainland China corporate income tax has been
calculated at the rate of 25% (2017: 25%) on the
estimated taxable profits for the year.

Mainland China withholding tax is levied at 5% and
10% on dividend income received from subsidiaries
and investees incorporated in Mainland China
respectively when these subsidiaries and investees
declared dividend out of profits earned after 1 January
2008.

Taxation on Macau profits has been calculated on the

estimated taxable profits for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in Macau.
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11 Frgsi s (48) 11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

NE BB BRI AR F < BiTE SRR A B The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation
RAEABZMEMAE 2 ERHNELER differs from the theoretical amount that would arise

NN using the taxation rate in Hong Kong as follows:
2018 2017
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FR A% AT A Profit before taxation 610,526 536,923

IRBEMBEREEER  Notional tax on profit before taxation,

BB R ERT calculated at the rates applicable to

Blm M 2 ZEfRIE profits in the jurisdictions concerned 116,358 100,919
IR 2 A Income not subject to taxation (104,237) (91,395)
TR 2 = H Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 9,224 9,099
RIERTIE K AT R Increase in unrecognised tax losses and

i 2= BN deductible temporary differences 11,121 1,426
1k F 2 AR D> Under provision in prior year - 4
Efh Others (30) (20)
et Income tax expenses 32,436 20,033

246 {5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rz 5 12 DIVIDEND
2018 2017
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
PEIHREBERAHMS Final dividend proposed after the
FIEE 1010 reporting date of 10 HK cents
(2017 4 : Bk 8l) (2017: 8 HK cents) per share 59,726 47,781

25 B R FHR HO RS I R AR S B
BHRERAFIEAE  EBREE2019
F12A3BEFEIIEREB BN DR -

B I A

FREREFEREHE2018F 12 A
31 A IEFE AR AR R B & FE
57,8098 JT (20174 : /& #51,6898
7o) RFRE BTG 2 KT H &
597,257,252 (2017 4F : 536,725,670) J&
HE - EEHE2017F12A31 B IEF
ESRAF M EFHEE 52017
FeH14BHETEAE (FEE33@)3I)
AR 2 AT R B E L SR o

AEBEAFEMGBEFEGECHTA
BEEH B, AERENEFENS
P g AN G REARRAER -

13

The dividend proposed after the reporting date has
not been recognised as a liability in these consolidated
financial statements, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of retained profits for the year ending
31 December 2019.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to shareholders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 of
HK$578,090,000 (2017: HK$516,890,000) and the
weighted average of 597,257,252 (2017: 536,725,670)
shares in issue during the year. The weighted average
number of shares used in the calculation of earnings
per share for the year ended 31 December 2017 had
been adjusted for the bonus element of the rights
issue following the completion of the rights issue on
14 June 2017 (Note 33(a)(i)).

The Group has no dilutive potential shares in issue
during the current and prior years and therefore
diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings
per share for the years presented.
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14 W3 - BN Skt 14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
PUSET R
RBELHR BERR
ThfERE B ERRE
Leasehold BREF Furniture,
lands and Buildings fixtures, office AE
land use heldfor  and computer Motor ek
rights own use equipment vehicles Total
BEFT BETT BEFT BEFT BEFT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
R2017F1A1A At 1 January 2017
AR Cost 28,621 8,511 9,163 2,960 49,255
ZHMERAE Accumulated depreciation and
BE impairment losses (14,055) (7,514) (7,660) (2,027) (31,256)
REHE Net book value 14,566 997 1,503 933 17,999

HZ2017F12831H  Yearended

IHFE 31 December 2017
BRmEE Opening net book value 14,566 997 1,503 933 17,999
EHE=5 Translation differences - - 12 11 23
B Additions - - 205 - 205
KEERE Charge for the year (283) (80) (497) (434) (1,294)
HE Disposals - - (55) - (55)
HREEFE Closing net book value 14,283 917 1,168 510 16,878

20178128318 % At 31 December 2017 and

2018F1 418 1 January 2018
B Cost 28,621 8,511 9,149 3,052 49,333
ZHMERRE Accumulated depreciation and

BB impairment losses (14,338) (7,594) (7,981) (2,542) (32,455)
REFE Net book value 14,283 917 1,168 510 16,878
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14 W)€ - Beas SRt (48) 14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
B %8
RELHR HEER
THERE B EHRE
Leasehold BRET Furniture,
lands and Buildings  fixtures, office RE
land use heldfor  and computer Motor k]
rights own use equipment vehicles Total
BETT BEFT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BZ2018F12A310 Yearended
LEE 31 December 2018
HRmEE Opening net book value 14,283 917 1,168 510 16,878
ERES Translation differences - 4 3 - 7
5 Additions - 1,019 511 607 2137
EREBESH Reclassified from repossessed
2 (a) assets (a) = 3,050 = > 3,050
REEHE Charge for the year (284) (135) (448) (201) (1,068)
& Disposals - - (8) (61) (69)
HRREFE Closing net book value 13,999 4,855 1,226 855 20,935

R2018%E12831H  At31December 2018

A Cost 28,621 12,580 8,928 2,591 52,720
ZHTERAE Accumulated depreciation
B2 and impairment losses (14,622) (7,725) (7,702) (1,736) (31,785)
RERE Net book value 13,999 4,855 1,226 855 20,935
@ FHRSBERMRFEAMA—IE (@) The amount represents the carrying amount
BENEVMERFARBEEE of a repossessed commercial property located
ENOERERAMEZAMNERR in Mainland China immediately before the
Ao reclassification from repossessed assets to owner-

occupied property during the year.
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14 Wy~ Has Mk (48)

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
by HEELM R LHMERAENERERF (b) The net book values of leasehold lands and land
BT : use rights are analysed as follows:
2018 2017
BT BT T
HKS’000 HK$'000
EEBRFEMEL Leases held in Hong Kong
50F A £ Over 50 years 4,317 4,340
10F & 504 Between 10 and 50 years 9,664 9,923
EEBAIMNFEEL Leases held outside Hong Kong
10F & 504 Between 10 and 50 years 18 20
13,999 14,283
15 WL EE 15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
B
Sofware
BT
HK$'000
HZE2017F 12 A31HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2017
BN Additions 2,850
REF# Y Charge for the year (346)
HR AR FE Closing net book value 2,504
2017F 124318 K At 31 December 2017 and
20181 A1 H 1 January 2018
(DN Cost 2,850
et Accumulated amortisation (346)
BREDSA Net book value 2,504
BZ2018F12A31HLLEE Year ended 31 December 2018
ERVIER A Opening net book value 2,504
AREE Y Charge for the year (931)
HARBREDEE Closing net book value 1,573
®2018F12HA31H At 31 December 2018
DN Cost 2,850
T Accumulated amortisation (1,277)
BRI R {E Net book value 1,573
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16 EYE 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2018 2017
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
~E At fair value
R1A1H At 1 January 169,818 170,536
N {EEE Fair value losses (186) (718)
®12A31H At 31 December 169,632 169,818
AEENREVERZFRAEBES TN The Group’s interests in investment properties at their
I carrying amount are analysed as follows:
2018 2017
EBETFT BT T
HKS’000 HKs'000
EEBRFEMEY Leases held in Hong Kong
10F & 504 Between 10 and 50 years 102,000 94,500

EBBAIMNGE L Leases held outside Hong Kong

10F & 504 Between 10 and 50 years 67,632 75,318

169,632 169,818
—XMBRRRBHAFERE 10,200 The title deeds in respect of an investment property in
BT (2017F : B 94508 L) W—E Hong Kong with a fair value of HK$102 million (2017:
UREBEBHIREMFNFELAHIRE HK$94.5 million) held by a subsidiary are placed in the
FFtE  UHEETHBNERAT - custody of the IA pursuant to the relevant regulatory

requirements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16 HEYZE (&) 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
PG N VEF = Fair value measurement of investment properties
(a) - TEZEHE (a) Fair value hierarchy
TEREHR2018F 12 A31 BIRKEE % The following table presents the fair value of
HEEASHAEEBREYEN LA FE - investment properties held by the Group measured at
EENATERA=-RNEE (EER 31 December 2018 on a recurring basis, categorised
AW EERF 135 [ R FEFT into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
2]) 2% (F84330) - 2FEFES HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement (Note 4.3(a)). The
MBS H2ZEEHE R EATAEER ] level into which a fair value measurement is classified
BRUEREEMEET - is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique.
2018 2017
BT T BT T
HKS’000 HKs'000
KREMNAFEE Recurring fair value measurement
FZER Level 3
i Mainland China
[EELY/ES Commercial properties 63,044 71,132
FEME Residential properteis 2,800 2,300
E=K(y) Car parks 1,788 1,886
67,632 75,318
E Hong Kong
EEME Commercial properties 102,000 94,500
169,632 169,818
REBEFERATEIRNFABERED All the investment properties carried at fair value held
FERARATVTERBNE=5H:TE - by the Group were measured using Level 3 of the fair
FRNIEERATFERBE=5HNE value hierarchy. During the year there was no transfer
%o REENBER AN ELEBN 2 W into or out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The
HRERRNFEREESRENER - Group's policy is to recognise transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period in which they occur.
{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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BeEYE ()
BCEY A -FER R (8])

(b) AU =S AR

WEMERBY BEFMHE - F—KF
BaEHhEMEEBEBERA [ MEE
HMEEMNEEBMAERARF - 20184
ABTHMNAFEREESH KEE
EREFERIRA HB T Z T EAME
wERLERIMEEER -

AR BEAHEEMERBENHAF
BRARAERNEEETE - BARGHE
HER ZEEEVENEUMNEEDR
AERHBIES R AENMEER S AR
& (\EEVWENEREENT4A43E
2458 (20175 (43[E&E45E) ™
SABEENTBFEAARARE2TE
AR777T (2017F : ARESITE
AREEGOTL) (N BEUMEARILR A
28 (20174 : 28F)  MIFAHE A
BHEMLARE6407T (2017F : AR
6407C) ° AEFFEEHERNMEEE R
% M5 ARS2THEE -

R AR B A B (E T E R R FEERA
ML EEERE - W2 E LBRYER
RGP HREEHENHEEER I
T 7N 55 [ 1) 1) 3¢ B A Eb ) 3K LE BB Y
FERZ (P EREE) (FH iR B
SR AR - BRANMGEER - i
FENTABRIBLTEE -

URESHEEMEN R FENEADT
BHESAET  YREA Ry ET S
BT HAREEAENHEES Ut
AN EE B K W) 3 B A L B B L B RO 4
FRE (PINREHERBEAEEB®EE)
ERRERITEAOARE - ERHA -
N EBR - ERREETER 2
KN BETNABREIELHH10% (2017
F4914.5%) ©

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties
(Continued)

(b) Information about Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy

The investment properties were revalued based on
their fair values at 31 December 2018 by independent
professional valuers, namely Savills Valuation and
Professional Services Limited and Vigers Appraisal &
Consulting Limited. The Group has discussed with the
independent professional valuers on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results at each annual
reporting date.

The fair values of commercial properties and car parks
located in Mainland China were determined by income
capitalisation approach. The significant unobservable
inputs applied in valuation measurement are (i)
capitalisation rates ranged from 4.3% to 4.5% (2017:
4.3% to 4.5%) and monthly market rental ranged from
RMB52 to RMB77 (2017: RMB53 to RMB80) per square
meter for commercial properties and (ii) capitalisation
rate of 2.8% (2017: 2.8%) and monthly market rental
of RMB640 (2017: RMB640) per unit for car parks
respectively. The fair value measurement is negatively
correlated to the capitalisation rate and positively
correlated to the monthly market rental.

The fair value of residential properties located in
Mainland China was determined by market comparison
approach with reference to recent sales price of
comparable properties on a price per square meter
basis, adjusted for a premium or a discount specific
to the factors such as the location and quality of the
Group's properties while compared to the comparable
properties. The unobservable input for discount
applied in valuation measurement was immaterial.

The fair value of commercial properties located in
Hong Kong was determined by market comparison
approach with reference to recent sales price of
comparable properties on a price per square foot
basis, adjusted for a premium or a discount specific
to the factors such as the longer period of tenancy
and the larger floor area of the Group’s properties
while compared to the comparable properties. Larger
discount will result in a lower fair value measurement.
The significant unobservable input for discount
applied in valuation measurement was approximately
10% (2017: approximately 14.5%).
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16 EWE (4)

17

254

BCEY A -FERR (8])

(b) A-FEZERE =S R

(%)

FRZERFERBEE =FHHA

=5

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties

(Continued)

(b) Information about Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy (Continued)

The movements in the balance of Level 3 of the fair

B value hierarchy during the year are as follows:
2018 2017
mENE  fiEhE mENE  AENE
Commercial  Residential Bfy @5 Commeral  Residential B g
properties  properties  Car parks Total  properties  properties  Carparks Total
BEFT  EEFT BETT BRI | BETr EEFr EEFr BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
RATE At 1 January 165,632 2,300 1,886 169,818 166,303 1,900 2333 170,536
DNTE (BE) /W Fairvalue (osses)/gains (588) 500 (98) (186) (671) 40 (447) (718)
R12A3A At 31 December 165,044 2,800 1,788 169,632 165,632 2,300 1,886 1692818
EMRAGABRRE  Total unrealised fairvalue (losses)/
[ﬁﬁwiﬁ?&/ (B#)  gainsforthe year recognised in
- FE|WETNA  the consolidated income
SELNTE(BE)/  statementas part of
lhgtes "Other gains/(losses) - net’ (588) 500 (98) (186) (671) 400 (447) (718)
/N 17 ASSOCIATES
2018 2017
BT JBEMEF T
HK$'000 HK$'000
EREEFEE Share of net assets 4,977,956 4,831,315
BT —xE4 /A5 (b) Loanto an associate (b) 10,717 10,717
4,988,673 4,842,032

{5 @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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B v (48) 17 ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(@) AEBERBENT ZKEDHTIN (@) The Group’s investments in associates are
N analysed below:
EfR&EE Hitb M
XIB Group Others Total
BEFT BT BT
HKS’000 HKS’000 HKSs’000
M2017E1 818 At 1 January 2017 4,043,936 38,066 4,082,002
bE W =R Translation differences 287,098 2,082 289,180
FEBRT R A Share of profit after taxation

B35 Al A Profit before taxation 661,401 5,239 666,640

FSf s Income tax expense (148,168) (548) (148,716)
BEEIRKRE Dividend declared (128,958) - (128,958)
BITIR I Issuance of subordinated

BERNEH additional tier 1 capital securities 192,214 - 192,214
REEMRFEL (Decrease)/increase in investment

GRid) /1 revaluation reserve (109,884) 8 (109,876)
i3 — KB A Al Release of exchange translation

BERINERE reserve on dissolution of

Flcka a subsidiary - (454) (454)
M2017F12A4318 - At 31 December 2017,

JRZ5 as originally presented 4,797,639 44,393 4,842,032
VIAERE SRS Impact on initial application of

ERFIRMTE HKFRS 9 (64,518) - (64,518)
FED LR — B () Adjustment to align the

classification (i) (192,214) - (192,214)
R2018F1 18 At 1 January 2018,

&= as restated 4,540,907 44,393 4,585,300
BN ER Translation differences (232,232) (1,744) (233,976)
FEIS BR TR H Share of profit after taxation

B 754 Al A Profit before taxation 736,275 3,643 739,918

FTiSBiX Income tax expense (122,204) (351) (122,555)
EEIRRE Dividend declared (153,195) - (153,195)
NEERES Increase in fair value reserve

(RIE3R) $E (recycling) 172,154 - 172,154
NEERES Decrease in fair value reserve

(RAEIR) (R ) (non-recycling) (155) (16) (171)
JE1E— K E A R Share of movement in capital

BAEELE reserve of an associate 1,198 = 1,198
M2018512A318 At 31 December 2018 4,942,748 45,925 4,988,673
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EIEES

ZRAEEEFEASENMBEHRE
ﬁFﬁE@E#Tk%‘ﬂﬁﬁ
EEhER AN ERE—
B fEd - o EEER KM
B F) R 2017 FEITH R A EE I

—MEABELFEB - EZRAK
AEBEMNPEHRRMS - LA
CREIWTAEKN - AEBE A AE
2018 F 1 A1 B8 ER U145 64 DA I Bk
EFORE -

BB R AN 5 B R B
BRE THREER 28
PR E BTN

REBMELESEBFHENTRE
??T?AEAHS%%%@M&% HEF
FERAERE RRTEFEEAN (G

%$37 ) e

UTHERBER2018F 12 A 31 Elﬂ
ZK%@E’J%ZE&Q?@EK%%E’J%

NAEl - WEEREIHYAEIFELITRARR
A= EE AN ©

EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

17 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(i)

The adjustment is being made to align the Group’s
financial statements with the classification of
XIB Group between the non-controlling interests
and equity attributable to shareholders of XIB
in relation to the subordinated additional tier 1
capital securities issued by a subsidiary of XIB
in 2017. The Directors consider the amount of
the adjustment to be immaterial to the financial
statements of the Group. The Group has therefore
reflected the reclassification by adjusting the
opening balances at 1 January 2018.

The loan represented the Group’s investments in
that associate and was unsecured, interest free
and had no fixed repayment terms.

Bank deposits placed by the Group with
associated financial institutions in the normal
course of business are included in cash and bank
balances (Note 37(a)).

The following list contains the particulars of those
associates at 31 December 2018 which principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. All of these
entities are unlisted corporates and are accounted for
using equity method.
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17 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

R BRAR ALEN
feny BRRAGE BER
Place of Particulars Group's TEER
incorporation of issued and effective Principal
BENTE8 Name of associates and operations paid up capital interest activities
ERE Directly held
EFERHT - Xiamen International Bank, hEARENE 838626 BEMR 9.7635% BARKEER
REWBAA and its subsidiaries (\R% 838626 70)
The People’s  8,386.26 million shares Banking and
Republic of China  (RMBS8,386.26 million) investment holding
EFEBRSRT Luso International 4! 261 BERER 4.7880% #7
Banking Limited (BP% 26,1 L)
Macau 2.61 million shares Banking
(MOP2,610 million)
ERBAERAA Chiyu Banking Corporation Bk 337BEMR 6.2916% H1
Limited (B%17.729971)
Hong Kong 3.37 million shares Banking
(HK$1,772.99 million)
EFERRE Xiamen Interational Bk 4807.19BER 9.7635% RBBR
ARAT Investment Limited (M 4s0m9ET)
Hong Kong ~ 4,807.19 million shares Investment
(HK$4,807.19 million) holding
13 Indirectly held
HEEERE Min Faith Investments B 1000 0% B
BRAF" Limited” (B%10070)
Hong Kong 100 shares Investment
(HK$100) holding
(1) WEEARWEHEFTHEHAMEBEME (1) This associate is not audited by KPMG. The aggregate net

%o Bt E AR 2 EEFERKREIAT assets and profit before taxation attributable to this associate
A DR KIE R EBIRE BTE207% K represent approximately 0.7% and 0.5% respectively of the
0.5% ° Group’s consolidated totals.
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17 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of the material
associate prepared in accordance with the accounting
policies adopted by the Group and reconciled to

the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements, is disclosed below:

ERER
XIB Group
2018 2017
BT BT T
HKS’000 HKS’000
BE AT TR IEALE Gross amount of the associate’s
BE Assets 918,564,205 855,623,694
afE Liabilities (856,199,285) | (799,875,219)
JEVERRAERS (572 17(a)())) Non-controlling interests (Note 17(a)(i)) (11,740,161) (6,609,962)
IRER PE (L HE 2 Equity attributable to shareholders
(FEE17)()) (Note 17(a)(i)) 50,624,759 49,138,513
Was4a e Total revenues 38,160,897 30,666,711
B N\ A IR R RS Profit from continuing operations
HIE R R IR attributable to shareholders of
il the associate 6,289,451 5,256,658
iR /NET ) N A e Other comprehensive income attributable
Hih 2 mEWES to shareholders of the associate 1,972,960 (1,441,251)
B N\ A IR R RS Total comprehensive income attributable
P mEikEEBEE to shareholders of the associate 8,262,411 3,815,407
TR E Dividend declared 153,195 128,958
HEZAEER Reconciled to the Group’s interest
B N TR ER in the associate
Bt N\ T B E R EEEE Gross amount of net assets of the associate 50,624,759 49,138,513
REENERER Group's effective interest 9.7635% 9.7635%
A MIEHRER Carrying amount in the consolidated
BRE(E financial statements 4,942,748 4,797,639

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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17 WA+ (48)

I FEME R B A RO BE 2 X B [E AR E R

17 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Aggregate information of associates that are not

FTWT individually material is disclosed below:
2018 2017
BT JEMT T
HK$'000 HKS’000
REr B BIISRARANIIE  Aggregate carrying amount of individually
BN EpN ) /N immaterial assocates in the consolidated
WEREEETE financial statements 45,925 44,393
REBELZERZ AT Aggregate amount of the Group’s share
T3 &IB4%E of those associates’
SIE R E T R A Profit from continuing operations 3,292 4,691
Ha 2wk Other comprehensive income (1,760) 1,636
FHEK R AR Total comprehensive income 1,532 6,327

18 F&/NFE 5 A HoAth 2 1 ik 45 19 18 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

Gl THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
2018 2017
BT T B F T
HK$’000 HK$’000
F2017412 A31H At 31 December 2017 = -
A FERE B EERE  Impact on initial application of
HRBIRHTE HKFRS 9 503,514 -
20181 H1H At 1 January 2018,
K& as restated 503,514 _
RAFEFESR Fair value gain recognised in
(TATMEER) 28R fair value reserve (non-recycling)
2 NP EWE 66,903 -
b /N ] At fair value 570,417 _
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18 ¥ FAEFE A HAD 2 18 I 45 7Y
SRVERE (4)

AREBR2018F 2017912 A31 HE

18 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (Continued)

The equity securities listed in Mainland China held by

EHREZE SRR EBESISM LT the Group at 31 December 2018 and 2017 represented

RIS T - equity securities listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
as follows:

ot B TEXB ARENEWER

Place of Principal Group's

NGIES Company name incorporation activities  effective interest

ZEHHEENRMBRAA Huaneng Power International, Inc. HE AR AME REREEEN 0.43%

(I#ael) ("Huaneng’) (476,795 B ARR)

The People’s ~ Generation and sale (approximately

Republic of China of electric power 67.95 million

A-Share)

MR2018F1A1H AEEKETHE
BEARIR B AT E A H M2 e

(TEfER)  WhERBBRE AR
BENMARBEER - 2R ER 201841

A1BERIRES S ERIF 39D ER
AHEESREE  WARTFEFE -

A E AR FE H & FE L A RIS
FEAMIE R B RS RS
BHER - Bt AEBERBEHREM
2EREZARR TEAFEHES
(TAIER) RO FA R AFEZ SR
BERTE A o

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

At 1 January 2018, the Group designated its investment
in Huaneng A-Shares as FVOCI (non-recycling) as
the investment is held for long term and strategic
purposes. The investment was classified as available-
for-sale financial assets and measured at fair value
prior to 1 January 2018 in accordance with HKAS 39.

The tax bureau in Beijing, Mainland China had issued
certificate of tax exemption for the gain from the disposal
of A-Share of Huaneng by the Company in previous
year. Accordingly, the Group has not provided any tax
provision against the fair value movements recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the fair value reserve (non-recycling).



KRG PGSR RERE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 AJ it B 4 il 19 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

ASSETS
2018 2017
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
W1 A1HE At 1 January - 557,750
157 (b) Additions (b) - 27,060
RNIEEEMFEBESEE  Fairvalue loss recognised in investment
2 AEEEE revaluation reserve - (29,946)
HE @ b Ko Disposals (a, b & ¢) = (51,350)
M12831H At 31 December - 503,514
BAYE At fair value
REE A FH2 Equity securities listed in
Hxﬁé?jf% Mainland China
FEBEEXZSFET - Shanghai Stock Exchange - 503,514
M12H31H (;F%¥18) At31December (Note 18) - 503,514

(@) ARABR2017FEFREBEEARLS
Fﬁﬁ%zooﬁ%ﬂ%%ﬁmﬂx REF
BHOARE 14248 T (ZELHHE
¥1,6538C)  KETABE 2Bl
RIREELFEHEENEREHEE
& R WEE’JE%.# FHE“@J
% BEEHERZNEKIE

7‘[]0

(b) KREER20M7EBARBEET
$.Wﬁﬁﬁﬁ B3R B E G
DRIAARE 24008 T (ZEL
B 2,706 8 L) RHARYE 2,994
“*( BHBHE337787T) °

(C) $’AET—% éqM-JL% Tgﬁ/\/}m
@ééﬁﬁ R2017FHEER
BLETHRMBEREZES  REF
%ﬁ%@ ¥e58 BT LR ARE 2
AR EEHREBEESARRER
EHERNELENRTATESZ
Bk B HEBBHEE 298

ﬁo

(a)

(c)

The Company sold 2 million A-Share of Huaneng
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange for a net
consideration of approximately RMB14.24 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$16.53 million)
and a gain on disposal of approximately HK$9.94
million was recognised in 2017, taking into account
the release of accumulated fair value changes
attributable to the shares disposed of previously
recognised in investment revaluation reserve.

The Group purchased and sold several wealth
management products issued by banks in
Mainland China of RMB24 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$27.06 million) and approximately
RMB29.94 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$33.77 million) respectively in 2017.

A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
sold all of the equity securities listed in Hong
Kong for a net consideration of approximately
HK$0.58 million due to its liquidity needs and a
loss on disposal of approximately HK$0.29 million
was recognised in 2017, taking into account
the release of accumulated fair value changes
attributable to the shares disposed of previously
recognised in investment revaluation reserve.
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20  FRHERSH AT E Y 4 R 20

(a) AEEFENESREEF2016F
BANKERRBZIMES ° HI
BENETHE BFErEREX
BEFRER3125E @ FFFXNF
B Wi 2020F 4 ARIHA -

C;

M2018F 201712 A31H ° %5
INEFILER R BIAFT E# HE K
AR R ERE REE -

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST

(@) The financial asset held by the Group was an
investment grade OTC bond acquired in 2016.
The OTC bond is in United States Dollar, carries
fixed coupon interest rate at 3.125% per annum
payable half yearly and will mature in April 2020.

(b) At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the OTC bond
carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method and had neither past due nor

impaired.
21 i+ 8 21 INVENTORIES
2018 2017
BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS$’000
RE Motor vehicles 10,668 89,946

FRNAEEEHAENFEERERARES
Hu#R $E HTEARNSEEE
1,552,000 7T (2017 F : &) REEZE R
[SHERKA | ATER ©

22 JEUCHIEEEE 22
AREER2017FBEAPBAN M — KR

1TEITHRMD BEE RIR LRAR IR E
i REREENFERER -

The Group has written down the carrying amount
of motor vehicles to net realisable value during the
year. The amount of write down of inventories of
HK$1,552,000 (2017: Nil) was recognised in the income
statement as part of “Cost of sales”.

INVESTMENTS IN RECEIVABLES

The Group had acquired two fixed-term and principal
guaranteed wealth management products issued by a
bank in Mainland China in 2017 and these investments
were redeemed by the Group during the year.

23 IRIEHUAE ALA 23 DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS

2018 2017

B FT BB F T

HK$’000 HK$'000

W1A1H At 1 January 16,868 16,670
RN Increase during the year 36,222 30,663
FREE Release during the year (31,848) (30,465)
M12A831H At 31 December 21,242 16,868

B @ABMRAF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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24 INSURANCE RECEIVABLE

2018 2017
BT JBMEF T
HK$’000 HKS$'000

RN ARS #35H A Due from insurance intermediates and
KR contract holders 11,276 10,350
BRER AR Due from reinsurers 1,858 504
13,134 10,854

Rz AR AR E D 2 EEBR —AH 90
RENORTE - RIREWKZ EE 1K
R ERREREAS =FHERER)H
BREREABIRE e

MR2018F 12 A31H - R EMZAEE
ot GRBEERH) #BiwT -

The credit period for the majority of insurance
receivable normally ranges from 90 to 120 days.
The credit terms of insurance receivable, including
whether guarantees from third parties are required, are

determined by senior management.

At 31 December 2018, the ageing analysis of insurance
receivable by invoice date was summarised as follows:

2018 2017

BT BT T

HK$’000 HKs'000

30AR Within 30 days 4,245 3,575
31260 H 31-60 days 5,751 3,511
61290H 61-90 days 2,746 2,498
A 90 H Over 90 days 392 1,270
13,134 10,854

M2018%F 12 8318 CiBEEREE
BRER FE YR B BR B D AT R a0 T

At 31 December 2018, the ageing analysis of the
past due but not impaired insurance receivable was

summarised as follows:

2018 2017
BT BT

HK$’000 HK$'000

90 H IR Within 90 days 2,744 3,183
iBi® 90 H Over 90 days 316 340
3,060 3,523
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25

26

EIEES

TFROR B & 25 REINSURANCE ASSETS
2018 2017
BB T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
IR AFE(LRBE  Reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities
(5F%29) (Note 29) 6,337 6,312

BREBARNAEERSREOD N
M EE B R R SIR I R I BRI B B N e
R o &R AR B UK (FE1E 24)
W o

% F 8O e ORS

The amounts due from reinsurers in respect of claims
already paid by the Group on the contracts that are
reinsured are not recognised in the reinsurance assets.
They are included in insurance receivable (Note 24).

26 LOANS TO CUSTOMERS AND INTEREST
RECEIVABLE

2018 2017
BT BB F T
HK$’000 HKS’000
NEEERET Micro credit business

— BEREXK - guaranteed loans 161,479 175,307
— EHER - secured loans 101,249 111,763
— BRRERER - pledged and guaranteed loans 10,934 11,529
— IR B RIEIREK - secured, pledged and guaranteed loans 4,387 5,025
ZEER Loans to customers 278,049 303,624
FEUFI B Interest receivable 11,753 12,386
289,802 316,010
BB ZEE Impairment allowances (266,927) (289,945)
22,875 26,065

AHEBEFER DM Analysed for reporting purposes
— EREBEE - Non-current assets - 39
— RBEE - Current assets 22,875 26,026
22,875 26,065

BEEFTUARBE  FIERZREESF
FENF48EFE21.6E (20174 : 4.8
EZE216E):E -

EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

Loans to customers were in Renminbi and bore fixed
interest rates ranged from 4.8% to 21.6% (2017: 4.8%
to 21.6%) per annum.
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26 & A REIHLE 26 LOANS TO CUSTOMERS AND INTEREST
RECEIVABLE (Continued)
AEBEERESERNREABEHREES The Group recognises a loss allowance equal to
BHEIREE  MEEERRB VKRR 12-month ECLs unless there has been a significant
RiBAEEEL - AZANEZEREER increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which
BHMBEHEEEEN S EEEE case the loss allowance is measured at an amount
fi o equal to lifetime ECLs.
REEBEEMT The movement of impairment allowances was as
follows:
2018 2017
REFEDN
ROEERE
NEARE FERE
REFE Lifetime R B
12-month  ECL credit @8 Individually  Collectively i
ECL impaired Total assessed assessed Total

BT BRFr  BETR | EFTT EETT ERTT
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 |  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS'000

R1A1A At 1 January 1 289,944 289,945 278,650 150 278,800
BEHEE Translation differences 1 (14,339) (14,338) 20,718 4 20,722
EEEEEZR  Credited to current year's
ik income statement 2 (4014 (4016) (1,209) (153) (1362
BEREEE Write back of impairment
allowances - = - (2,031) - (2,031)
WNERIZ Reversal upon loans
o written off - - - (199) _ (198)

EFEEEL  Unwinding of discount of
EHELAE impairment allowances

ERERR recognised as
RN “interest income” - (4,664) (4,664) (5,986) - (5,986)
R12A318 At 31 December - 266927 266927 | 289,944 1 289,945
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26 A JEIHE () 26 LOANS TO CUSTOMERS AND INTEREST
RECEIVABLE (Continued)
R2018F 12318 BEFEREEE At 31 December 2018, the credit quality and ageing
= NIRRT ¢ analysis of the loans to customers were summarised as
follows:
2018 2017
BT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
R ER B RRE Neither past due nor impaired | . - 40
SEHBARRE Past due but not impaired
— 1812365 H -181-365days | . 8 @ 48
e ARE Past due and impaired
— 181 %365 H - 181-365 days - 3,711
— 8 365 H - Over 365 days 278,049 299,825
,,,,,, 278,049 | 303,536
278,049 303,624
2018F 12 A31H BEFERELENE At 31 December 2018, the credit quality and ageing
WKFEMEEEE KRR T (R H analysis of interest receivable arising from the loans to
H) BT - customers by due date was summarised as follows:
2018 2017
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
B ARE Past due and impaired
— 838 365 A - Over 365 days 11,753 12,386

{5 @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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27 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

& THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2018 2017
BT T BT T
HKS’000 HKS’000
B IEEERETRS - Equity securities held for trading,
MNEBEBM LT listed on the Hong Kong Exchange
— &ZmE - at market value 306 304
B4 L BRAT B A7 28 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

AEBZBEESMBITEERIEELETR
REAH s BERBME TRITZF
T ANE 1062288 7T (ZEEHB
#120,9948 7T) (2017F : H AR ¥

J—

86,4228 70 * H{EX)E15103,7888 L) °

BRERERZRTE  IHEEMN XM
BRAIFEEHRETLRAE,600
BB UREREFEER AR
TFak o 20185128318 » ZHEAQ
ARBE —REBITUREREFEETF
S %1,600 8 7T (2017 4F ¢ B 11,600
BL) CEHEFEFNGTAEEBETE - &%
B AR MR 15108 T (%
BHEE 1,466 & 0) REE1,7108 T
(20174 : BP9 1,410 870 HELHHE
1369870 ARB4008 L £E
HE 480 B T B #9608 L) Z R
TEFAFE R (RBIEENE HEM)
ZETHE -

The cash and bank balances of the Group included
deposits of approximately RMB1,062.28 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,209.94 million)
(2017: approximately RMB864.22 million, equivalent to
approximately HK$1,037.88 million) placed with certain
banks in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau by the
Group.

Pursuant to the requirements from IA, a subsidiary
shall maintain at all times a portion of its funds of not
less than HK$16 million in the name of IA account in
bank deposits. At 31 December 2018, that subsidiary
has placed fixed deposits of HK$16 million (2017:
HK$16 million) in the name of 1A account with a bank
in Hong Kong for fulfillment of such requirements.
That subsidiary has also maintained bank deposits
of MOP15.1 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$14.66 million) and HK$17.1 million (2017: MOP14.1
million, equivalent to approximately HK$13.69 million,
RMB4 million, equivalent to approximately HK$4.8
million and HK$9.6 million) for fulfilling certain
requirements under the Macau Insurance Companies
Ordinance.
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28 B4 MERITHEAT (48)

BEARRRFRARITNEREE (&
E31) MEE  —KWEBRFN20184F
1A HEEREIFHETERAR
¥ 20,000 & T (F{E4)E1 22,7808 7T)
FEFEBITRPRRAL —RDTT » WUE
FZTTRBMEFRIRTT B AN

g -

BEARNRRIINEREE (FFE31)
FRE » ARAR2017F12831HE
BRERTHERARE 41008 T (5E
WA A924870) TEHABRITIEAK
HRABITARBIREREML - AR
ERFRAEBEEZRITERREES
B o BRIRITEBRRZBITFRAK
o

REPBEAMEERRER - —RHB
ANRINR2018F 12 A31 BEMH AR
1008 T (ZEHEEN4870) (2017
F: AR08 T ZEHBK
2408 7T) MIRTTHERIERRE AR
R ENEPHEIERITHARE

A
S

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

28 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

Pursuant to the requirements of the loan facilities (Note
31) entered into by the Company during the year, a
subsidiary had pledged its 3-years bank deposit of
RMB200 million (equivalent to approximately HK$227.8
million) to a branch of the lending bank in Mainland
China at 31 December 2018 for the issuance of a
standby letter of credit in favour of the lending bank.

Pursuant to the requirements of the loan facilities (Note
31) entered into by the Company, the Company had
charged its bank deposits of RMB41 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$49.24 million) to the lending
bank as collaterals for the fulfillment of the Company'’s
repayment obligations at 31 December 2017. The
Company has fully repaid the outstanding balance of
the loan during the year and the bank deposits were
subsequently released by the lending bank.

Pursuant to the laws and regulations in Mainland
China, a subsidiary has placed a bank deposit of
RMB1 million (equivalent to approximately HK$1.14
million) (2017: approximately RMB2 million, equivalent
to approximately HK$2.4 million) to guarantee the
application to the local court for legal actions against
default customers at 31 December 2018.
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29 PREg G & SOk b E 20 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND
REINSURANCE ASSETS
2018 2017
BT B F T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
EX Gross
D2HRERIBLFAE  Claims reported and loss adjustment
Z A expenses 17,022 25,978
DL BAREHRRE Claims incurred but not reported 31,490 32,207
48,512 58,185
RimER R E Unearned premiums 32,934 27,624
2R v EA | e 12 Unexpired risks provision 1,559 1,841
REBEETHLEE £ Total insurance liabilities, gross 83,005 87,650
B REARE Recoverable from reinsurers
DE2ERREREBLFAE  Claims reported and loss adjustment
&M expenses (572) (2,339)
BELERERRE Claims incurred but not reported (5,519) (3,767)
(6,091) (6,106)
RmEIRE Unearned premiums (246) (206)
BRBAELERBEE  Total reinsurers’ share of insurance
i (7T 25) liabilities (Note 25) (6,337) (6,312)
FEE Net
BEE2ERREKRIELFAE  Claims reported and loss adjustment
& expenses 16,450 23,639
DEEBAEHREE Claims incurred but not reported 25,971 28,440
42,421 52,079
KmERE Unearned premiums 32,688 27,418
7R HA [ e s 4 Unexpired risks provision 1,559 1,841
RESEEE  FE Total insurance liabilities, net 76,668 81,338
EE2RREERE  BLAABRERAREE The liabilities for gross claims reported, loss adjustment
FERER ?ﬁﬁEEW%@EETD BrTE expenses and claims incurred but not reported are net
HART 48 68 R AL A Y Bl O B EE o of expected recoveries from salvage and subrogation.
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29 fREEEH MR ERE (5)

(a) HEME SR 205 2 s dh

29 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND

REINSURANCE ASSETS (Continued)

(a) Movement in claims and loss adjustment expenses

2018 2017
k% BRR B e BRR et
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
EETT EETT BEFr | Attt  Ertr BT FT
BET BET BET ETT ETT BTF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
EERHEE Notified claims 25,978 (2,339) 23,639 26,425 (3,809) 2616
BEAEBRER  Incurred but not reported 32,207 (3,767) 28,440 31,218 (3,163) 28,055
R1A1H At 1 January 58,185 (6,106) 52,079 57,643 (6,972) 50,671
FRNFELEN  Cash paid for claims settled
M during the year (18,249) 3184 (15065  (30711) 8,201 (22510)
BN,/ () Increase/(decrease) in liabilities
EFELRE arising from current year claims 7,827 (1,552) 6,275 17,501 (4417) 13,084
FFELRE arising from prior year claims 1,466 135 1,601 12,763 (2,314) 10,449
BZERKXZHE  movementin provision for
EEe ¥ claims incurred but not
reported (717) (1,752) (2,469) 989 (604) 385
W12A831H At 31 December 48,512 (6,091) 42,421 58,185 (6,106) 52,079
DEREE Notified claims 17,022 (572) 16,450 25,978 (2,339) 23,639
BEAEBXE®R  Incurred but not reported 31,490 (5,519) 25,971 32,207 (3,767) 28,440
W12A831H At 31 December 48,512 (6,091) 42,421 58,185 (6,106) 52,079

{5 @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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29 REEEHK KEREBEE () 29 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND
REINSURANCE ASSETS (Continued)
(b) ATy I R 2 HEA 4 5 ) (b) Movement in provision for unearned premiums
2018 2017
E BRER FE 8 BRR et
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
BEFT  BEFn  BEFr | Erfr Brfr Erntr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
®1A18 At1 January 27,624 (206) 27418 33,514 (975) 32,539
FEREI/ (D) Increase/(decrease) during the year 39,657 (384) 39,273 26,688 (180) 26,508
FRED Release during the year (34,347) 344 (34,003) (32,578) 949 (31,629)
W12A831H At 31 December 32,934 (246) 32,688 27,624 (206) 27,418
RmRELEES RSB EAEER Provision for unearned premiums represented the
SWMBEMAREPNEHARBRAELYE(EL - liabilities for short-term insurance contracts for which
the Group’s obligations are not expired at the reporting
date.
(c) A T 1A oL g VA 4 5 ) (c) Movement in provision for unexpired risks
2018 2017
EL BRR B 8 DN et
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net

B¥Tr  BRFx  BETr | Ertn Enirt EnTn
HKS'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS'000 |  HKSO00 — HKSOOO  HKS000

m1A1H At 1 January 1,841 - 1,841 2,619 - 2,619
ERFD Decrease during the year (282) - (282) (778) - (778)
R12A31H At 31 December 1,559 - 1,559 1,841 - 1,841
A v EA R B ZE < B 7K R (B TR HA <2 N B The provision for unexpired risks related to the
BEEBHEERRRREEEBSORR insurance contracts for which the Group expected
BHERB - to pay claims in excess of the related provision for

unearned premiums.
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30 PREEIESTER

30 INSURANCE PAYABLE

M2018%E 12 A31 8 (REBEMNZAE
O GRBEEZEH) HataT

At 31 December 2018, the ageing analysis of the
insurance payable by invoice date was summarised as

follows:
2018 2017
BT T B F T
HKS’000 HKS$'000
30HA Within 30 days 3,376 2,277
312 60H 31-60 days 2,863 2,249
61290 H 61-90 days 1,900 1,591
iHBi@ 90 H Over 90 days 1,057 1,133
9,196 7,250
31 SRATEK 31 BANK BORROWINGS
2018 2017
BT T B F T
HKs’000 HKS$'000
REIBRITER Long term bank loans
B - LABT ARSI (a&b) Secured,in HK Dollars (a & b) 199,966 354,141
BT - LABTTREN (o Unsecured, in HK Dollars (c) 198,804 198,131
398,770 552,272
B BERREBEEA Less: Amounts due within one year
2 —FANEERFIE included in current liabilities (198,804) (354,141)
199,966 198,131
RIBEEFBEMBN TR - R The maturity profile of the bank loans based on the
TERIHARmET - scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan facilities
was summarised as follows:
2018 2017
B FT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE—FA Within 1 year 198,804 354,141
ZR—FERWMEN More than 1 year but within 2 years - 198,131
ZHRMFERAEFR More than 2 years but within 5 years 199,966 -
398,770 552,272

B @ABMRAF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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31 SRITE ()

(a)

FRARRAIAES —REITIRI
%2 A B E OB 20,0008 7T °
BEZEREENGKR EHE
FERTH BB (UWREEBE)
B8 (VIRIEHERE36(EA ¢
(i) B AR REMNEREE A
Wma2@AE B - K i) EFERTR
FREA—RDTEENHERE
FAEDHSEEER - EREEB
RIBITERNLZ B ALEEIE
5T o

ZIBTERUERBITRAF AR
H—ROITRENHERERAEE
KIFABITADRGNEREEL -
ZEAGEHERARE R HAH
M—REENMBARHGD IE
HHE 3 FHIRTTF A R % 20,000
B (5ELHB%22,78087T) T
BRBRITRPREA—RDIT °

ZIRITERNF BIREERITE
ERBMBEZEZFTE - 7R2018F 12
H318  BREFHERAE3IE-

RIFZERBEIERK - AR A
FEEHRRNEFFHAARRA] (7

i)
BERSEE) BETRARDR
35% M E i o

31 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

(a)

The Company has drew down a floating rate term
loan of HK$200 million from a bank in Hong Kong
during the year. Pursuant to the terms of the loan
facility, the term loan shall be repayable on the
earliest of (i) 36 months after the drawdown date
of the term loan; (ii) the date falling 42 months
from the date of the Company’s acceptance of the
loan facilities; and (iii) 5 business days prior to the
expiry date of the standby letter of credit issued
by a branch of the lending bank in Mainland
China. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the bank loan were approximately HK$0.03
million.

The bank loan was secured by a standby letter
of credit issued by a branch of the lending
bank in Mainland China for the fulfilment of the
Company’s repayment obligations. The standby
letter of credit was applied by a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company in Mainland China
and a 3-years bank deposit of RMB200 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$227.8 million) of
that subsidiary was pledged to the branch of the
lending bank in Mainland China.

The bank loan bore interest at a spread over Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate and the effective
interest rate was 3.1% per annum at 31 December
2018.

Pursuant to the terms of the loan facility, the
Company shall procure FIDG to maintain (whether
directly or indirectly) not less than 35% beneficial
interest in the issued share capital of the
Company during the tenor of the loan facility.
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31

RATHEK (K1)

(b)

201712 A31 BWETER AR
ARARBAEFEREEE —RR
TRENGEEERRENR=F
NEEZZTEEHERNKER
Htr e ZIRTTERUN—ZRE2EW
BARBAMNNEBREFELN
B BITMEAMEREER
FHRRERRITHARQRIRITHE
FAREEL1008 T (FEHEK
49248 70) 1B - WETAR
AIN2017F12A31HHEREE -

ARAIERFEANEHEEZETT
ERKREREH - (ERBEITHE
MR2018F 12 ABBRIRITHERAR
¥ 4,100 BTV - HRARF]
BB EETEITHR FHET
BEETER At —R2EMH
BRARBABNRNESNERME
BRI 20184 12 A 31 H AR
3 o

RITERR/ARARNBEFER
BEEEETRITRHNEERE
RERFRENBR =FAIH KL
BREZFERAHERNRERS

ZERTEROFBZREBRIT
EEFENMBEZFTE - K2018F
12A318 EREFENXE52E
(20174 : 4.2[F)

RERERESEEZEEN —HE
Bk BREEEBERELE
RoBREE BEEIEERS
BARNBBEEITRAT DR 35%
WE=B=MEBEARANER
PEHIHE o

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

31

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

(b)

The bank loan at 31 December 2017 represented
the outstanding balance of floating rates term
loan repayable within three years under a loan
facility obtained from a bank in Hong Kong in
prior year. The bank loan was secured by the
self-use office building owned by a wholly-
owned subsidiary in Hong Kong with a net book
value of approximately HK$9.92 million and the
bank deposits of the Company of RMB41 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$49.24 million)
placed with the lending bank for the fulfillment
of the Company’s repayment obligations at 31
December 2017.

The outstanding balance of the bank loan
was fully repaid by the Company during the
year. The bank deposits of RMB41 million were
subsequently released by the lending bank in
December 2018. As the Company has started to
negotiate with the lending bank for granting a
new banking facility, the self-use office building
owned by a wholly-owned subsidiary in Hong
Kong has not yet been released at 31 December
2018.

The bank loans represented the outstanding
balance of floating rates term loans to be
matured and repayable in three years from the
date of drawdown under loan facilities obtained
from certain banks in Hong Kong in prior year.

These bank loans bore interest at a spread over
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate and the
effective interest rate was 5.2% (2017: 4.2%) per
annum at 31 December 2018.

Pursuant to a letter of comfort duly signed by
FIDG, FIDG agreed and confirmed that, among
other matters, it shall directly or indirectly own
not less than 35% beneficial interest in the issued
share capital of the Company and management
control right in the Company.
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1R AE BT 15

BEAMSHRAABREINEREZRIES
BRI Z T % 16.5% (2017 4F © 16.5%)
Ko /R B gt A5 T8 2 B R 25% (2017 4F -
25%) E2HEE - BB ETERA AT
EMNEAEREHHBEAERE M
BIEFTIS TS MR — IS L R — (&
ERTEEE @ BRI IRES T & E
BEFSHBELAKE -

EILFSRAE / (B1E) 2 #BHE
mT

32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using a taxation
rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) for Hong Kong taxation and
25% (2017: 25%) for Mainland China taxation. Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes relate to the same taxation authority on
the same taxable entity.

The movement on the deferred income tax assets/
(liabilities) was summarised as follows:

2018 2017

BT T JBMEF T

HK$'000 HKS'000

®1A1H At 1 January (18,247) (21,847)

PE 5§ =58 Translation differences 190 739

HEEEEEZRX (1)  Deferred income tax (charged)/credited to

SRR ISR current year’s income statement (5,514) 2,902
EREENRESIR Deferred income tax charged to investment

ZIETEFTSHL revaluation reserve - (41)

M12H831H At 31 December (23,571) (18,247)

EBEFTEHEEEEHREHREHER
BRI REE B AR ERBOE R B IR Mt A
HeE BB EER - 120189 12 A 31
B - ANEE KRR A A S R R FERR
FRUL A MR8 408#E 3.8 BT (2017 4F ¢
#7EME 3.6 187T) + ML FE B PR AR o

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that realisation
of the related tax benefits through future taxable
profits is probable. At 31 December 2018, the Group
did not recognise tax losses of approximately HK$380
million (2017: approximately HK$360 million) that can
be carried forward against future taxable income and
have no expiry date.
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EIEFTISBL (7))

32

RENBLEMSEHREENABZEY
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(B[R —EH < AR IEAT) B

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and
liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances within the
same taxation jurisdiction) during the year was
summarised as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

IEHIEFTER
REWHEEM
Accelerated tax depreciation
and revaluation of
investment properties

2018 2017
BT B F T
HKS’000 HKS$'000
Mm1A1H At 1 January 39,328 41,969
E o Z=%a Translation differences (1) -
EEFREERE Credited to current year’s income
AR statement (3,843) (2,641)
M12A831H8 At 31 December 35,484 39,328
0% JE T 15 B & Deferred income tax assets
TittEcHEE EFEARELAS
YRR HEER
Fair value adjustment  Impairment allowances on HERE
[EsTER foravailable-for-sale ~ loansto customers Write down of i) L
Accrued expenses financial assets and interest receivable inventories Tax losses Total
2018 217 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
BEFL| BETr | BEFr| AETr | BEFr| RETr | BEFL| E¥Tr | BEFL| BA¥Tr | BEFr| AEEr
HKS'000 HKS'000 | HKS$'000 HKS'000 | HKS'000 HKS'000 | HKS'000 HKS'000 | HK$'000 HKS'000 | HK$'000 HKS'000
#A1E At January (308) (308) (41) (9,924) (10,501) - - (10,849) (92721 (21,081 (20122
EiZE Translation differences - - (210) (739) 2 - = (189). (739)
EEEEREE  Charged/(credited) to curtent
1k/ (8) year'sincome statement 120 10,134 1316 (388) - (509) (1577) 9,357 (261)
ERBERERS  Charged toinvestment
Bl revaluation reserve 41 - - - - - - - 41
R128318 At31December 188) (308) - (9924 367) - 11,358) 10,849) 11913) 21,081

{5 @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

MR R AT

The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting of deferred income tax assets and liabilities,

are shown in the consolidated statement of financial

position:
2018 2017
BT BT T
HKS’000 HKS’000
BEEFTSHEE Deferred income tax assets

B 12 8 A & 4k (Bl To be recovered after 12 months 122 10,108
#1218 A Rk To be recovered within 12 months 413 42
535 10,150

RIEFTISTR ARG Deferred income tax liabilities
AR 12 8 A 18 8 To be settled after 12 months (24,106) (28,397)
(23,571) (18,247)
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33 EAR KAt 4

33 CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(a) HeA (a) Share capital
2018 2017
BH#E BETT R H BEFoT
No. of shares HK$’000| No. of shares HKS'000
ERITRHBERA Ordinary shares, issued
EER and fully paid
»1A1H At 1 January 597,257,252 1,715,377| 459,428,656 891,135
AR TR EET 2 Issuance of new ordinary
g - shares by way of rights
MBI, issue, net of share issue
ERRZFH() expenses (i) - -| 137,828,596 824,242
MW12A31H At 31 December 597,257,252 1,715,377 | 597,257,252 1,715,377

BIEEEREDIE 13515 -

PIN/NCT

In

accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong

AL I R EE -

C WHEARRNBRREZ EAEREA
ZNRERE - A EBRROEAR
ARG EERA R FH L o

BBRFEAAE BRI E T KK
8

KA A R2017F6 A148 & B
MR A ESFETREBERY
BREOEZR=ZRERBHDZE
X REREBRROEE 6 TZR
B (5 2517 137,828,596 & 31 & 3@ X
B RBRBRHETERE -
ARARIEEFEHRBFELOEE
82,4248 7T - MEERBEITHIN LR
BRDESHEEE R RRKRR
DPEERSEHAL -

—
=

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

Companies Ordinance, the ordinary shares of the

Company do not have a par value.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are

entitled to one vote per share at shareholders

’

meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank
equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

(i) The Company had raised gross proceeds less
share issue expenses of approximately HK$824.24
million by way of rights issue of 137,828,596 new
ordinary shares at a subscription price of HK$6
per rights share on the basis of three rights shares
for every ten existing ordinary shares on 14 June
2017.The new ordinary shares allotted and issued
ranked pari passu in all respects with the then

ordinary shares.
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33 EA KA E ()
(b) T < 1 B S o
(i) EEGHE
EERESTERE

- —RBESREBRE ORFME
TR R AR BIR) (R AR
Bz AR D EEEEFER ©

- —XEESmEEREN IR
THRC(ERPELEFRSFIREE
%) (B1€ 201212098 ) &7 8 —
WEE - Z—REBEANBS
BopR I+ WIE R IR R A A 0
53+ FB LA SR 48 18 R a5k A9 8 TE R
B/E518 -

- EBRESREBREZTEDAR
B2 R HY R E MR B A B 2
EEME -

(ii) il &

BREESIRRE SN B L E—R
P ©

(iii) B %
BB R

— 2000 F 1A TBUBISMESS G
NG BEBERNRMEEANHER
REBEEHBEENTBRHAE
E -BERIABBENRAFEFE
BRRAEREEE

- BEATRANBLAAMMNE
R AR AT R B8 3 B
R LN

33 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i)  Statutory reserve
The statutory reserve mainly comprises the following:

- Non-distributable reserve set aside by an
associated financial institution from its retained
profits in accordance with the Financial System
Act of Macau.

- General reserve established and maintained
within shareholders’ equity of an associated
financial institution pursuant to Caijin [2012]
No. 20 “Regulation on Management of Financial
Institutions for Reserves” issued by Ministry of
Finance. The general reserve was established
through the appropriation of income to cover
unidentified potential impairment losses.

- Regulatory reserve set aside by an associated
financial institution from its retained profits in
accordance with the requirements of the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority.

(ii) General reserve

The general reserve is transferred from retained profits
and is available for general use.

(iii) Capital reserve
The capital reserve comprises the following:

- goodwill and the excess of the Group’s interest
in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of business combination and the
investments in associates prior to 1 January 2001;

- capitalisation of retained profits and reserves
for the purpose of increasing the share capital
and capital reserve of associates and their
subsidiaries;
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33 EARNMEHS ()

(b) fitit&nIrEE XA E (4])
(iii) BA& T+ (4H)

—  EEBEARETEH KN
[ UNGE T O RN S
SETEY R

(iv) L-FLEE 2 (ATIEER)

NEEFEES (TRER) BERE23RE
KEBEFRATFEFARMBEEKESTE
MEBTRENZRA AFEEEFRE (1
AR ERIES ) - R20185 1 A
1HA RBEFBEFERFE395 - %
RESCBEERERPABAENITHES
TREENZARFEEEFE (IR
FERELERIES 1) - ZEFER20184F
1RV BVRERE U HREERE9
FENEAATERES (FUER)

(v) LFlEEHE (R ATEER)

NP EFRES (TAER) BREREZR
HARFAERAFEFARMEZEE S
AFENRERENRF A FERZEFE
(FURARBDRIE R IAS ) -

(vi) HEEE E %
HEBFEHREeERBHERRERE
FTERMEERIBRIREME LB
EAMATHEZEFME -

(vii) SMEVTE i
HNEFTERESREREGINGB QT

LI ERRNPBHRREARRZRE
EHELNMAENLZH

B @ABMRAF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

33 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii) Capital reserve (Continued)

share of movement in reserves recorded in equity
of associates for the change in the interest in
their subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of
control.

(iv) Fair value reserve (recycling)

The fair value reserve (recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of debt
investments measured at FVOCI (less related deferred
tax charge) held at the end of the reporting period.
Prior to 1 January 2018, this reserve comprised the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-
sale financial assets (less related deferred tax charge)
held at the end of the reporting period in accordance
with HKAS 39. This amount has been reclassified to fair
value reserve (non-recycling) on initial application of
HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018.

(v) Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investments designated at FVOCI (less related deferred
tax charge) held at the end of the reporting period.

(vi) Leasehold buildings revaluation reserve

The leasehold buildings revaluation reserve comprises
the net change in the fair value of leasehold buildings
at the date of reclassification from owner-occupied
property to investment property.

(vii) Exchange translation reserve

The exchange translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising on translation of
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries and
associates into the reporting currency of the Company.
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34 JR¥E 34 COMMITMENTS

M2018F 12 A31H @ AEBRAEEN At 31 December 2018, the Group had commitments as

N follows:
2018 2017
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000

EERLEREE Contracted but not provided for
— ¥ - MENRE - property, plant and equipment 13 427
— B - investment properties 189 199
202 626

35 FHA KIS
(a) 7ARFHA

35 LEASE COMMITMENTS

(a) As lessee

M2018F 12 A31H » REEREATA
Bz LeBEMARRK YN 2 &IE

At 31 December 2018, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments payable under non-

MENRET - cancellable operating leases as follows:
2018 2017
BT BT
HK$’000 HKS'000
B E Land and buildings
E—FNA Within one year 104 326
BEZFEERFRN In the second to fifth year
(BRERMF) inclusive - 53
104 379
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35 AR ()
(b) tHFA

M2018F 12 A31H » REEREAA
HSH 2 £ T8 & i pA R SR FEUNER 2 S K

35 LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) As lessor

At 31 December 2018, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments receivable under non-

MERRAT : cancellable operating leases as follows:
2018 2017
BT T BT T
HKS’000 HK$'000
= HE Land and buildings
F—FR Within one year 8,880 9,505
E_FEERFA In the second to fifth year
(BHEEREMST) inclusive 8,237 13,462
17,117 22,967

AEBEHE BAEME CHEFHE—
F2N\FAE HEMAZHESHEE

B e

{5 @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

The lease terms for commercial properties leased out
by the Group range from one to eight years and with

fixed rentals throughout the lease periods.
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AR R ERTE 36 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) 5B A 6 A1) B 48 4 05 B B 4 (a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net
WA (FRH) REEE R cash inflow/(outflow) from operations
2018 2017
BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS'000
SR 250 Al v A Profit before taxation 610,526 536,923
e AR Adjustments for:
JE(LER L N B ELE Share of results of associates (617,363) (517,924)
HEMEEHATE Fair value losses on revaluation of
B8 investment properties 186 718
e N Depreciation and amortisation 1,999 1,640
BEFERMEWFIE Write back of impairment loss on loans to
NEREY S EdE customers and interest receivable (4,016) (3,393)
GFERE Write down of inventories 1,552 -
i E—Hﬁ.‘ﬁ TREE Net gains on disposal of available-for-sale
I 25 5 %8 financial assets - (9,802)
HEWE MR RRE Loss on disposal of property, plant and
BB equipment 57 38
FLEWA Interest income (33,298) (36,524)
/UME%)E'T ZOIYSE Interest income from impaired loans to
WA customers (4,664) (5,986)
FEXH Interest expenses 26,165 37,056
fE &8, (Uizs) S5 Net exchange losses/(gains) 12,398 (15,536)
mn@} é{é“@]’\%iﬁ i Changes in working capital:
w (3En) Decrease/(increase) in inventories 73,170 (89,946)
LLHX SRk A IE 0 Increase in deferred acquisition costs (4,374) (198)
REsFEW SR (3EH0) B2l (Increase)/decrease in insurance receivable (2,280) 3,266
BRBEE (%) B  (Increase)/decrease in reinsurance assets (25) 1,635
REER M EWRT S Decrease in loans to customers and
Ve interest receivable 10,546 27,541
WEBERD, (3Em) Decrease/(increase) in repossessed assets 687 (1,180)
SRITAN EZ Increase in banker’s acceptance (56,186) -
HuEUWEES (J€10) /  (Increase)/decrease in other debtors
Ve (16) 42
BRETORL, (3Em) Decrease/(increase) in advance payment 92,961 (90,641)
/H\TJ@TEH &Hzﬁ (Increase)/decrease in other prepayments
(Zm) R and deposits (110) 1,036
BAFEEBERER (Increase)/decrease in financial assets at
HERIEEE (350) //Ui s fair value through profit or loss (2) 4,804
R& A #E D Decrease in insurance contracts (4,645) (6,126)
1R J'EﬁT)\i'le]/ J)  Increase/(decrease) in insurance payable 1,946 (3,654)
ﬁﬁﬂr&“ﬁﬁﬁ i N FEET (Decrease)/increase in other creditors and
CRt) /140 accruals (3,983) 4,232
KEFHRERA Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
() #% operations 101,231 (161,979)
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36 HZEBER

BRI ()

36 NOTES
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

TO THE CONSOLIDATED

b) TEHWAELEEAMESTHME (b) The table below details changes in the Group’s
EEENEESES AEELR liabilities arising from financing activities,
JEIR S EE o including both cash and non-cash changes.

2018 2017
£ | i
RITER  BAER HITER  BOER
Bank  Pledged et Bank Pledged HE
borrowings bank deposits Net  borrowings bank deposits Net
BRTr  EEFT  BEFr | EEFr BETr BETr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

RE1A1H At 1 January 552,272 (49,239) 503,033 1,353,419 (45,770) 1,307,649

BEBESREH - Changes in financing cash flows:

BERITER Bank loans obtained 200,000 - 200,000 - - -

BEFITER Bank loans repaid (356,880) - (356,880) (806,352) - (806,352)

BITEMEERA  Other borrowing costs paid (1,234) = (1,234) (1,400) - (1,400)

BIERRTEZ Placement of pledged bank deposit - (227,800)  (227,800) - - -

IREVERRTEZ Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits - 46,699 46,699 - - -

¥Re® Non-cash changes:

EHZ5E Translation differences - 2,540 2,540 - (3,469) (3,469)

EfESBFAEE  Amortisation of other borrowing costs 4,612 - 4,612 6,605 - 6,605

R12A31H At 31 December 398,770 (227,800) 170,970 552,272 (49,239) 503,033

B @ABMRAF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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37 BT S

BRI AER S M R B B D B SN
AEBAELTEBBENET 2 EKREE

ki

(a)

RHMEMT

M2018F 12 A31H ° K& B 4
GFRER SR EBIR (2EAEK
EBECBENT) NFEREFHEE
26,004 BT (2017 4F : 7% 45,971
B) c WEGFHHNFBA—RE
EANERGFE  AEERFAHL
FREAMFIBURA BB 801 BT
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37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, significant related
party transactions which were carried out in the
normal course of the Group’s business are as follows:

(a)

At 31 December 2018, the Group had deposits
with XIB, CYB and LIB, all are associates of
the Group, totalling HK$260.04 million (2017:
HK$459.71 million). These deposits carried
interest at normal commercial rates and had
generated interest income of HK$8.01 million
(2017: HK$12.55 million) to the Group during the
year.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had outstanding
unsecured bank loan of HK$100 million (2017:
HK$100 million) from CYB, an associated financial
institution of the Group. In addition, the Company
had repaid the outstanding balance of HK$356.88
million to CYB during the year. This loan was
secured by the self-use office building owned by
a wholly-owned subsidiary in Hong Kong with a
net book value of approximately HK$9.92 million
and the bank deposits of the Company of RMB41
million (equivalent to approximately HK$49.24
million) placed with CYB at 31 December 2017.
The bank deposits of RMB41 million were
subsequently released by CYB in December
2018. As the Company has started to negotiate
with CYB for granting a new banking facility,
the self-use office building owned by a wholly-
owned subsidiary in Hong Kong has not yet been
released at 31 December 2018.

These bank loans bore interest at a spread over
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate. The effective
interest rate of the bank loan was 5.2% (2017:
4.2% to 4.3%) per annum at 31 December 2018.
The related interest expense of these bank loans
was HK$21.09 million (from 27 March to 31
December 2017: HK$19.47 million) for the year
and the related interest payable was HK$0.06
million (2017: HK$0.36 million) at 31 December
2018.
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37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(c)

A subsidiary of the Group underwrote insurance
policies with gross insurance premiums less
discounts of HK$4.32 million (2017: HK$3.82
million) to an associated financial institution
of the Group at prices and terms not less
favourable than those contracted with other
third party customers of the Group during the
year. That subsidiary also paid commissions of
HKS$6.29 million (2017: HK$5.18 million) to the
aforementioned associate for business referred to
the Group during the year.

(d) Key management personnel

The senior executives’ emoluments for the year ended
31 December 2018 and 2017 are detailed as follows:

2018 2017

BT T JEIT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

Erroken Directors' fees 1,125 1,198
HE - BENEMEEL - Salaries, housing and other allowances,

REYFE and benefits in kind 6,036 5,803
BRIREFET IR Contributions to retirement benefit scheme 926 76
b Bonus 4,135 4,840

11,392 11,917
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38 AN EESIR UL 2R 38 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

BRAARRARERFRNUBRAKRE

Information about the statement of financial position

BT of the Company at the end of the reporting year is as
follows:
2018 2017
g BT B F T
Note HKS$’000 HKS$'000
REBEE Non-current assets
M - HER N EERE Property, plant and equipment 3,657 3,402
KEYE Investment properties 64,832 73,018
B AR Subsidiaries 1,364,631 1,314,909
= /NE] Associates 972,776 972,776
WP EF AHMSE  Financial assets at fair value through
W e EE other comprehensive income 570,417 -
AIHEESREE Available-for-sale financial assets - 503,514
SEAREN Prepayments 6 180
2,976,319 | . 2,867,799
REEE Current assets
H b e U BR 30 Other debtors 1,197 2,351
AR kES Prepayments and deposits 774 735
WAFEBEBIEZYIE  Financial assets at fair value through
HWERlEE profit or loss 306 304
e RIBITER Cash and bank balances 248,495 385,203
,,,,,, 250,772 | 388,593
REBEE Current liabilities
HibER BRI R FEZTE A Other creditors and accruals 15,782 17,252
IRITER Bank borrowings 198,804 354,141
FET AR HRFR 18 Current income tax payable 23,838 25,135
,,,,,, 238,424 | 396,528
REEE(AfE) FE Netcurrent assets/(liabilites)y | 12,348 |  (7,935)
BEERABERS Total assets less current liabilities 2,988,667 | 2,859,864
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38 AN AIIBHRILE (4) 38 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)
2018 2017
T BT T BT T
Note HKS’000 HKs'000
ERBER Non-current liabilities
RITEM Bank borrowings 199,966 198,131
REFREHEaE Deferred income tax liabilities 21,423 26,537
,,,,,, 221,389 | 224,668
BEEEE Net assets 2,767,278 2,635,196
s Equity
A& 2 Share capital 1,715,377 1,715,377
HifAES Other reserves (a) 349,371 282,468
IR & F Retained profits 702,530 637,351
AR Total equity 2,767,278 2,635,196
BR1E YAN Zheng
2 Director
B F CHEN Yu
2 Director
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38 AN EMBIRILR () 38 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)
(@) BEAFTAREERBEEHER (@) Information on the movement of the total equity
PORNE during the year is as follows:
Hitfitke
Other reserves
ATE AYE  HEEE Efh
e frEe EfffRe fife
(TER)G)  (FTER)  Leasehold fag RREsR
RX  Fairvalue  Fairvalue  buildings Total  REEH L
Share reserve reserve  revaluation other Retained Total
capital  (recycling) (i) (non-recycling) reserve reserves profits equity
BETr  B¥Tn E¥Tr BEFn BEFn BEFn BT
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
20175128318 At 31 December 2017,
FE7] as originally presented 1,115,377 280,128 - 2,340 282,468 637,351 2,635,196
TAEREAEEREER  Impact on initial application
Z9HNTE (FB22)  of HKFRS9 (Note 22) - (280128) 280,128 - - - -
R018F 1 A18 - BEF] At1January 2018, asrestated | 1,715,377 - 280,128 2,340 282,468 637,351 2,635,196
REERT Profit for the year = = = = = 112,960 112,960
Hth2EE Other comprehensive income - - 66,903 - 66,903 - 66,903
&) Dividend - - - = = (47,781) (47,781)
R2018E12 318 At31December 2018 1,115,377 - 347,031 2,340 349,371 702,530 2,767,278
i) RAHERHED (AIER) R20174F (i)  The balance of fair value reserve (recycling) at
AN BNERRREEEES 31 December 2017 represents the investment
ERIEIOREEMNREEHHEE revaluation reserve under HKAS 39 basis.
{ﬁ o
EthfES
Other reserves
\ REEE &R
REEM EitEE: fEe
B2 Leasehold &% RRE
A Investment  buildings Total  RE&ET B
Share  revaluation  revaluation other Retained Total
capital reserve reserve reserves profits equity
BEFr  BETr BT BT BETr EETr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
R2017E1 518 At 1 January 2017 891,135 320,585 2,340 322,925 550,588 1,764,648
KEERF Profit for the year - - - - 116,626 116,626
Ermies Other comprehensive income - (40,457) - (40,457) - (40,457)
MR BT Issuance of new ordinary shares
MERRG - Mk by way of rights issue, net of
R ETER%L share issue expenses
FE (T 33()0) (Note 33(a)i)) 824,242 - - - - 824,242
e Dividend - - - - (29,863) (29,863)
2017128318 At 31 December 2017 1,715,377 280,128 2,340 282,468 637,351 2,635,196
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39 )& w

39

UTREIEER2018F12A31 B
AEBRNEE EESBBREEATE

BB LRR

SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains the particulars of those
subsidiaries at 31 December 2018 which principally
affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group.

AR BERA  A%E
fens BRAFE  FGRR
Place of Particulars  Group's TEER
incorporation of issued and equity Principal
INGES: Name of company and operation paid up capital interest activity
ERKE Directly held
2 RRERAA Dorfine Development Limited Bk 2R (B%a27t) 100% NERE
Hong Kong 2 shares (HKS2) Property investment
BREERABRAR Fujian Minxin Investments Co, Ltd. PEARLAE EWER 100% REER
(7%%1,010,536,2007C) kAEES
The People's Paid-in capital Investment holding
Republic of China (HK$1,010,536,200) and trading in
motor vehicles
Bz (1E) REAR AT Min Xin (China) Investment Limited FBRTHE 1 (1%Er) 100% REER
British 1 share (US$1) Investment holding
Virgin Islands
AERRARAT Min Xin Insurance Company Limited ) 550081 100% &R
(B¥1756ET) —RiRBEH
Hong Kong 55 million shares Writing of general
(HK$175 million) insurance business
SHT=nREEEER Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin hEARLAE EWEAR 100% RUIEES
ARAR Micro Credit Company Limited (AR®3ET) REFENER
The People's Paid-in capital Provision of
Republic of China (RMB300 million) micro credit and
entrusted loans
ABERAR Take Chance Company Limited ) 2R (B%27T) 100% ESE
Hong Kong 2 shares (HKS2) Property investment
EBER LA Thousand Limited B 1% (% 17) 100% RAERK
Hong Kong 1 share (HK$1) Investment holding
TEERARRAA Welljet Development Limited ) 2R (B%27T) 100% ES
Hong Kong 2 shares (HKS2) Property investment
BERE Indirectly held
BAEtEERAA Min Xin Properties Limited &% 500 Zf 100% REER
(B¥s0ET)
Hong Kong 5 million shares Investment holding
(HKS5 million)

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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40 BT

41

KEBEP2018F1 A1 HPBERES
M SREERFE N - BIZBIENGBE
o EBRERREEY - BESREE
BEHE S BHNEE22"

e 1% 5505

BRI A SR B B R AL AR D D -
BERENBEEZTHENHEREWT

AKABIR2019F1 AoB QM » KEE
ERBRIETEEEER -EEER
REARIE B EEEBBERAEE
HAZEBEENRARD @ BRIFZE
G E AN B 2 48 & 48 o B Ak
REFMERTFEE - BEARGEH
BwERTEBE  AEED 520184
12 A31 BHEGFM 26852 HE -

40 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

41

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 at 1
January 2018. Under the transition method chosen,
comparative information is not restated. Further details
of the changes in accounting policies are disclosed in
Note 2.2.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, a summary of
significant events after the reporting period are
disclosed as follows:

The Company announced on 9 January 2019 that
the Group has begun the process to wind down its
business of trading in motor vehicles. The Board was
of the view that while the cessation of the business
of trading in motor vehicles will result in a reduction
in the revenue of the Group generated from such
business, the cessation of such business would not
have any material adverse effect on the operating
results or the financial position of the Group. Up to
the date of issuance of these consolidated financial
statements, the Group has sold out 26 motor vehicles
remaining in its inventory at 31 December 2018.
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD BY THE GROUP

REER2018F 12 A3EFAEREZ T

BYEERFBOT

Details of the Group’s principal property interests held for
investment as at 31 December 2018 are as follows:

P31 | Bars
iR 3 4 BER
ERE Group's Approximate
Lease attributable gross floor RERZ
fi Location expiry interest area Existing use
BAL% Fiksq. ft
1 NERRTERE 847865 % Shops 7 &8 on ground floor including 2049 100 17,190 [EES
KEREH T AL 7R85 store 8 on the cockloft therein and Commercial
EME EE 2R the whole of 1st and 2nd floors
2E Winfield Building
847-865 Canton Road, Yaumatei
Hong Kong
) HEARENERRERMND 22/F and 23/F, Worldwide Plaza 2044 100 41,288 R
AMFE S8 FRIKES NER 158 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian Commercial
BiE The People’s Republic of China
3 HEARENEIRREBMND Carpark Nos. #24 to #28 and #42 to #48 2044 100 5,207 [
AR 1S8R ES T =E Basement Level 3, Worldwide Plaza Commercial
BAIFTE#4 2 428 [ #42 F 448 158 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian
The People's Republic of China
4 REARENEERLRMT West Half of 14/F, Reliance Building 2043 100 3,025 S
AMEN9REEAE 14 119 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian Commercial
ALE The People's Republic of China
5 hEARANERRERENT Unit D2, 25/F, Huafu Building 2063 100 1205 fr=
ARBINFERAE 121 Gutian Road, Fuzhou, Fujian Residential

WEDETL

The People's Republic of China
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17th Floor, Fairmont House,
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Central, Hong Kong

EBPRARIRSTRRENE712

Tel 50 2521-5671
Fax &1 2530-5488

Website #3t00 www.minxin.com.hk
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